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Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board [the “Board] of directors (“Directors”) of TS
Wonders Holding Llimited ("Company” or ‘TS Wonders"), it is my
pleasure to present fo you the annual report of the Company and

its subsidiaries (collectively, “"Group”) for the financial year ended

31 December 2020 ("FY2020").

2020 has been an extremely unusual and unprecedented year with
the outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic which has impacted countries and
economies worldwide. The many uncerfainties and disruptions induced
by the pandemic became a litmus test for the Group's adaptability and
fortitude.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In 2020, the Singapore economy contracted by 5.4%, a reversal from
the 1.3% growth recorded in 2019.

Fortunately for the Group, however, the Group's revenue and profits
increased in FY2020 despite the turbulent macroeconomic environment,
which is attributed to a few main factors. As households in Singapore,
Malaysia and the People’s Republic of China [PRC), (including Hong
Kong and Macau) were encouraged tfo stay indoors throughout most
of the year 2020 to curb the spread of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
tendency to stock up and consume snack foods increased. The Group
was also a beneficiary fo the government's assistance which was rolled
out in stages to aid businesses cope with challenges arising from the
Covid-19 pandemic and as the Group provides essential goods, the
Group was able fo operate throughout most of the lockdown period in
Singapore and Malaysia.

The Group's revenue increased by approximately $$8.5 million
or 13.9% from approximately S$$61.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately $$69.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The Group's fotal gross profit increased
by approximately $$3.2 million or 20.8% from approximately $$15.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
S$18.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 in line with
the increase in revenue. At the bottom-ine, the Group's profit for the
year increased by approximately $$3.9 million or 2.3 times from
opproximcﬂe|y S5$2.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately $$6.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Further explanation of the Group's financial performance for FY2020 is
provided in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ section of this
annual report.
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Chairlady’s Statement
EBRE

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

Notwithstanding the Group's favourable results for FY2020 and that the
Group expects that demand for snack products with less sugar, arfificial
sweeteners and flavourings such as savoury snacks to remain resilient
even during challenging economic environment as health awareness
is increasing among consumers, the Group fakes cognizance that
such favourable resulls may not be sustainable as uncerfainties and
risks in the global economy remain, as highlighted by the Ministry
of Trade and Industry, Singapore ("MTI"). Although MTI forecasted a
gross domestic product growth for 2021 of between 4.0% and 6.0%,
uncertainties and risks in the global economy remain, mainly due to
uncertainty surrounding the pandemic and how will the vaccination pan
out, profracted nature of the economic recovery in many countries and
geopolitical uncertainty involving the major economies which could
weigh on global frade and the global economic recovery.

In view of the foregoing, the Group will continue to adopt cautious and
prudent approach in managing its business without compromising the
quality of its products in line with its objectives to maintain sustainable
growth in its business and create longterm shareholders’ value.

The Group shall confinue to remain vigilant and monitor the Covid-19
outbreak very closely especially in ifs production facilities in Malaysia
as the number of cases remains high, and its priority is always the well-
being of its consumers and staff.

DIVIDENDS

After due consideration of the uncertain macroeconomic outlook
ahead, the Directors have resolved not to recommend any dividend
for FY2020 even though the Group was profitable. Nonetheless,
the Group's dividend policy has not changed and the Directors will
confinue fo assess whether to recommend dividend in the next financial
period.
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IN' APPRECIATION

We would like to pay tfribute to the following stakeholders whose
support has helped us, in one way or other, in navigating through the
difficult year.

Firstly, we are thankful for the government's approach and measures
taken to contain the spread of Covid-19 in Singapore. This has
enabled the country to have a good control of the pandemic and
prevented a resurgence of infections and the gradual resumption of
social and business activities from June 2020, clearing a path for the
economy fo emerge from a recession. We have also benefitted from
the financial support packages to help businesses during the year. The
Minisiry of Health and the MTI's advisories, guidance and directives,
for example on infection control and safe management, have also been
imporfant resources in implementing health and safefty protocols and
controlling infections.

Secondly, we would like to thank our customers and suppliers. We
thank our cusfomers for continuing to support our products. The Group
confinues to be committed to delivering high quality and safe food
products while meefing consumers' expectations and complying with
legal requirements. We thank our suppliers for ensuring minimal
disruption to our supply chain.

Thirdly, a word of thanks to our sfaff for their professionalism as they
responded and adapted to the changes fo their work and workplace
brought about by the pandemic.

Fourthly, to our shareholders, we thank you for your confidence in
TS Wonders. We shall commit ourselves to creating sustainable
shareholders’ value and strong financial performance.

last but not least, my heartfelt appreciation also goes to my fellow
Direcfors for their guidance, advice and insight in steering the Group
forward.

Ms. Lim Seow Yen
Chairlady and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Financial Highlights

I HEE

KEY ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS

REBEEXRNEIERAR

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—E—RXFE —ZE—+F —E-NF ZE-NF —E-EF
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
¥ oo s oT N o ¥ oo F 3 T
Revenue W= 57,326,980 55511,946 58,581,851 61,058,604 69,562,227
Gross profit EF 13,952,278 13,627,409 14,318,933 15,472,139 18,683,266
Listing expenses a1tk 3 = - (2,912,780) (785,196) =
Profit before taxation B B AT v ) 6,813,873 7,202,451 3,714,906 4,082,824 8,870,506
Income tax expense FriSfifm < (1,102,476) (1,228,531) (1,577,912) (1,174,453) (2,039,687)
Profit for the year FREF 5,711,397 5,973,920 2,136,994 2,908,371 6,830,819

KEY ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF #ZREeMBEMRERNVEEIER

FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December
®R+=ZB=+—H

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—E-XF ZE—tF ZE-N\F ZE-NF ZEBEZEF
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
¥ o s T 0% T ¥ oo 3 i3 T
Non-current assets FEREBEE 17,867,605 19,638,211 19,425,751 22,423,508 22,806,990
Current assets mEEE 22,492,812 24,740,281 26,620,755 41,724,508 49,070,803
Current liabilities mEaE 10,429,218 10,785,787 10,272,009 8,247,741 9,711,289
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 2,931,311 1,070,878 1,931,663 4,316,388 3,826,144
Total equity WA 26,099 888 31,621,827 33,842,744 51,583,887 58,340,360
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

2016
—E—REF
(times)
(&)
Current rafio e LE =& 2.2
Gearing ratfio BEXRBENRE
(Note) (MF5E) 0.1
2016
ZE—RF
(%)
(%)
Gross profit margin -~ EFI = 24.3
Profit before taxation B % Ail 4 F1) &
margin 11.9
Profit margin for F A A X
the year 10.0
Return on fotal assets 42 & EE [0] 3 & 14.2
Return on equity e 5 8] i 21.2

Note:

Financial Highlights

MBEE

FEHKLE=R

As at 31 December

®R+=ZBA=+—H
2017 2018 2019 2020
—ET—tF ZE-NF ZE-NF ZZEB-EF
(times) (times) (times) (times)
(%) (%) (%) (£%)
2.3 2.6 5.1 5.1
0.1 0.1 0.05 0.04

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—H
2017 2018 2019 2020
—E—tF ZE-N\F ZE-NF ZB-EF
(%) (%) (%) (%)
(%) (%) (%) (%)
24.5 24.4 25.3 26.9
13.0 6.3 6.7 12.8
10.8 3.6 4.8 9.8
13.5 4.6 4.5 9.5
18.9 6.3 5.6 11.7

B 5T

Cearing ratfio is calculated as sum of bank and other borrowings divided by

tofal equity as af the respective reporting dates.

EERBBHLERABRE ABORTIEMERERE

%R IA

MR AARERE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
=REY S

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group which is headquartered in Singapore is primarily focused
on the production, packaging and sale of nuts and chips with frack
record of more than 50 years. The Group's core products include
roasted nuts, baked nuts, potato chips and cassava chips. The Group's
products have been sold and disfributed to over 10 countries, including
Singapore, Malaysia, the People's Republic of China (the "PRC"),
India, the United Kingdom and Indonesia. The Group principally
sells ifs products on a wholesale basis o (i) key account customers
which include supermarkets, hotels, airlines and original equipment
manufacturer (OEM) customers; and (i) distributors.

The Group is committed to delivering high quality and safe food
products and continuously meeting consumers’ expectations and
complying with legal requirements. It implements comprehensive
and strict quality assurance procedures throughout all stages of the
production, from the procurement of raw materials to the packaging
and delivery of the finished products. In this regard, the Group
has been accredited with various certifications in relation to quality
management and food safety.

The Group's revenue increased by approximately $S$8.5 million
or 13.9% from approximately S$61.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately $$69.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 mainly due fo sudden increase in demand
from our customers, especially supermarket and OEM customers. As
households in Singapore, Malaysia and the PRC (including Hong Kong
and Macau) were encouraged fo stay indoors throughout most of the
year 2020 to curb the spread of the Covid-19 pandemic, the tendency

fo stock up and consume snack foods increased.

10 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i EREV S

Products Em

The Group's revenue was primarily derived from the sale of nuts ond  AEEMKREZREBRREFEMNHEE -
chips. The following table sets forth a breckdown of the Group's TEREINEZZZT—NF+_A=+—AK=Z
revenue for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December ZZTF+=A=+—HIEFEASERKZEHMA:
2020:

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE

2020 2019
—g-%f —F-NE

s$ % 5 %

$0sT A AT EEY"

Nuts 28 50,611,699 72.8% 46,966,438 76.9%
Chips 2R 17,489,566 25.1% 11,651,116 19.1%
Others Mol Hfh (i) 1,460,962 2.1% 2,441,050 4.0%
Total st 69,562,227 100.0% 61,058,604 100.0%

Note: Others mainly refer fo items such as disposable towels which were  HiF: EMXrBIEAEEBERRMERABREHEE

normally sold together with nuts and chips products to food and BRREFEGF—LENY R B—RY
beverages companies. EMo

The sole of nuts and chips products accounted for approximately BEZE T _ZTF+ A=+ —-—HILFE B
72.8% and 25.1% of revenue respectively for the year ended REZEREMMHEEE S FIGEREL72.8%%
31 December 2020. The product mix between the sale of nuts and 25 1% - BRRZERERMESHNHENRHBEZ
chips were relatively stable for the two years ended 31 December Z—Z&F+=—F=+—HBItMEFERFELEET-
2020.

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2020 3% 11



Management Discussion and Analysis
i EREV S

Geographical location

The Group's products are sold and distributed to customers in over
10 countries. The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue
by geographical location of end customers for the years ended

31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

BNV E

AEENERHEERDETEBBIVEAERNE
F.TRENBEzE—_ZE-—_T&F+-_A=+—AHK
TE-NF+ A+ BHILEFERKRHREFD
BAEE D MIREEA:

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-HLEE

2020 2019
PR S
S$ % S$ %
g Bat AT ARt
Singapore IR 39,595,455 56.9% 36,495,611 59.8%
Malaysia BRAED 15,881,052 22.8% 15,184,101 24.9%
The PRC fincluding hE (RREEREM)

Hong Kong and Macau] 11,612,353 16.7% 5,416,606 8.9%
Others Mo Hf ) 2,473,367 3.6% 3,062,286 6.4%
Total Bat 69,562,227 100.0% 61,058,604 100.0%
Note:  Others include India, the United Kingdom and Indonesia. izt : HMBIENE EEREE-

The Group's products were largely sold in Singapore and Malaysia
which accounted for approximately 56.9% and 22.8% of total revenue
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2020. The composition
of sales from end consumers in the PRC increased from approximately
8.9% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately 16.7%
for the year ended 31 December 2020 mainly driven by sales to an
OEM customer based in Hong Kong. The large order by the said
customer was due fo increase in demand as consumers in the PRC
[including Hong Kong and Macau) were encouraged fo stay indoors
throughout most of the year 2020 where the tendency to stock up and
consume snack foods increased.

12 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit

The following table sefs forth a breakdown of the Group's gross profit
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019

2020

—B2%E
Revenue Gross profit
6 £7
S$ $$
3K T 3K T
Nuts BR 50,611,699 13,590,663
Chips e 17,489,566 4,667,510
Others Hits 1,460,962 425,093
Total /Overall st/ B 69,562,227 18,683,266

The pricing of the Group’s nuts and chips products are generally based
on prices comparable to competitors for similar products.

The Group's gross profit margin for nuts increased from approximately
25.1% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
26.9% for the year ended 31 December 2020 mainly due to lower
average cosf of certain raw nuts, as the Group purchased in bulk from
its suppliers.

The Group's gross profit margin for chips was relatively stable at
approximately 26.7% and 25.7% for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 respectively.

Overall, the Group's gross profit margin for the year increased from
25.3% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to 26.9% for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

EERED 3L

E7
TREIBE-T-TF+-_A=+-AR-%
—n¢+_ﬁ_+ B IR E AR B E A

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=t+-BLEE

2019
—E-NF
Gross profit Gross profit
margin Revenue Gross profit margin
ERE Yz EH ERE
% S$ S$ %
BO H KT g T B
269% 46,966,438 11,776,815 25.1%
267% 11,651,116 2,994,081 25.7%
29.1% 2,441,050 701,243 28.7%
26.9% 61,058,604 15,472,139 25.3%
AEEZRRES ESNTERYENEIYT
BEERNAIELLREREE -
AEENBRENETRABEZE_FT-NF+-A

=+ —BILEENL2 IS EHEE S T F
T A=+ —HALEFEMNN2069% TETEAR
AEBEHEHEBRARBENE TEBRRNTEY
X AN o

BE_T_ZTFR-_FT-NF+-_A=+—HBLt
FE- ZIS’E@%)#E’J%%'JTﬁxﬂE* D RE S
20.7%K257% °

EEMs AKENENEHEEZE_FT—NF
T-A=1T—HLEFEMNDINEEHE_F—
EFET_A=1T—HILFEN26.9%°
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i EREV S

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

Economic performance in Singapore in the fourth quarter of
2020

The Singapore economy confracted by 2.4% on a yearon-year basis in
the fourth quarter of 2020, an improvement from the 5.8% contraction
in the third quarter of 2020. On a quarteron-quarter seasonally-
adjusted basis, the economy expanded by 3.8%, following the 9.0%
growth recorded in the third quarter of 2020. The strong growth seen
in the third quarter of 2020 was due to the phased resumption of
activities following the circuit breaker that was implemented by the
Singapore government between 7 April 2020 and 1 June 2020 to
slow the spread of Covid-19 in Singapore, as well as the rebound in
activity in major economies during the quarter as they emerged from
their lockdowns.

(Source: The Ministry of Trade and Industry, Singapore]

Overall economic performance in Singapore in 2020

For the whole of 2020, the Singapore economy contracted by 5.4%,
a reversal from the 1.3% growth recorded in 2019.

Economic outlook for 2021

The Ministry of Trade and Industry, Singapore forecasted a gross
domestic product growth for 2021 of between 4.0% and 6.0%.

Toward the end of 2020, there has been further progress in Covid-19
vaccine development and deployment, with several approved vaccines
being rolled out in many economies around the world. Although the
speed of vaccine deployment varies, advanced economies like the
United States of America ["US") and Eurozone are likely to reach
population immunity by the second half of 2021, which should in
furn spur their economic recoveries. On the other hand, the growth
prospects for regional economies such as Malaysia and Indonesia
have weakened due tfo the recent resurgence in infections, which
has necessitated the reimposition of lockdowns and restrictions. On
balance, positive developments in the key external economies broadly
offset the negative ones.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In particular, the US economy is projected to rebound this year on
the back of a recovery in personal consumption expenditure, which
is in furn expected to be bolstered by the injection of additional
fiscal stimulus amidst an improvement in the health situation and the
progressive rollout of vaccines. In the Eurozone, the recent surge in
Covid-19 cases and resulting public health measures to contain the
outbreak are likely to pose a drag on domesfic demand and hence
its economic recovery. Nonetheless, the pace of recovery is expected
to pick up over the course of the year as the deployment of vaccines
becomes more widespread. In Asia, the PRC's economy is projected to
confinue fo sfrengthen this year, driven by healthy growth in investment,
consumption and exports. Meanwhile, the key South East Asia
economies are expected fo post a recovery this year, supported by a
pickup in external demand, even though domestic demand is likely to
be dampened by the recent wave of Covid-19 cases and associated
measures faken fo contain the virus.

At the same time, uncerfainties and risks in the global economy remain.
First, there continues to be significant uncerfainty surrounding the course
of the Covid-19 pandemic and the frajectory of the global economic
recovery. How these pan out in 2021 depends on facfors such as the
adequacy of vaccine supplies and speed of vaccine deployment, the
possible emergence and spread of new strains of the virus, as well
as the strength of policy support to drive economic recovery. Second,
the profracted nature of the economic recovery in many countries
could lead fo financial systfem stresses, which could in turn frigger
a tightening of financial conditions and adversely affect the global
economic recovery. Excessive private sector indebtedness arising from
loose monetary conditions also remains a concern. Third, continued
geopolitical uncerfainty involving the major economies could weigh on
global trade and the global economic recovery.

Domestically, Singapore’s Covid-19 situation remains under confrol with
vaccination programme underway. However, the pace of border re-
opening has slowed amidst the global surge in Covid-19 cases and
the emergence of more confagious strains of the virus.

Against this external and domestic backdrop, the Singapore economy
is expected to see a gradual recovery over the course of 2021,
although the outlook remains uneven across sectors.

(Source: The Ministry of Trade and Industry, Singapore|
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i EREV S

Outlook for the Group and strategies

The Group noted that global snack food market, which includes nuts
and chips will reach US$743.4 billion by 2026, growing by 5.5%
annually over 2020-2026 owing 1o the growing need for snack food
amid Covid-19 pandemic!'.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's revenue and
profits increased despite the challenging macroeconomic environment.
As households in Singapore, Malaysia and the PRC (including Hong
Kong and Macau) were encouraged to stay indoors throughout most
of 2020 to curb the spread of the Covid-19 pandemic, the tendency
fo stock up and consume snack foods increased. The Group was
also a beneficiary fo the government's assistance which was rolled
out in stages to aid businesses cope with challenges arising from the

Covid-19 pandemic.

Notwithstanding the Group's favourable results for the year ended
31 December 2020 and that the Group expecis that demand for snack
products with less sugar, artificial sweeteners and flavourings such as
savoury snacks fo remain resilient even during challenging economic
environment as health awareness is increasing among consumers,
the Group takes cognizance that such favourable results may not be
sustainable as uncertainties and risks in the global economy remain, as
highlighted by the Ministry of Trade and Industry, Singapore.

In Malaysia, the Prime Minister of Malaysia had on 11 January 2021,
announced that cerfain states including Johor (where the Group's
production facilities are located) will be placed under movement
control order ["MCQ"), which has since been extended several times
to 4 March 2021, fo curb the soaring number of Covid-19 cases in
Malaysia. With effect from 5 March 2021

Johor, are subject to conditional MCO, whereby travel between states

, cerfain states including
is still prohibited. Even though the Group's operations are not disrupted,
the Group's customers’ operations in Malaysia are impacted.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was a
beneficiary to the government grants as part of the support measures
by the government which aims to aid businesses cope with challenges
arising from the Covid-19 pandemic. Further to the Budget 2021
announced by the Singapore government on 16 February 2021,
the Group will continue fo have government support for a shorf ferm.
However, there is no certainty that the government's assistance will
continue or that the Group will confinue to be a beneficiary to the
government's assistance after that.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In view of the foregoing, the Group will continue to adopt cautious and
prudent approach in managing its business without compromising the
quality of its products in line with its objectives to maintain sustainable
growth in its business and create longferm shareholders’ value.

The Group shall continue to remain vigilant and monitor the Covid-19
outbreak very closely especially in ifs production faciliies in Malaysia
as the number of cases remains high, and ifs priority is always the well-
being of its consumers and staff.

Note:

L As exiracted from excerpts of the "Global Snack Food market is

anficipated fo grow at a CAGR of 5.5% by 2026" report, which was
made available at www.ozonemarketreports.com as at the date of this
annual report.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately $S$8.5 million
or 13.9% from approximately S$61.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately $$69.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 mainly due to sudden increase in demand
from our customers, especially supermarket and OEM customers. As
households in Singapore, Malaysia and the PRC (including Hong Kong
and Macau) were encouraged fo stay indoors throughout most of the
year 2020 to curb the spread of the Covid-19 pandemic, the tendency

to stock up and consume snack foods increased.

Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales increased by approximately $$5.3 million
or 11.6% from approximately $$45.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately $$50.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 mainly due to the increase in cost of
materials as the Group acquired more materials fo fulfill increased
orders from its customers during the year, consistent with the increase in
revenue.
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Gross profit

The Group's total gross profit increased by approximately $$3.2
million or 20.8% from approximately $$15.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately $S$18.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 in line with the increase in revenue.
The Group's overall gross profit margin increased from approximately
25.3% for the year ended 31 December 2019 fo approximately
26.9% for the year ended 31 December 2020 mainly due fo increase

in gross profit margin for nuts as discussed above.

Other income

The Group's other income increased by approximately $$752,000
or 5.4 times from approximately $$172,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately $$924,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 mainly due to receipt of government grants as
part of the support measures by the government which aims fo aid
businesses cope with challenges arising from the Covid-19 pandemic
and increase in inferest income mainly arising from the unutilised net
proceeds from the Company’s share offer which was placed as fixed
deposits with maturity of between six months and one year.

Other gains and losses

The Group reported other losses of approximately S$158,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2020 compared to other losses of
approximately $$64,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019
even though the Group did not recognise fair value loss on revaluation
of invesiment property for the year ended 31 December 2020 as
compared fo fair value loss on revaluation of investment property of
approximately $$165,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019
The overall losses was mainly due to recognition of lower foreign
exchange gain of approximately $$69,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 as compared to approximately $$218,000
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2019. In addition, the
Group also recognised higher fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments of approximately $$236,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 as compared to approximately S$117,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019 arising from markto-market losses
on ifs forward foreign exchange confracts due fo the depreciation of
the Singapore dollars against the US dollars.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
S$197,000 or 6.2% from approximately $$3.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately $$3.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 mainly due to the lockdowns and
movement control restrictions imposed by the authorities which led to
reduced marketing activities of the Group.

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses was relatively stable at
approximately S$7.4 million and $S$7.5 million for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 respectively.

Listing expenses

The Group incurred and recognised listing expenses of approximately
$$785,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 following ifs
successful listing on the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately $$34,000 or 18.6% from
approximately $S$183,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately S$149,000 for the ended 31 December 2020 due
to lower interest incurred in line with the decrease in bank and other
borrowings.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense increased by approximately S$$0.9 million
or 73.7% from approximately S$1.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately $$2.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 due mainly fo higher profit before taxation. The
Group also had prior year's overprovision of taxation of approximately
S$157,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared to
a prior year's under provision of approximately $$22,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Profit for the year

Profit for the year increased by approximately S$$3.9 million or
2.3 times from approximately $$2.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately $$6.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 mainly due fo increase in revenue, increase in
gross profit margin, increase in other income and no listing expenses
incurred in 2020 as discussed above.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group's source of funds comprises a combination of internally
generated funds, bank and other borrowings and net proceeds from the
share offer. As part of the Group's liquidity risk management, the Group
monitors its working capital to ensure that ifs financial obligations can
be met when due by [i) ensuring healthy bank balances and cash for
payment of ifs shortterm working capifal needs; |ii) monitoring frade
receivables and its aging monthly and following up closely to ensure
prompt payment from customers; and [iii) monitoring bank and finance
lease payments.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's current ratio, being
current assefs over current liabilities was 5.1 times respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank and other borrowings
which were denominated in Singapore dollars, Malaysia Ringgit
and Australian dollars, amounted to approximately $$2.5 million,
which was lower as compared fo approximately $$2.8 million as at
31 December 2019. The Group maintained a relafively low gearing
ratio, based on inferestbearing bank and other borrowings divided
by nef assets, at approximately 0.04 times as at 31 December 2020
(2019: 0.05 times). Further details of the Group's bank and other
borrowings including defails of inferest rates and payment schedule are
set out in Note 24 to the Financial Statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group
provided performance guarantee to cerfain customers with balances
amounted to approximately $$0.3 million respectively.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
The Group has pledged leasehold building, freehold land and building

fo secure general banking facilities granted to the Group with carrying
values of approximately $S$12.7 million and $S$11.9 million as at
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 respectively.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND COMMITMENTS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had incurred

capital expenditures of approximately $$2.0 million as compared to
approximately $$3.5 million in the year ended 31 December 2019.
The expenditures were mainly related fo the purchase of property, plant
and equipment to support the growth of the Group's business.

The Group has capital commitments of approximately $$3.8 million as

at 31 December 2020 (2019: S$1.6 million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December

2020 and 31 December 2019.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since

14 January 2019, being the Llisting Date, and the net proceeds

from the share offer (after deducting listing expenses) amounted to

approximately HK$66.8 million (equivalent to approximately S$11.7

million) (the “Net IPO Proceeds”). The Group has utilised approximately

HK$9.2 million (equivalent to approximately S$1.6 million) of the Net
IPO Proceeds as af 31 December 2020. The following sefs forth a
summary of the allocation of the Net IPO Proceeds and its ufilisation as

at 31 December 2020:

Approximate

FrBFIERARE

ARRBRHE-_E—hhE—A+WmB (ALE™mA
BHRBRmEm BROBEMSKEFHE(E
RAFRBEMSHIEFEE]) (KN EWAY)
HEcOoSEEBBIT (BERWI./EEF MK
L) BEZZEEFF+_A=+—H XEEE
BRABEAARABEMSRETRLNC 28EE T (M8
EROTOABHMET) - TXHINRZEZE
F+_A=t—BoERBABEIHEEME
RIBFREHRE

Unused
Approximate amount of
actual amount net proceeds

Approximate utilised as at as at

amount of percenfage of 31 December 31 December
net proceeds net proceeds 2020 2020
R=-B=%F R=2=%F
Fie%® +=A=t-B +=ZA=t-H
ERE FRORY BAOER HAE A
Use of proceeds FRREAR FENBALH BAk BELE FBNEFHE
(HK$'million] (%) [HKS million] (HKS ' million)
(ABAT) (%) (ABAT) (BEET)
Expansion of exisfing nuts and LERAERRK
potato chips products SRERER 267 40.0 3.0 237
Production and launch of HERERERR
fortilla chips 16.3 24.4 = 16.3
Expansion of workforce BREDN 17.6 26.3 = 17.6
Working capital EEES 6.2 93 6.2
Total @5t 66.8 100.0 9.2 57.6
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The Company had on 5 August 2020 announced a revision fo
the expected timeline to implement its business strategies as sef
out in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 December 2018
(the “Prospectus’] ofter taking info consideration the recent business
environment and development of the Group. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 5 August 2020 for further
details.

As at the date of this annual report, the unutilised Net IPO Proceeds
were deposited with licensed banks in Singapore and Hong Kong.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As the Group sells a maijority of its food products overseas in which
these sales are principally denominated in US$ and sources its main
materials in which these purchases are principally denominated in US$,
Euro and AUD, the Group is exposed to foreign currency exchange
fluctuations arising in the normal course of ifs business operations.

The Group generally hedges 30% of its expected monthly sales and
purchases denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group has a committee in ploce, comprising ifs finance manager
and its executive Directors. The commitiee meets regularly from time o
time when necessary and is responsible for reviewing, researching and
studying the future foreign exchange rates and the methods of hedging.
In deciding whether to enfer into any foreign currency hedging
fransactions, the committee will undertake a cautious approach and
will consider factors including (i) the expected sales and purchases
denominated in Foreign currencies; (i) the historical foreign exchonge
rates; and (iii] the perceived future foreign exchange rates. The finance
manager keeps frack of the Group's hedging activities and all hedging
confracts have to be approved by the executive Directors. As sales and
purchases will continue to be denominated in foreign currencies, the
Croup expects that it will confinue fo enter info hedging arrangements
where necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
R E RO

DIVIDEND

After due consideration of the uncertain macroeconomic outlook ahead
as sef out in the section headed “Outlook and Strategies” of this annual
report, the Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 even though the Group was
profitable (No dividend declared for the year ended 31 December
2019). Nonetheless, the Group's dividend policy has not changed
and the Board will continue to assess whether to recommend dividend
in the next financial period.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had 270 employees and 256 employees as at
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 respectively. The Group
incurred staff costs of approximately $$10.4 million and $$9.5 million
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 respectively.
Remuneration is determined by reference to prevailing market terms
and in accordance with the performance, qudlification and experience
of each individual employee. The Company has adopted a share
option scheme [the “Share Option Scheme”] on 20 December 2018
fo enable the Board to grant share options to eligible participants with
an opportunity fo have a personal stake in the Company with a view
to achieve the following obijectives: (i) motivate the eligible participants
to optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and (i) aftract and retain or otherwise maintain an ongoing business
relationship with the eligible participants whose confributions are or will
be beneficial to the longterm growth of the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, there was no outstanding share option
granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

Biographical defails of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out as follows:

DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lim Seow Yen (“Ms. Sandy Lim"), aged 64, was appointed as
a Director on 19 April 2018. She was re-designated as an executive
Direcfor and appointed as the chairlady of the Board on 5 July 2018.
She is the chairlady of the risk management committee. Ms. Sandy
Lim is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Sandy
Lim has over 30 years of experience in the snacks industry. Ms. Sandy
Lim's core responsibilities lie in operations activities of the Group
including procurement where she sources and plans the supply of raw
materials as well as maintains close working relationship with suppliers,
finance and administration.

Ms. Sandy Lim is the sibling of Mr. Winston Lim and Mr. lawrence
Lim, both being executive Directors. Ms. Sandy Lim is the spouse of
Mr. James Loo and the mother of Mr. Terence Loo, both being members
of the senior management of the Group.

SWIL Limited ("SWL") is interested in /50,000,000 shares (“Share(s)"),
representing 75% of the issued share capifal of the Company. The
issued share capital of SWL is legally and beneficially owned as to
24.5% by Mdm. Han Yew lang ("Mdm. Han"), 24.5% by Ms. Sandy
Lim, 24.5% by Mr. Winston Lim, 24.5% by Mr. Lawrence Lim, 1.0% by
Mr. James Loo and 1.0% by Ms. Ong liow Wah ["Ms. Jillian Ong"),
who are family members. Ms. Sandy Lim is deemed to be inferested in
the Shares in which SWL is interested in under Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO").

Mr. Lim Fung Yee ("Mr. Winsfon Lim"), aged 63, was appointed as
a Director on 19 April 2018. He was re-designated as an executive
Director on 5 July 2018. He is a member of each of the remuneration
commitiee and the risk management committee. Mr. Winston Lim is
also a direcfor of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Winston Lim
has over 30 years of experience in the snacks industry. Mr. Winston
Lim's core responsibilities lie in sales and marketing where he
strafegises business development and product innovation, ascertains
the viability of potential new markets and proactively maintains close
working relationship with the customers of the Group.

EEREREEEREEE

AEFBEEREREEEREHBHIIMT:

EE

HITES

ML ([ E]) 64 RZF—N
FOATNBREZEREE -BR_T—\F+t
ALBRERNITESYRZERESTE IR -
FREAREEZBESEF M IEXLTR/AE
EZHEMNBARNES M/ NELZERAKERM
TRRBEOFER - M NEZIHROBER
BEAKENZERY EREB(ETRAR
FREARE R R RE) Ko B2 4 R 7 4 15 1) 0
BIERRE M RATE

MR Z BN FRERMFEEENRE -
MEFEERMFTELEHDBAITES M IK
I Alames oot EMELE K 2K EENE
o James looft E R Bk BEE AAREERR
EIREKE -

SWL Limited ([SWL 1) F750,000,0000% & {7
(MM (BEREARRBEBEHITRARNZS5%)F
HEED - SWIHEBEBTRAHBRE L ([
ZLl) MR L MEFREE - MAELE
James look ERTEELZ L ([ETEE L 1))
DRNEBERERBER24.5% 24.5%24.5%-
24.5%~1.0%8K1.0% ZZEATHAREKE IR
BEBEOES/NERZH LRGN ([FH K
BRG] EXVER - MR Z LW AR BRSWUER
MNP EEER-

MEFEE (IMEFFERE]D) 3 RZF—N\
FOATNARZEREZ BR_F—N\Ft
ALRBERATEZR -HORRFHEES R
RREEREEKB - MEFEENREAEES
BMEARMNEZ - METFEENKBRMITE
REBEOFLBR -MITFEENROBEREE
FEHTIE EFRABAHERBERIEMRE
B EEEEN MBS TEREGREANE
BRFHERTINAIERER-

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2020 % 25



Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERREFS

Mr. Winston Lim is the sibling of Ms. Sandy lim and Mr. lawrence
lim, both being executive Directors. Mr. Winston Lim is the father of
M. Sean Lim, an executive Director.

SWHL is interested in 750,000,000 Shares, representing 75% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The issued share capital of
SWL is legally and beneficially owned as to 24.5% by Mdm. Han,
24.5% by Ms. Sandy lim, 24.5% by Mr. Winston Llim, 24.5% by
1.0% by Mr. James loo and 1.0% by Ms. Jillian
Ong, who are family members. Mr. Winston Lim is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which SWL is inferested in under Part XV of
the SFO.

M. Llawrence Lim,

Mr. Lim Fung Chor ("Mr. lawrence Lim"), aged 59, was appointed as
a Director on 19 April 2018. He was redesignated as an executive
Director on 5 July 2018. He is a member of each of the nomination
committee and the risk management commitiee. Mr. lawrence Lim is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lawrence Lim
has over 30 years of experience in the snacks indusiry. Mr. lawrence
Lim is currenily responsible for overseeing the Group's production
facilities in Johor, Malaysia fo ensure that the production process as well
as the products adhere fo the relevant standards and/or certifications,
and customers’ requirements.

Mr. lawrence Llim is the sibling of Ms. Sandy Llim and Mr. Winston
Lim, both being executive Directors. Mr. Lawrence Lim is the father of
Mr. Brandon Lim, a member of the senior management of the Group.

SWHL is interested in 750,000,000 Shares, representing 75% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The issued share capital of
SWL is legally and beneficially owned as to 24.5% by Mdm. Han,
24.5% by Ms. Sandy lim, 24.5% by Mr. Winston Llim, 24.5% by
1.0% by Mr. James loo and 1.0% by Ms. Jillian
Ong, who are family members. Mr. lawrence lim is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which SWL is interested in under Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Llawrence Lim,

Mr. Lim Seng Chye (Lin Shengcai) ("Mr. Sean Lim"), aged 36, was
appointed as an executive Director on 5 July 2018. He is a member
of the risk management committee. Mr. Sean Llim joined the Group
in September 2013 as sales representative. He is currently assisting
Mr. Winston Lim in overseeing the overall sales and markefing function
of the Group which includes managing the Group's sales staffs and
compiling and analysing relevant sales information from the Group's
sales staffs.

26 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2020

MEFEERMNEL LM T EELENLE
ML ERMTEAEARRTEZT - HFF
TERPITEEMERM RENRR -

SWLHA750,000,0008% B 15 (I8 E R A QR E %
TTIRAB75%) P AR - SWIHE BE1TRA
BT ML MFFRE-MKFEE
4 vJames looE M T EE LT HRIGERE R
WEAE24.5% 24.5%24.5%24.5%1.0%%1.0%"
ZEANTHARERE - RIEFEFRIBEKRE
XVEB » MR I 5 £ 3 R B SWLEE B 7 25 19 IR 1D
hEERER-

MAEBEE ([MMAELE]) 59 R_T— N
FUNA+NBEZEAES -HR_E—N\Ft
AERAARARTEZ -HORAREZESR
RREEZEEKE - MIBFLEENAEAERS
B ARMMES - MAFLERN KB RBIT
EZBAFLH - MIHLERBEERAS
BANAERADZHMEERE UWEREETL
FREGFHTEHBERER SHRBEREFPHEK-

MABEEERWNERZERMFTFTRENILE
WL E AT FREARNTESZT - MO H
EERAEERRERBREMERL LN

SWLA750,000,0008% B 15 (FB & R A A FE %
TTIRAB75%) P AR - SWIHE EITRA
BT M) BLT MFFRE-KFHEE
4 vJames look AR ETFHEE LI HRIEGERE R
BEHE24.5%24.5%24.5%24.5%~1.0%%1.0%"

ZEANTHARERKE - RIBEFFRIBEKRE

XVER  #RJ5 B e E R AR SWIE B # = M IR (7
hEA R

MAER KL (HRERELE]) 365 RZF—N
itﬁﬂﬁ%*&ﬁﬁﬂﬁi% BEREBREEZR
BERB -MAEMELER _iﬂﬂbu)\$

KEETHERK HE A TmﬁjJM“ﬁﬁ‘EE
AEENEBHEREHTE: @%EIEK%I
HHEABARRER DT ASEHE AB/HE



Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

He obtained a Diploma in Microelectronics from Temasek Polytechnic
in June 2006 and a letter of Merit for High Achiever Award from The
Republic of Singapore Air Force in February 2008.

Mr. Sean Lim is the son of Mr. Winston Lim, an executive Director.

Mr. Zhang Junli (3&F 1) ("Mr Zhang”) aged 33, was oppointed
as executive Director on 27 September 2019. Mr Zhang obtained
a master degree in arts with major in journalism and communication
from Shenzhen University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
in 2015 and a bachelor degree with major in communication from
lanzhou University of Finance and Economics in the PRC in 2012.
Mr. Zhang also obtained the fund practice qualification and the
securities practice qualification in 2015. Mr. Zhang joined &I
KA EYEHEBERAA (ransliterated as Shenzhen Weicky Biotech
Co., lid.) in July 2015, being a company principally engaged in the
development, production and sales of food products. He is currently
serving as a provincial manager, responsible for implementing and
supervising marketing strategy, sales plans and for achieving regional
sales targets, cost control and payment collection; promoting new
products, exploring new markets and cusfomers fo expand product
sales scope; and providing customer service and maintaining cusfomer
relationship.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Ka Yu (“Mr. Chan”), aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 December 2018. He is
currenﬂ\/ the chairman of the audit committee and member of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. Mr. Chan
obtained his Bachelor of Commerce degree in accounting from Hong
Kong Shue Yan University in October 2009. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 2009.

Mr. Chan has over 10 years of professional accounting and financial
reporting experience. From July 2004 to July 2007, Mr. Chan was an
accountant at Kam & Cheung, Certified Public Accountants. From July
2007 to August 2010, he was a senior auditor af World Link CPA
Limited. From September 2010 to April 2012, he worked at BDO
Limited (which was formerly known as JBPB & Company), initially as a
senior accountant and subsequently promoted as a senior associate.
From May 2012 to April 2013, he worked as an investor relations
officer for Fantasia Group (China) Company limited, a subsidiary of
Fantasio Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1777), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Since June 2013, he has been working as the chief financial officer
of CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited (formerly
known as Runway Global Holdings Company Limited) (stock code:
1520), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan is currenfly an independent non-executive director of Dragon
Rise Group Holdings Limited [stock code: 6829) since January 2018
and Yield Go Holdings Lid. (stock code: 1796) since December
2018, both being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. lee Yan Fai ("Mr. lee"), aged 36, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 December 2018. He s
currently the chairman of the remunerafion commitiee and member of
the audit committee and the nomination committee. Mr. lee obtained
his Bachelor of Accounting degree from the Napier University, United
Kingdom and his Master of Professional Accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. lee has been a practising accountant in Hong Kong since 2014.
He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Insfitute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Taxation Insfitutfe of Hong Kong. He is also a
member of The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Mr. lee has over 10 years' exfensive experience by working in
infernational audit firms and other listed companies. Mr. lee was the
financial controller of each of Bisu Technology Group International
limited (stock code: 1372) from August 2015 until December 2018
and Sino Golf Holdings Llimited (stock code: 361) from September
2015 until December 2018, both being companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. lee is currently a director of Yongtuo

Fuson CPA Limited.

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou lJieyao) ("Mr. Chew"), aged 47,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 20
December 2018. He is currently the chairman of the nominafion
committee and member of the remuneration committee and the
audit committee. Mr. Chew obtained his Bachelor in Engineering
degree from the National University of Singapore in July 1998 and
subsequently obtained his Master of Business Administration from the
National University of Singapore in April 2004. He went on fo obtain
professional qualifications, namely, Project Management Professional
(PMP) in June 2010, Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL)
Expert in August 2012 and Certified Chief Information Security Officer
in October 2017.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chew has over 8 years of experience in the information fechnology
field. He was the chief technology officer of Mobile Credit Payment Pre
ltd, a payment technology and merchant service company from 2012
until 2017 Prior to that, he was business support manager for Orange
Business Services, a global telecommunication operafor and information
technology services company, from 2009 until 2012.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Mok Tang Eng ("Mr. John Mok”), aged 65, joined the Group in
January 2014 as the manufacturing manager. Mr. John Mok is primarily
responsible for monitoring the production flow, increase quality and
stabilisation of production, improve production procedure and reduce
production costing and overhead. Mr. John Mok obtained his Diploma
in Management from the Malaysian Institute of Management in January
1992, Mr. John Mok became a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Management in January 1991.

Mr. Loo Soon Hock James ("Mr. James loo"), aged 64, joined the
Group since January 1985. Mr. James loo has over 30 years of
experience in the snacks industry. In January 2017, he was promoted
fo senior sales manager where he is responsible for overseeing and
handling direct businessto-business sales with focus on hospitality
and wholesale cusfomers including overseeing the deliveries fo the
cusfomers, sourcing for new potential customers and maintaining close
relationship with the cusfomers.

Mr. James Loo is the spouse of Ms. Sandy Lim, an executive Director,
and the father of Mr. Terence loo, a member of the senior management
of the Group.

Mr. Er Eng Hui ("Mr. Ricky Er"), aged 60, joined the Group since
January 1985, Mr. Ricky Er has over 30 years of experience in the
snacks industry. In January 2017, he was promoted tfo senior sales
manager where he is responsible for overseeing and handling direct
business-fobusiness sales to major supermarket chains in Singapore
including overseeing the promotional activities in the supermarkets and
maintaining close relationship with the cusfomers.
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Mr. Lloo Yong Keong Terence (Lu Yonggiang) (“Mr. Terence Loo”),
aged 36, joined the Group in June 2014 as the finance manager.
Mr. Terence loo is primarily responsible for overseeing the Group's
working capital needs, financial performance, income, cashflow
and expenditure, overall preparation, management and monitoring
of corporafe budgeting, overseeing human resources department
and development of business process and accounting policies. The
finance team led by Mr. Terence loo will provide advice to the Board
and coordinate with the sales and procurement teams to manage
risks related to suppliers (such as credit terms provided by suppliers),
customers (such as pricing strategy and credit period granted to
customers) and banks (such as interest rate and cash level) so that the
Group can attain an optimal cashflow position and maximise profit.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Terence Loo has worked in the financial
industry for over 3 years. He obtained his undergraduate degree in
Bachelor of Finance from the Australian National University in July
2011 and postgraduate degree in Master of Professional Accounting
from Singapore Management University in June 2020.

Mr. Terence Loo is the son of Ms. Sandy Lim an executive Director, and
Mr. James Lloo, a member of the senior management of the Group.

Mr. Lim Sheng Kwong (“Mr. Brandon Llim"), aged 31, joined the
Group in February 2014 as assistant sales manager. He subsequently
transferred to being an assistant production manager and is currenily
assisting M. Lawrence Lim in overseeing the overall production funcfion
of the Group. Mr. Brandon Lim obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from
Murdoch University majoring in management marketing in June 2015.

Mr. Brandon Lim is the son of Mr. Lawrence Lim, an executive Director.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan So Fun ("Ms. Chan"), age 52, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 20 December 2018.
Ms. Chan is currently a partner at the law firm of Michcel Li & Co.,
specialising in corporate finance work including initial public offerings,
mergers and acquisitions and restructuring. Ms. Chan is a practising
solicitor and was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in November
2007. She received a degree of Bachelor of Llaws from the University
of london in August 2004. She obtained a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Hong Kong in December 1998
and she also obtained a degree of Bachelor of Social Science from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1992. Ms. Chan
has been the company secretary of BHCC Holding Limited (stock
code: 1552) since August 2017, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Prior to embarking her legal career, Ms. Chan
has over five years of experience in marketing and corporate
communications.
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The Board is pleased fo present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and through
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the production, packaging
and sale of nuts and chips with frack record of more than 50 years.
The core products include roasted nuts, baked nuts, potato chips and
cassava chips. The products have been sold and distributed to over 10
counfries, including Singapore, Malaysia, the PRC, India, the United
Kingdom and Indonesia.

The particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 35 to the Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 are sef out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2020 are sef out in
the Financial Statements.

After due consideration of the uncertain macroeconomic outlook
ohead as set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report, the Board has resolved not fo
recommend any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 even
though the Group was profitable. Nonetheless, the Group's dividend
policy has not changed and the Board will continue to assess whether
to recommend dividend in the next financial period.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy on 20 December 2018,
which sefs out the approach in recommending dividends, to allow the
shareholders to participate in the Group's profits and for the Group
fo retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company’s ability
to pay dividends will depend upon, among other things, the Group's
current and future operations, financial position, development pipeline,
prevailing economic environment, contractual restrictions, capital and
other reserve requirements, dividends received from the Company's
subsidiaries and associates, as well as any other conditions or factors
which the Board deems relevant. The form, frequency and amount
of dividend payment by the Company are subject fo any restrictions
under the memorandum and articles of association (the “Articles”) of the
Company, the applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the
Cayman Islands and any other laws and regulations applicable fo the
Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are sef out in Note 13 fo
the Financial Statements.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the shareholders’ rights to attend and
vote at the AGM 1o be held at 10:00 a.m. on 31 May 2021 af
255 Pandan loop, Singapore 128433, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 26 May 2021 to 31 May 2021,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
non-egistered shareholders must lodge all completed transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates with the Company's
branch share registrar and fransfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Llimited, at level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 25 May
2021.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group in the form of a comparative table for the last five financial
years is set out in the section headed “Financial Highlights” of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has complied
with all applicable laws and regulations in relation o environmental
protections, including, but not limited to The Environmental Protection
and Management Act (Chapter 94A of Singapore), Environmental
Quality (Industrial Effluent) Regulations 2009 (Malaysia) and
Environmental Quality [Sewage) Regulations 2009. In 2020, the
Group was not subject to any material claims or penalties in relation o
environmental protection.

Detfails of the Group’s environmental, social and governance
performance for the year ended 31 December 2020 can be found in
in the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has in place compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated
with the continuing obligation to monitor adherence to and compliance
with all significant legal and regulatory requirements by the Group.

To the best knowledge of the Board, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to its business and industry in
Singapore and Malaysia in all material aspects during the year ended

31 December 2020.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board is aware that the Group's financial condition, results of
operation, businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties. The key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group are set out as follows:

(i)  The Group's business is seasonal

The Group experiences seasonal fluctuations in its revenue and
operating income for ifs products. The Group generally records
higher revenue for its products during the holiday seasons, such
as the Chinese New Year, Hari Raya Puasa and Chrisimas.
The seasonal nature of its products causes its production lines o
operate at levels approaching full capacity during certain times of
the year to meet the demand particularly for the holiday seasons.
As a result of these fluctuations, sales and operating results for
any particular period may not necessarily be indicative of the
Group's results for the full year or future periods. The Group's
results of operations are likely to confinue to fluctuate due to
seasonality.

(i) The Group's profitability may be adversely affected by
fluctuations in material prices

The Group purchases all its materials which mainly comprise
various types of nuts and beans including peanuts, cashews,
pistachios, almonds, macadamia nuts, USA walnuts, broad
beans and green peas, as well as fresh potatoes and cassava
roofs from third party suppliers. lts cost of materials accounted for
more than 80% of its cost of sales. The quality and price of its
materials are dependent on the output of the harvest which may
be affected by events beyond its control such as natural disasters,
infectious diseases, pest infestations and climate change. The
Group's suppliers may not be able to confinue fo provide
materials in sufficient quantities and of suitable quality at an
acceptable price fo safisfy the Group's production needs should
there be a bad harvest. Any inferruptions to its material supplies
could materially and adversely affect its production and business
operation.
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(iii) The Group relies on certain third party suppliers

The Group's purchases from its five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 49.2% of its total purchases for the year

ended 31
suppliers will continue to supply materials af prices and on terms

December 2020. There is no assurance that these

and conditions accepfable to the Group. The materials from its
suppliers may be offected by natural disasters, infectious diseases,
pest infestations and climate change which may expose the
Group fo the risk of price fluctuation and availability of supplies.
Should there be any disruptions in the operations of its suppliers
which affect the supply of materials, there is no assurance
that the Group will be able fo locate alternative suppliers with
sufficient quantities of suitable quality at an acceptable price and
commercial terms, which could then materially and adversely
affect its business, overall profitability and financial performance.

For other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, please refer to the
section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

SHARE CAPITAL

Defails of the movements in the share capifal of the Company are sef
out in Note 26 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020 are sef out in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” in the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Group, as calculated
under the Companies law of the Cayman Islands, was approximately

S$33.1 million.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, the Group
has made charitable donations of approximately S$89,000 and
S$162,000 respectively.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately 68.0%
of the tofal revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 whilst the largest customer accounted for approximately 27.8%
of the tofal revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2020.

The Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 49.2%
of the Group’s fotal purchases during the year ended 31 December
2020 whilst the largest supplier accounted for approximately 23.2%
of the fotal purchases of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2020.

At all times during the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the
Direcfors or any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or any shareholder (who, to the best knowledge of the Direcfors, own
more than 5% of number of issued Shares) had an interest in any of the
five largest customers or five largest suppliers of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2020.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 20 December
2018. The ferms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with
the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Llisting Rules. The following is a
summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme:

(A) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an
incentive or a reward to eligible persons for their contribution
fo the Group and/or to enable the Group fo recruit and refain
high-calibre employees and atiract human resources that are
valuable to the Group or any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interest (“Invested Entity”).
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(B)

(C)

(D)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme
The participants of the Share Option Scheme shall be:

(1) any employee (whether full-time or parttime] of the
Company, any of the subsidiaries and any Invested Entity;

(2) any director [including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any
of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(3)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(4)  any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(5)  any consuliant, adviser, manager, officer or entity that
provides research, development or other technological
support fo the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(6] any person who, in the sole discrefion of the Board, has
confributed or may contribute fo the Group or any Invested
Entity eligible for options under the Share Option Scheme.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme

Under the Share Option Scheme, the total number of Shares
which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all share
opfions to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the number of issued shares as at 14 January
2019, being the Llisting Date, unless the Company obtains a
fresh approval from the shareholders.

As at the date of this annual report, a fotal of 100,000,000
Shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company, are available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Share Option Scheme

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period up fo and including
the date of grant of the options must not exceed 1% of the fotal
number of Shares in issue.

38 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2020

(B)

(C)

(D)

BRESENSREE
BRESEN2BERR:

(1) A2 EEAMHERERREMRE
EENIMARERE (TwERERBE
3)

mn o

\

AN

AEHEEMHEBRRHEMRE
BNERNER (BRI FFEHIT
KRB IFMITESE) :

(2)

m Bt

/

(3) AKENERKERARSEAREE
B8 B () 78 i SRR A (L PE P

(4) AEBREAREEBHEMNES

(5) EfAAKELERE B BREH-T
7T PSSk L M Rl SR B (AT
FRAAL KE SABMEXRER X

(6] EFS2ENBERREERALEAR
SEARR 2T ALRRBRERE
AERERESEBREZEAREER

ptiic}
g ©

g%%&%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁm&ﬁ%
REBIE 8 AREBRES B RAA
A 1] £ f1h 8 AR BB 9 L O P R AR
RERETT {8 0 AT AL B R B AT O BR A MR Bk A AL
FERBR-—T—AF—A+WA BLH
BB TG BEE 0% BIEARF
HERR R BT HE e B B AER5 -

RAFRAH REBRETE S K
100,000,000 8 {7 (A AR B2 #ITRA
10%) Al T 317 °

BRESTBARTSSRENKIR
]

BEEBRERLAS (BFZA) LER
ToEAKRE B EE TS 2EEY
FRRETGRBERITRHBEDT% -



(E)

(F)

(C)

(H)

Each grant of share options to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, is subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive Directors. In addition, any grant of share options
fo a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Direcfor, or fo any of their associates, resulting in the Shares
issued and fo be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) fo such person, in a 12-month period
up fo and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of
the Shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting of the Company.

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

The period during which an option may be exercised is
defermined by the Board at its discrefion, save that such period
shall not be longer than 10 years from the date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

As defermined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option and
the period within which payments shall be made

A consideration of S$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of
grant of an option where the grantee should accept or decline
the offer of grant of an option within the date as specified in the
offer letter issued by the Company, being a date not later than
21 business days from the date upon which it is made.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular option
granfed under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and notified
fo an eligible person, and shall be at least the higher of: (1) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, (2] the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheefs for the five consecufive business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and (3) the nominal
value of a share on the date of grant.

(E)

(F)

()

(H)
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()  The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 vyears from 20 December 2018, being the
adoption date, until 19 December 2028.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption on
20 December 2018, and there is no outstanding share option as

at 31 December 2020.

As af the dafe of this annual report, there was no outstanding
share opfion granted under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who served for the year ended 31 December 2020 and

up fo the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Llim Seow Yen (Chairlady)"
M. Lim Fung Yeel!

Mr. Llim Fung Chor'!

Mr. Llim Seng Chye (Lin Shengcai)®
Mr. Zhang Junli®®

Notes:

(1) Appointed as Director on 19 April 2018 [date of incorporation of the
Company) and were re-designated as executive Director on 5 July 2018.

[2)  Appoinfed as executive Director on 5 July 2018.

[3)  Appointed as executive Direcfor on 27 September 2019.

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Ka Yu

Mr. Llee Yan Fai

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao)

Note: All appointed as independent non-executive Directors on 20 December

2018.

40 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2020

() BBMRAEsT&IAYRERHIR
BREraEe =N \F+=-A=1+8"
M BEHeE_—_T_-_NF+A+AIA
IETOF MR A AR R AR -

BEREAIN _FE-NF+_A=-1H
TE TR A DA TR - 15 4 T AR R AR U R AR A 81
B 1T FHARBER _F_FTF
T-A=+—H BERRITENERE-

RAFRA Y SEREERE IR
RITREHFERHE -

EE

BE_Z-_ZTFE+_A=t+-BLEEREEAR
FROMEHRBESNOT :

BITES:
MRz (EF) N
MITF AN

M7 EFEAEN
MAE R S A2
RAEMBELS

B 5E -

il RIZE—NFHA+IE (KRARZEMRIA
HEETAEERR-_Z—N\E+ATHEH
ERBNITES-

2) RZE-N\FLARBEZEARNITES-

(3) RZB-NFALAZT+LHEZTAERTES-

BUFHITES:

BRRFLE

TERBEE

AR E

BizE: HAR-ZT-N\F+_A-TBEZEARBIHF
WMITES-



Pursuant to article 108(a) of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one+hird of the Directors, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third,
shall refire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject fo refirement by rofation at least once every three years and
shall then be eligible for re-election. As such, Mr. Llim Seng Chye and
Mr. Chan Ka Yu will retire from office as Directors at the forthcoming
AGM, being eligible, and offer themselves for re-election. Mr. Zhang
Junli will retire from office as Director at the forthcoming AGM, but will
not offer himself for re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE AGREEMENT

Save for Mr. Zhang Junli, each executive Director is appointed under o
service agreement for a ferm of three years from the Listing Date which
is terminable by either party by giving three months" written nofice to
the other party.

Mr. Zhang Junli is appointed under a letter of appointment for an initial
term of one year from 27 September 2019, which is terminable by
either party by giving one month’s written notice fo the other party.

Each independent nonexecutive Director is appointed under a lefter
of appointment for a term of three years from the listing Date which is
terminable by either party by giving one month’s written notice to the
other party.

None of our Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has an unexpired service confract which is not determinable by our
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation [other than statufory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Direcfors and the senior management
of the Group are set in the section headed “Biographical Details of the
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S
BUSINESS

Save for the related party fransactions as disclosed in Note 31 fo the
Financial Statements, no Director and/or any of his/her connected
enfity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
fransactions, arrangements or confracts of significance fo the business
of the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisted at any fime

during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND THE
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of the associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required: (a) fo be nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant fo Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were faken or deemed fo have under
such provisions of the SFO); (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
fo be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be nofified fo
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 fo the Listing Rules, were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES OF SWL LIMITED,
AN ASSOCIATED CORPORATION OF THE COMPANY

Name of Directors Capacity/nature of interest

BEEnA B0 EmME
Lim Seow Yen Beneficial owner
R/ BEamEBA
Lim Fung Yee Beneficial owner
M5 F BEamEEA
Lim Fung Chor Beneficial owner
7 EmlEAA

Note: SWL Limited held in aggregate 750,000,000 Shares, representing 75%
of the issued share capital of the Company. The issued share capital of
SWL Llimited is legally and benéficially owned as to 24.5% by Mdm.
Han Yew lang, 24.5% by Ms. Lim Seow Yen, 24.5% by Mr. Lim Fung
Yee, 24.5% by Mr. Lim Fung Chor, 1.0% by Mr. loo Soon Hock James
and 1.0% by Ms. Ong Lliow Wah.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any inferests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company [within the meaning of Part XV of the SFOJ, which were
required: (a) fo be nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant fo Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
fo be entered in the register referred fo therein, or [c] pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Compony] and entities had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholder Capacity/nature of inferest

R A B EEHE
SWIL Limited Beneficial owner
SWIL Limited BEnEA A

Note: The issued share capital of SWL Limited is legally and beneficially owned
as fo 24.5% by Mdm. Han Yew lang, 24.5% by Ms. Lim Seow Yen,

24.5% by Mr. Lim Fung Yee, 24.5% by Mr. Lim Fung Chor, 1.0% by
Mr. Loo Soon Hock James and 1.0% by Ms. Ong Liow Wah.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, so far as

the Direcfors are aware, no other persons (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) or entities had any inferests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company, which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under secfion 336 of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Opfion Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered info or subsisted by the Company at the year ended

31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 were rights fo
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective associates
nor was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a parly fo any
arrangement.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, details of the material
related party fransactions undertaken in the normal course of business
are sef out in Note 31 o the Financial Statements.

Save as disclosed in Note 31 to the Financial Statements, the Group
has not engaged in any other connected transactions and/or related

party fransactions during the year ended 31 December 2020.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS'
REMUNERATION

The Group believes that the remuneration package fo its employees is
in line with local industries. It offers its employees medical insurance
coverage. The Group also offers its employees discretionary bonus
depending on their respective performance and profitability of the
Group which encourages their individual performance and then to
confribute fo their departmental performance as well. The emoluments
of the Directors are reviewed and approved by the remuneration
committee of the Board, having regard to factors including remuneration
paid by comparable companies, fime commitment, job duties and
responsibilities in respect of the relevant positions. The Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme, defails of which are set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest poid
individuals in the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in Note 10 to the Financial Statements. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, there was no arrangement under which
any Direcfor had waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the

year ended 31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a proTata basis o existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
shareholders and protecting and enhancing shareholders’ value
through good corporate governance. The Directors recognise that a
good corporate governance is essential for the Company to achieve
its objectives and drive improvement, as well as maintain legal and
ethical standing in the eyes of shareholders, regulators and the general
public. The Company is committed fo the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a sfrong independent element on
the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
"Corporate Governance Code”) confained in Appendix 14 fo the
Listing Rules. To the best knowledge of the Board, for the year ended
31 December 2020, the Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance Code which are applicable to the Company. For details,
please refer o the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the listing Rules as its code of conduct governing the Directors’
securities transactions and each of the Directors has confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that he/she had complied
with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2020.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors a written annual confirmation of independence, and the
Company considers that each of them is independent and has met the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors

IN A COMPETING

or their respective close associates had interests in businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group pursuant fo the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

SWIL limited, Mdm. Han Yew lang, Ms. Lim Seow Yen, Mr. Llim Fung
Yee, Mr. lim Fung Chor, Mr. loo Soon Hock James and Ms. Ong
liow Wah (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) entered into
a deed of non-competition dated 20 December 2018 in favour of
the Company and the subsidiaries (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling
Shareholders has irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken to the
Company |for itself and for the benefit of the subsidiaries|, among
others, that, during the period which (i) the Shares remain listed in the
Stock Exchange and (i) the Controlling Shareholder and their close
associates (other than members of the Group] individually or jointly,
are entitfled to exercise, or control the exercise of, not less 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company or control the Board. He/she/it
shall not, and shall procure that his/her/its close associates (other than
any member of the Group) not to carry on or be engaged, concerned
or interested, or otherwise be involved directly or indirectly, in any
business in compefition with or likely to be in competition with the
existing business activity of any member of the Group or any business
activity to be conducted by any member of the Group from fime to
time.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders further undertakes that if any
project or new business opportunity which may compete with the
business of the Group is identified by or offered to him/her/it,
he/she/it shall procure that his/her/its close associates to prompily
nofify the Group in writing and the Group shall have a right of first
refusal to take up such opportunity. The Group shall within 30 business
days after the receipt of the writlen notice, notify the Controlling
Shareholders whether the Group will exercise the right of first refusal.
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The Company has received a written confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of the compliance with and the enforcement
of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling
Shareholders during the year ended 31 December 2020. All
independent non-executive Direcfors have reviewed the compliance
of the Deed of Non-competition entered into by the Controlling
Shareholders as to whether the Controlling Shareholders had abided
by the Deed of non-Competition. All independent non-executive
Directors also confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had  not
been in breach of the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended
31 December 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as at the date of this
annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that its employees are valuable assets for
the Group's contfinuous development and endeavours to provide
competitive remuneration package and various benefits to affract and
refain its talents. Employees are remunerated according to their job
scope, responsibilifies, and performance. Employees are also enfifled
to discretionary bonus depending on their respective performance and
profitability of the Group. Other form of remuneration packages include
medical insurance coverage for all employees and leaves including
marriage, matemity, paternity, childcare leaves and compassionate
leaves.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme to recognise
and motivate contributions of its employees. Further defails regarding
the Share Option Scheme are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Option Scheme” above.

The Group maintains a close relationship with ifs customers and
suppliers. The Group has approximately 30 years of relationship with
its largest customer, which is the largest supermarket chain in Singapore
with a network of over 200 outlets and approximately 20 years of
relationship with its largest supplier, which is a grower, processor and
infernational frader and exporter of nuts and dried fruits.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

As required by the Singapore and Malaysia law, the Group makes
contribution to the Central Provident Fund and the Employees Provident
Fund which provides for the refirement benefits for eligible employees in
Singapore and Malaysia respectively. Both the employer and employee
are required to make contributions into the employee’s individual
account in the Cenfral Provident Fund or the Employees Provident Fund
at a specified percentage of the employee’s monthly income. As at
the date of this annual report, the Group is in compliance with this
requirement.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director or other officers of the Company
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profifs
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
domages and expenses which they or any of them may sustain or incur
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices.

The Company has taken appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
Directors’ and officers’ liability for the year ended 31 December 2020.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No confract concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any subsfantial part of the business of the Company was entered
info or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER'S INTERESTS

As notified by the Company's compliance adviser, Vinco Capital
Limited (the "Compliance Adviser"), except for the compliance adviser
agreement entered info between the Company and the Compliance
Adviser dated 20 December 2018, neither the Compliance Adviser
nor ifs directors, employees or close associates had any inferests
in relafion to the Company, which is required o be notified to the
Company pursuant fo the Listing Rules.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events affer the year ended 31 December
2020 and up fo the date of this annual report.

REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) has three members,
consisting of all the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Ka
Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and Mr. Chew Keat Yeow. Mr. Chan Ka Yu is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee had reviewed this annual report (including the
Financial Statements) and the annual results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 and had submitted
the same to the Board for approval. The Audit Commitiee were of the
opinion that the Financial Statements, the results announcement and this
annual report had been prepared in compliance with the applicable
accounting standards, requirements and the Listing Rules, and that
adequate disclosure had been made.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Company appointed Deloitte & Touche LIP as auditor of the
Compoany for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Financial
Statements were audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP. Deloite & Touche
LLP will refire, and being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM fo re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as the external auditor of the
Company until the conclusion of the next AGM and to authorise the
Board fo fix their remuneration.

On behalf of the Board
Lim Seow Yen
Chairlady and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
shareholders and protecting and enhancing shareholders” value through
good corporate governance.

The Directors recognise that a good corporafe governance is essential
for the Company to achieve its objectives and drive improvement, as
well as maintain legal and ethical standing in the eyes of shareholders,
regulators and the general public.

The Company has been listed on the Stock Exchange since 14 January
2019, being the listing Date. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code confained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. To the best knowledge of the Board, for the year ended
31 December 2020, the Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance Code which are applicable to the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code states that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Ms. Lim Seow Yen is the Chairlady of the Board. As the Chairlady,
Ms Llim Seow Yen manages the board's business and acfivities and
provides guidance and direction to other board members to ensure
that the Board works effectively and acts in the best interest of the
Company.

The Company has no such position as the chief executive officer and
therefore the daily operation and management of the Company is
monifored by the executive Directors as well as the senior management
of the Group. The Board believes that there is sufficient balance of
power and authority as there are five experienced executive Directors
each overseeing various aspects of the business, namely finance and
operations, sales and marketing and production functions. In addition,
there are three independent non-executive Directors who are sufficiently
experienced and capable of monitoring the operations of the Group.
The Board will meet from time to fime to discuss issues arising from
operations of the Group.

B0 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2020

ARBBARBETHEBRRNEELEBRIFH
CEEARERRESBRRERE

EFRARFNLRTAHAAARRKARR
BB TEMENRERR BERBRARNE
BTRBA LB ENEE -

AARBAZZE—NF—A+WMB (BN EWHE)
RERBEARFT B o R QR B4 48 BI B 8%
THHCEE AT - BEETHMM HE=
E-EF+ A=+ —BHIEE ARR—HE
THEARARBINEEE AT

FERITHRAHR

RERERSTRISTRIMERICA 2 EETR » EEEITH
rENAEREES Y TERHR—BALHRE-

MNELEREZTGIR -ERIRFE ML
TEERESEEHMNADYRNEBEFTEKER
s kT AEREZSSEBERCEFERALR
AREN @R

ARRWBWELITRAE B RARBNAEF
BEREEAAEENTEENEREEBESR -
EXeRA HRNEREKRREENNTESY
MEEERBMSETE MFKEREE HER
EHEANMEERE AxoFEBREEEN 1
IhEEENA-REREERENEELALE
EENBYIRNTEZ - EXZQRTREHER
Aelmm A REEEELANER



MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Direcfors of listed Issuers as set forth in Appendix 10 fo the Listing
Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions of the
Direcfors. Employees of the Group (the “Relevant Employees”] who,
because of their office or employment, are likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Company or ifs securities are also subject
fo compliance with the Model Code. Following specific enquiry,
each of the Directors has confirmed compliance with the Model Code
December 2020. No incident of

non-compliance of the Model Code by the Relevant Employees was

throughout the year ended 31

noted by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises eight members as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Lim Seow Yen (Chairlady)
M. Llim Fung Yee

Mr. Llim Fung Chor

Mr. Lim Seng Chye (lin Shengcai)
Mr. Zhang Junli

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Ka Yu

M. Lee Yan Fai

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report. The relationships between the members of the
Board are also disclosed under the same section.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board af all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of af
least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third
of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to Code provision A.4.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, nonexecutive directors shall be appointed for a specific ferm,
subject fo reelection, whereas according to Code provision A.4.2
of the Corporate Governance Code, all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting affer appointment and that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to refirement by
rofafion at least once every three years.

Each of Ms. Llim Seow Yen, Mr. lim Fung Yee, Mr. Lim Fung Chor and
Mr. Llim Seng Chye, all being executive Directors, is appointed under
a service agreement for a term of three years from the listing Date
which is terminable by either party by giving three months’ written
notice to the other party. Mr. Zhang Junli, being an executive Director,
is appointed under a letter of appointment for a term of one year from
27 September 2019 which is tferminable by either party by giving
one month's written notice fo the other party. Each of Mr. Chan Ka
Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and Mr. Chew Keat Yeow, all being independent
non-executive Directors, is appointed under a letter of appointment for
a term of three years from the Listing Date which is terminable by either
party by giving one month's writfen notice to the other party.

In accordance with the Arficles, at each annual general meeting
one-hird of the Directors shall refire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rofation at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at the
general meefing at which a Director refires may fill the vacated office.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board, led by the Chairlady, Ms. Llim Seow Yen, determines and
monitors the overall strategy and policies, annual budgets and business
plans, evaluates the performance of the Group, and supervises the
management of the Company.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among other
things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review of the corporate
and financial policies, review and assessment of the Company's
financial reporting, internal control and risk management systems and
the oversight of the management of the Group's business and affairs.
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All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. All Directors have full and fimely access to all
the information of the Company as well as the services and advice
from the senior management. The Direcfors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Direcfors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from
each Direcfor to perform his responsibilities to the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board had adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy’) on 20 December 2018, which sefs out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of
board members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, infegrity, management experience,
technical skills, industry or professional knowledge and experience. All
Board appointments are based on meritocracy, and candidates are
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee of the Board had reviewed the Board
Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness and considered that the
Group had achieved board diversity for the year ended 31 December
2020.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board had adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
on 20 December 2018, which sefs ouf the approach fo defermine
the nomination of Directors, the procedure, process and criteria fo be
adopted for the purposes of selecting and recommending candidates
for diredorship, and shall make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular, the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer.
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The Company considered that, in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate, the nomination committee of the Board may make
reference to cerfain criferia, including but not limited fo, the experience
in the Compony's principo| business ond/or the indusTry in which the
Company operates, balance of skills, knowledge and experience on
the Board, and various aspects sef out in the Board Diversity Policy.

The nomination committee of the Board had reviewed the Nomination
Policy fo ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Board has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience required for the business of

the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS" CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company.

A newly appointed Director will receive formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their confribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. All Directors were encouraged to attend relevant fraining
courses at the Company's expense.
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BOARD PROCESS

The Group has in place a clear board process. Regular Board
meetings are scheduled at least four fimes per year. Directors receive
ot least 14 days’ prior written nofice of regular Board meetings and
agenda. The Board papers, including supporting analyses and relevant
background information, are normally sent 1o all Directors at least three
days before the Board meeting. For other Board meetings, Directors are
given as much nofice as possible in the circumstances. Directors may
include any matters they wish fo discuss in the agenda.

Minutes of the Board and commitiee meetings are prepared and kept
by the company secretary of the Group, and are open for inspection
by Directors upon request. All Direcfors have access to the advice and
services of the company secrefary, and are allowed fo seek external
professional advice if needed.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board had eight

meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees, including the
Audit Committee,
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)

the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration

and the risk management committee (the “Risk Management
Committee”) to oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board committees are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are posted on
the Company's website (www.taisun.com.sg) and the Stock Exchange's
website [www.hkexnews.hk) and are available to shareholders upon
request. The Board commitiees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their dufies.
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Audit Committee

The Group established the Audit Commitiee on 20 December 2018
of the
listing Rules and Code provision C.3 of the Corporate Governance

with written tferms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21

Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in providing an independent view of the effectiveness of
the Group's financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management sysfem, fo oversee the audit process and to perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Commitiee has three members, consisting of all independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow. Mr. Chan Ka Yu is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Mr. Chan Ka Yu possesses appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and financial management expertise as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former pariner of the existing external auditors of the
Company.

The members of the Audit Committee should meet at least twice a year.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee had
two meetings.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit

Committee during the year ended 31 December 2020:

° Review and discuss the annual financial statements, results
announcements and reports, the related accounting principles
and pracfices adopted by the Group and the relevant audit

findings;

®  Review and report on related party transactions carried out

during the year ended 31 December 2020;
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®  Review and discuss the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

° Discuss and recommend the re-appointment of external audifors.

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Group established the Remuneration Commitiee on 20 December
2018 with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
provision B.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary
duties of the remuneration committee include but not limited to, |i)
making recommendations fo the Direcfors on the policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policies on such remuneration; (i) defermining the ferms of the specific
remuneration package of the Directors and senior management; and (i)
reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to
time.

The Remuneration Committee has four members, consisting of an
executive Direcfor, Mr. Lim Fung Yee, and all independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and Mr. Chew Keat Yeow.

M. Lee Yan Fai is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The members of the Remuneration Commitiee should meet at least once
a year. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee had three meetings.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2020:

e Review on the remuneration packages for individual Directors and
senior management and made recommendations to the Board.

Pursuant fo code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior management
(other than Directors) by bands for the year ended 31 December 2020
is sef out below:

UWTHiEE—E-_FF+_A=+—RHLEFE
FNEZESHEITHITIE:

. RESEFLREMETERFHGE AEF
BIRHERMER

BECEEGTFRFAMEXBIS BEZTZ
EFET_A=T—HLEFE RFHEEEH D
SREREKE (EERINNFEEHMETI 0
T

No. of

Band of remuneration (HK$) individuals
FNEEE (BT) AE
HK$0 to HK$ 1,000,000 0% 7t Z1,000,0007% 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,0018 L& 1,500,000 7T 2
5

Further defails of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid employees is set out in note 10 fo the consolidated financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Group esfablished the Nomination Committee on 20 December
2018 with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
provision A.5 of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee include but not limited to, {i) reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board on a
regular basis; (i) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members; (i) assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; (iv] making recommendations to the Board
in relation fo the appointment and removal of Directors and senior
management, and on matters of succession planning; and (v) making
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board and/or senior management.
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The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board
composition on behalf of the Board and recommends the appointment
of new Direcfors, taking info account a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, industry and
regional experience, and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
and the Nomination Policy, and assess their effectiveness, and where
necessary, make any revisions that may be required and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

The Nomination Committee has four members, consisting of
an executive Director, Mr. Llim Fung Chor, and all independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow. Mr. Chew Keat Yeow is the chairman of the

Nomination Committee.

The members of the Nomination Committee should meet at least once
a year. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee had one meeting.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2020:

e Review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations fo the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

e Assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

*  Make recommendations fo the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
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Risk Management Committee

The Group established the Risk Management Committee on
20 December 2018 with written terms of reference, to further
enhance the Group's existing infernal risk management functions. The
primary duties of the Risk Management Committee include but not
limited to, monitoring the Group's exposure to sanctions risks and its

implementation of the related internal control procedures.

The Risk Management Committee has four members, consisting of four
executive Directors, Ms. Lim Seow Yen, Mr. Llim Fung Yee, Mr. Llim Fung
Chor and Mr. Llim Seng Chye. Ms. Llim Seow Yen is the chairlady of
the Risk Management Committee.

The members of the Risk Management Committee should meet at least
twice a year. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Risk
Management Committee had two meetings.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Risk
Management Committee during the year ended 31 December 2020:

* Review and approve all relevant business transaction
documentation from customers/distributors or potential
customers/distributors from sanctioned countries and with
sanctioned persons;

*  Monitor the use of proceeds from the share offer of the
Company; and

®  Review the internal control policies and procedures with respect

to sanctions law matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
pracfices, training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulafory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and the guidelines, and the Company's compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the annual general meeting,
Board meefings and Board committee meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the table
below:
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HERYBTEERY
Risk Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination  Management General
Name of Directors Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
EREERZ REBE
3t e ERZEEE ¥YMEEE REEZEE Eg &
Executive Directors: HITEE:

Ms. Lim Seow Yen YN e 8/8 N/ATEA N/ATEE N/ATEH 2/2 1/1
M. Llim Fung Yee WEFLE 8/8 N/ATER 3/3 N/ATER 2/2 1/1
M. Llim Fung Chor WHELE 8/8 N/ANER N/ATER 1/1 2/2 1/1
Mr. lim Seng Chye WEF T4 8/8 N/ATEA N/ATER N/ATER 2/2 1/1
Mr. Zhang Junli RERAL 7/8 N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER 1/1

Indlependent Norrexecutive Directors: BUIBTEE:
Mr. Chan Ka Yu BREFEE 7/8 2/2 3/3 /1 N/ATER 1/1
Mr. Lee Yan Fai TEEEL 7/8 2/2 3/3 /1 N/ATRER 1/1
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow EERLE 7/8 2/2 3/3 1/1 N/ATER 1/1
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According fo article 62 of the Articles, an annual general meeting
of the Company shall be held in each year other than the year of
the Company’s adoption of the Articles. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Company held its annual general meeting on
1 June 2020.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
and ensure that they are published in a timely manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating fo
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability fo continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Deloitte & Touche LLP was
engaged as the Group's independent auditor.

The remuneration paid/payable fo the independent auditor and its
foreign member firm for audit services and non-audit services in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2020 amount to $$197,888 and
$$5,580 respectively.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks the Company is willing to take in achieving
the Company's strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and infernal control systems. The Board oversees management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and infernal control systems. The Board acknowledges that such risk
management and infernal control systems are designed fo manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure o achieve business obijectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Company had reviewed the need
for an internal audit function. Internal audit function of the Company
had been carried out under the leadership of the Board and the Audit
Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board, through |i)
the Risk Management Committee, had conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, particularly on the Group's exposure to sanctions risks; and {ii)
the Audit Committee, had conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the infernal control system of the Group covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance as well as risk
management. The Board considers that the Group's risk management
and infernal control systems are adequate and effective. The Board
expecls that a review of the risk management and internal control
systems will be performed annually.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has established policy for ensuring that inside information
is disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Procedures such
as limit access to inside information to those who need to know and
requiring external parties fo execute confidentiality agreement have
been implemented by the Company to guard against mishandling of
inside information. The Group also reminds those relevant personnel
and other professional parties to preserve confidentiality of the inside
information until it is publicly disclosed.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan So Fun is the company secretary of the Company, who
reports directly to the Board and is responsible for, among others,
providing updated and timely information fo all Direcfors from fime to
time. Ms. Chan is nominated by an external service provider to assist
in company secretarial affairs of the Company. Ms. Chan’s primary
confact person af the Company is the Chairlady of the Board, Ms. Lim
Seow Yen. During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Chan
confirmed that she had faken no less than 15 hours of professional
fraining in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Llisting Rules. Her
biographical details are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of the Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company aims to establish fair and transparent procedures to
enable all shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and communicate efficienﬂy with the Company.
Under the Articles and the relevant policies and procedures of the
Company, the shareholders enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i)  convene an extraordinary general meeting or put
forward proposals:

The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting, pursuant fo article 64 of the Articles.
Extraordinary general meetfings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, af the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing fo the
Board or the company secrefary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
fransaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition at the Company's Hong Kong office at Room 901, 9th
Floor, Prosperity Tower, No. 39 Queen’s Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
fo proceed to convene such meefing, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionisf(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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(i) put forth proposals at shareholders’ meeting:

Shareholders are requested fo follow article 64 of the Articles for
including a resolution at an exfraordinary general meeting. The
requirements and procedures are sef out in paragraph (i) above.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than a
refiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and nofice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the registration office of the Company.
The period for lodgment of the notices required will commence
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the nofice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven days prior fo the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be af least seven days.

(iii) put forth enquiries to the Company:

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board's
affention can be sent in writing to the company secretary at the
Company's Hong Kong office at Room 901, 9th Floor, Prosperity
Tower, No. 39 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relafions and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and other extraordinary
general meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their
delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and
answer their enquiries.
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The Company’s website [www.iaisun.com.sg) provides comprehensive
and accessible news and information of the Company to the
shareholders, other stakeholders and investors. The Company will
also update the website information from time to time fo inform the
shareholders and investors of the latest development of the Company.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the
Company as follows:
Singapore Hong Kong

255 Pandan Loop
Singapore 128433

Room 901, 9th Floor, Prosperity Tower
39 Queen'’s Road Central

Central

Hong Kong

The Company confinues fo enhance communications and relationships
with its shareholders and investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular diclogue with institutional investors and analysfs o
keep them posted of the Company's developments. Enquiries from
shareholders and investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. Board
members and appropriate senior sfaff of the Group are available af the
meeting fo answer any questions raised by shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there had been no
significant changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.

An upfodate version of the memorandum and the Arficles is available
on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG’) report of TS
Wonders Holding Limited (“We" or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
[collectively known as the "Group”), ("ESG Report”) addresses a
range of material impacts on the Group, outlining our sustainability
approaches and disclosing our ESG performances during the period

from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”).

BASIS OF THIS ESG REPORT

This ESG Report is prepared according to the “Environmental, Social
and Govemnance Reporting Guide” (the "ESG Reporting Guide”) set out
in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong (“Listing Rules).

With reference to the ESG Reporting Guide and the Group's business
operation, this ESG Report divides the relevant aspects and key
performance indicators ['KPI'), which are considered to be relevant and
material to the Group, info nine subject areas:
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R HERELGRSE

A complete index in compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide is also
available at the end of the ESG Report for reference. The Group has
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide in the Reporting Period.

As a snack food manufacturer, we are committed fo delivering high
quality and safe food products and continuously meetfing customers’
expectations and complying with legal requirements.

THE BOARD AND ESG EXECUTIVE GROUP

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company retains overall
responsibility for the governance of ESG which includes, but not limited
to identifying and evaluating ESG related risks, determining ESG
strategy and scope, setting forth related risk management and internal
control system and approving the disclosure in this ESG Report.

An ESG Executive Group, consisting of an executive Director,
senior management from Finance, Operation and Human Resources
departments in Singapore and Malaysia, is established by the Board
for the purpose of implementing the ESG initiatives, collecting and
continuously monitoring ESG data and preparing this ESG Report.
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The key functions and responsibilities of the ESG Executive Group are:

1. Lleadership

The ESG Executive Group is chaired by an Executive Director.

2.  Knowledge of Business

All ESG Executive Group members are involved in the daily
operations and management of the business.

3.  Active Involvement

Members of the ESG Executive Group shall meet regularly, no
less than an interval of onnuo”y.

4. Rights to Access
The ESG Executive Group has the rights fo access to all ESG-

related facts and information and fo engage specialists to assist
in the study and preparation of ESG matters at cost of the
Company.

5. Responsibilities

The ESG Executive Group is instructed by the Board to implement
and monitor our ESGrrelated initiatives.

6. Independent Reporting

The ESG Executive Group has the rights and responsibilities to
report to the Board independently on important ESG matters.

MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Company has adopted a management approach to identify,
assess, prioritise and manage material ESGrrelated issues, which have
the following seven elements.

1. Policies

We have established and rolled out company-wide policies to
regulate our ESGrrelated activities.
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Commitments

We are committed to comply with all ESGrelated regulatory
requirements in Singapore and Malaysia and ESG reporting
standards applied fo listed issuer in Hong Kong.

Goals and targets

We are dedicated fo set realistic and achievable goals and
fargets, pufting info considerations our scale and optimal point
we are positioning in and looking forward to.

Responsibilities

We have a top-down governance to manage our ESG activities,
which is primarily driven by the Board of Directors and effectively
executed by our ESG Executive Group.

Resources

We have diverted sufficient resources to execute our ESG
activities, including an acceptable financial budget and time
devotion by our relevant departmental/functional personnel,
including but not limited to Operation Department, Finance
Department and Human Resources Department.

Grievance mechanisms

We have monitored the effectiveness of our ESG activities and
welcome feedback from our stakeholders to improve our ESG
initiatives from time to time.

Specific actions

We have put in place ISO (“International Organisation
for Standardisation”) certified systems and product quality
management system fo ensure related ESG activities adhere to
infernationally and industry recognized standards.
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REPORTING BOUNDARIES AND PRINCIPLES

The Board, with the assistance of the ESG Executive Group, has
identified key ESG risks of the Group based on the considerafion of
a series of factors such as business nature and scale, geographic
location, regulatory requirements, operating practices, and stakeholders’
expectations.

The key considerations that the Board has taken with regards to the
business operations of the Group include:

1. Our business is headquartered in Singapore with another two
factories in Malaysia;

2. Our operation involves production, packaging and sale of snack
food products;

3. Our production and logistic arrangement involve emissions and
use of natural resources;

4. Our operation is subject to the various food safety related
regulations; and

5. Our operation is subject fo the various environmental protection
related regulations.

In preparing this ESG Report, the ESG Executive Group has followed
the principles of materiality, quantitative measures and consistency
under which we believe it has applied a consistent and structured
methodology for defermining the materiality level, measuring in
meaningful quantitative units and reporting our ESG matters in a scope

that is relevant and significant to the Group.

Based on our assessment, the reporting boundary for this ESG Report
shall be set at the management, production, and logistic function of our
Singapore and Malaysia operations.

RIE HEREGRE

BE ¥R 5 & & R Al

EEQGESCAIT/MERB T EREBIEE &
MR BN E EEBER CEFRRARFONEN

HEF-FRIHER EMEEAKENEEESC
J_ll/\/\

EFEERAREXGEEMERNEIRREBE:

1. ﬁszﬁE’J%?ﬁzﬁ'4 REFINE  ZERK LK
AR 5 R P aE

2. BWMEBIREE B

(=15
ag -

KEHERRER

3. BMEERVMRZHESRFEREERRA
BR:
BTERERMLK

4. RANEER EHBAR

M

5. HMMEZBRBTEARREBER -

FERBARESCHRE R  ESCHITNECERER
Bk BRI RMARSECERA
LREGENDZETEEURE UABENE
LENFENEEASERBAEANBERNE
HRESCEE -

R 3% P9 B0 5T - ARESGHR & # I R 8 [BR & 3
MEEBRATEHEENEE EERRBE

ak
BE °©

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2020 F3& 71



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HERELGRSE

The Board and ESG Executive Group have understood, concurred
with and applied the four core ESG principles in the course of seffing
ESG strategy, conducting our ESG initiatives, collecting ESG daita,
caleulating ESG KPI and preparing and issuing this ESG Report. The
four core ESG principles are materiality, consistency, balance and
quantitative.
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Areas of Focus By Major Activities
BxEE FTEXERED

Management Production Logistic

B HE i

Singapore operation Higher Higher
AN TG &8 BS BE
Malaysia operation Higher Higher
HIRPG R EE Be Be

STAKEHOLDERS” ENGAGEMENT

In order to determine what issues are relevant and material to our
business with respect to sustainability, the Group is aware that the key
is to understand what issues that our stakeholders are concerned most.

We acknowledge that in today’s rapidly changing business climate,
attention to ESG issues is becoming critical fo our longferm competitive
success. Stakeholders” engagement is an integral part of the Group's
business management as it helps the Group fo assess potential risks
and business opporfunities. Communicating with stakeholders and
understanding their views may befter align the Group's business
practices with stakeholder’s needs and expectations and properly
address different views.
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We have identified the following key stakeholders based on the
mutual dependency and influence. On a regular basis, the Group
communicates with key stakeholders within and outside the Group
through various channels, such as in-person meetings, written
correspondence, telephone discussion and for our shareholders, annual
general meefing.

Key Stakeholders Communication Channels
FTERNE BERE
Government Departments  Regulatory updates correspondence
and Regulators EERTEEHNER

BNREERE Inferaction and visits

RS

Compliance advisor

B RER

Government inspections

BT

Investors and Shareholders Corporate website and emails
REERKRR NG FERTY Sk
Annual general meeting
BRRBFAE
Announcements and disclosures
NERKE
Inferim/Annual Reports

R EERE

Employees Regular management meetings
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Employees' suggestion boxes
BIRRM
Performance evaluation
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Training
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Stakeholders” Main Concerns

BFOHEXTERIER

legal compliance
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Food safety
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Environmental protection
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Climate change
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Performance and profitability
EEEAT
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Market share
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Supply chain management
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Reputation
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Career development
Remuneration and benefits
¥ K 4@ A

Staff training

8 T3

Work health and safety
TERERZ 2
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RE - HERES

Key Stakeholders
FEFOE

Customers

'F

Suppliers and
subconsultants

HEBR D BEM

Media, community
and the public
B HEBERAR

|E

Communication Channels

Site visits

BMFED

Inferim/Annual Reports

HmE S FEwRE
Customer hotline

BP AR

Sales represemoﬁves' visit
HERKRSHE

After-sales customer service

EREPIRY

Meeting and correspondence
SREAE

Onssite visits

B 5

Product quality inspection
EmEERE

Regular performance assessment

EHIRBHE

Community events
HREE
Community welfare
18 48 A

Social media

TR IREE
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Stakeholders” Main Concerns

FOEXERIER

Product quality
EmEE

Food safety
REmi®

Product pricing
EmEE

Image and reputation
MRERE
Environmental protection
RIFRE

Climate change

TIRZ L

Material pricing
MEEE

Stability and sustainability
TR HEAFEN

Food safety

BEmTE

Product quality

EmEE

Climate change

TIRZ(E

Community service

At & AR A
Environmental protection
R RE
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The Board and ESG Executive Group acknowledge that the
stakeholders' engagement is an important step to obtain different
views of sustainability development and to form a basis for us fo
provide feedback. Accordingly, on top of our regular engagements,
we have formulated plans to sfrengthen our stakeholders’ engagement
process, including the infended use of an ESG survey and inferview
program, from which the information and feedback fo be collected
and exchanged, will further enable us to take appropriate actions and
enhance our ESG inifiatives and reporting.

For the Reporting Period, the Company has rolled out a stakeholder
engagement ESG survey and invited representing stakeholders to
provide their insight and concerns to us.

1. Food Supplier

2. Employee [office staff)
3. Employee (factory staff]
4. Bank

5. Service Providers

6. Customer

The ESG Executive Group has taken the result of survey info their
consideration in defermining the ESG reporting scope and focus.

RIE HEREGRE

E=ZgNESCHTT/ERR BNEN2EEE
BrRIFEHERTRBEH MER PRI EL RER

E—HoHitt RERZEIN RIS HIEF S
PAsg L #5fn & 0 2 8 B 35 i 5E (£ RESGH #ff )z
AT BUAKRERRBREERREER It
[EAPNLPIREUE E 178 R R FIWESC
e S FE R o

i3

WEHA ARFRIRRABEDE 2 ENESCH
T WEFERFNES2RRABLMARKESOHER

NEEERE-

1. REHERS

2. EB(HABI)
3. EBE(IKEI)
4. 8R1T

5. BRGREMHRE
6. EBP

ESCHIT/NMEANEEESCERBLE N EHFE 2
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BEEMTML

In the preparation of this ESG Report, our ESG Executive Group gathers A 47 B4 NESGER 45 B - ESGHLTT/NE BB IS &8
imporfant facts and information through confinuous communications, BUWEBEZEE R ER  BIFEIFH L EITESC
including ESG surveys with our stakeholders, particularly those in 32 - 15 B2 B FIe) L BB O R IEE 0 R IB
relation fo our operating practices, employment practices, and EBXRIE " FEE@EE 5 E e ESGHIT/NED #E—
environmental performance/impact. The ESG Executive Group has #HOMZEEEREL  WHEITEREZE R ET
further analysed those facts and information, collated them with industry %L A RIBIE RESCHREHW BB |4 S 1EE-
reference and evaluated them against materiality, quantitative measures, % & — B M R B 1T 804  ESGELIT/ AR &
balance and consistency of this ESG Report. The ESG Executive Group  EESGHR & 18 3| #9 & 18 {5 3 » X MEE 40~ X P it
has considered every provision of the ESG Reporting Guide and  ZRESGH&E &AM THI14BESGER -

identified the 14 most concerned ESG issues for this ESG Report as

presented below.
Environmental 1%

® Environmental protection IRIZ{RE
* Waste management EEE Y EE
¢ Climate change impact on business 1% % b ¥ £ 5 (0§ &

Quality product B&E = m
Sustainable income AT #F A& A
Care for employee BEET
Labour compliance # T &#3
Staff compefency & T &

Green supply chain #E & it fE
Stable supply #27E {4 &
Operational efficiency & E M=
Care for society BEHE

Governance &34

¢ Anticorruption RE’5
e Diversity and equality Zt{t RFE
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The Board has reviewed and approved the assessment of the ESG

Executive Group and has infegrated the concerned ESG issues into

the overall risk management framework and incorporated into regular

infernal review or infernal audit plan on a rotation basis.

A.

WE AND THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group is dedicated to protecting the environment and
fargeting at being a good environmental steward. In respect of
environmental aspect, we have established three objectives:

1. Full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
relating fo environmental profection;

2. Reduce the impact of business on the environment; and

3. Reduce the use of natural resources.

Overall compliance standing

During the Reporting Period, we have complied with all
applicable laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, including, but not limited
fo the following:

1. The Environmental Protection and Management Act

(Chapter 94A of Singapore);
2. Environmental Public Health Act ([EPHA) of Singapore;

3. Environmental Quality (Indusfrial Effluent) Regulations 2009
(Malaysia); and

4. Environmental Quality (Sewage) Regulations 2009.

We have not been subjected to any material claims or penalties
in relation to environmental protection. The KPI in respect of
emissions and use of resources are presented in the section
headed “Environmental Key Performance Indicators”.

RIE HEREGRE

B FHRBAEESCHIT/NER T I
MEESCEEMAEBRREEER URER
AR ER SN EPE &8 -

A BFRRE

REEHNRERE  WAKSRIFORE
ERERBR -EREI@ RMABLT =
(EIEREE

1. 2EETARRERENAAEMZX
AR

2. RAIRBREBURBENTE X
3. RAPERRRER-

HESHRER

RBEHE RSB TAERBERIBER
BEE - AR TS BERESE
RYNELSTHENAABERERIER
BRENRRATEIEA:

1. FINEEGIEOIAE GRIBIRESRE
IE)
2. ¥ CGREAHEBEE)

3. BRAZ(CZETNFRREE (T
FFAMEHD R

4. (ZETNEFERFEE O34 KH) -
B EARFERESMEEMEREM
BEXRRESLET - BTN RERERNE
RAMIEER TX IREBERABIER] —

]I
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Emission and conservation measures

The greenhouse gas [(GHG') emissions of our Group are mainly
generated from liquefied petroleum gas [“LPG") used in our
production and inventory process and the diesel consumed in the
logistic operation in Singapore and Malaysia. Our indirect GHG
emissions are mainly generated from the purchased electricity in
our Singapore and Malaysia operations.

We are dedicated in reducing the emission generated by our
Group and, accordingly, have established relevant policies and
initiatives, including:

1. Promoting the use of proper diesel for our truck team;

2. Sending our truck team for periodic inspection and repair
for any emission issues;

3. Encouraging our driver to tumn off the frucks at prolonged
stoppage; and

4.  Considering and planning the use of more environmental
friendly truck models af next replacement.

Water consumption and waste management

The major water consumption of the Group is mainly for the
production processes in Singapore and Malaysia. A number of
ESG initiatives have been taken by us, including:

1. We have established controls and procedures fo ensure our
water usage is within the reasonable range necessary for
our productions fo avoid overuse;

2. We maintain a wastewater treatment plant at our
production facility in Johor, Malaysia where liquid waste is
treated before it is discharged; and

3. We have arranged the sludge used for our wastewater
treatment plant to be processed to exiract heavy metals
and recycled for industrial use, or otherwise, disposed to a
licensed processor under the Minisiry of Energy, Science,
Technology and Environment and Climate Change of
Malaysia for further processing, such as turning into fertiliser
or other form of safe or non-harmful disposable waste.
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The Board believes our practice and effort fulfils the standards
set out in the Environmental Protection and Management Act
(Chapter 94A of Singapore), Environmental Quality (Industrial
Effluent) Regulations 2009 (Malaysia) and Environmental Quality
[Sewage) Regulations 2009.

Other water consumption is related to office water consumption,
which is considered minimal in quantity. We have encouraged all
employees to develop the habit of conserving water consciously.
The domestic sewage is discharged info the urban sewage pipe
network.

Non-hazardous waste management

The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group's business
activities are carfon and plastic. Such waste is usually collected
and partially recycled. For damaged or contaminated carton and
plastic that cannot be recycled, they are collected and processed
by general wasfe service providers.

Use of Resources

The Group is fully aware of the high values of natural resources
and committed fo reducing the wasfe of resources in its daily
operation. Our operation protocol has set out several principles
of saving resources in a bid to encourage employees to use the
natural resources in an effective way.

However, we are not able to formulate any sustainable
development plan fo reduce the usage of natural resources,
especially those nontenewable energy such as diesel, PG,
paper cartons, electricity and water as all these resources are
consumed in tandem with production and sales demand of

finished goods.

The Group is open and eager to explore any efficiency
improvement measure and system fo enhance our sustainability
development.

RIE HEREGRE

E=2ME BN ERERERE FNE
EOIFEOAAE GRIBFREEEIRE) - BXK
AR (CCETENFRBEE (THEFK)E
Y UERAZEENFREESE (5K K
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Water

We often explore effective ways of conserving water in each
segment of our operations such as fixing dripping taps and
leakage immediately, using brooms and mops frequently to clean
the floor in all our working and production premises, advocating
the importance of saving water among employees through
posters and profocols.

In 2020, the Group did not face any issues in sourcing suitable
water, which is supplied by the government.

Packaging material

We adopt standardised packaging materials for finished
products. It is widely acknowledged that the snack packaging
is one of the environmental concerns. To better control the
consumption of packaging materials, we have specific
procurement procedure that allow us to order and use packaging
materials optimally to avoid overordering and wasfage.

Our Group will continue to look for ways to reduce emissions
and natural resource impact from our operations. VWe aim to
continually strive to understand and assess our impact and
contributions to all environmental, social and governance issues.

Environmental and natural resources

We are active in promoting environmental awareness among
our employees through encouraging them of the four principles of
"recycle”, “reuse”, “conserve water” and “conserve energy”.

We are dedicated to promote the principles by encouraging our
employees to adopt the following “green” actions, among other
environmental measures mentioned above.

1. Minimise paper usage;

2. Reusing or recycling used paper;

3. Tuming off lights affer office hours and on holidays; and

4.  Usage of lightemitting diode (LED] lighting in efforts to
reduce energy consumption.
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Our Environmental Targets

The Company considers that it has reached an optimal point
in relation to emission confrol and resources use, taking
consideration of our new expansion. The Company sefs a target
of maintaining its emission confrol and use of resources by
infensity or by revenue and will revisit such target from time to

fime.

Environmental Key Performance Indicators

RIE HEREGRE

BEMNRRER

ZRIOINEBEER ARARSHE
PEpE S R ERER T ERREKRF -
RRRRRE B IR R4 E AR HERE S
RERER (REBEEXWETE) W T
ENERAWER

REBERARER

Emission Type Indicator FY2020 FY2019
235§ kil BE —ECEME —E-hEEF
Greenhouse gas' Direct emissions — Scope 1? (tonnes CO,) 3,415 2,438
BERE EEER—SE (M _a/biz)
Indirect emissions — — Scope 2* (fonnes CO,) 1,398 1,307
MEEN—BE2(E_a{biKx)
Indirect emissions — — Scope 3° (tonnes CO,) 69 44
B BER — S E 3 (W — &b ik)
Exhaust gas' Sulphur Dioxide (SO ) - kg 2 2
BER —8EHR(SO)—F
Nitrogen Oxides (NO ) - kg 2,146 2,056
AREWINO)—F =
Particulate Matter PM] — kg 182 175
FERYPM) —F 5=
FY2020
Maijor resource consumed Unit FY2020 FY2019 Intensity?
“ECERE
HENETEER B —EEME —E-NMEF B2
Water — processing m?3 109,798 93,379 1,578
K—=pT 7K
Electricity — processing kWh 1,995,246 1,866,581 28,667
EN—MT ThRE
Diesel litre 1,231,828 773,500 17,699
5o T
Fuel litre 57,598 42,825 828
KRR nFH
Packaging materials — plastic fonnes 1,159 1,089 17
BEME -2 Mg
Packaging materials — fonnes 1,219 9098 18
carfon and paper
BB — A R AR M58
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R HERELGRSE

Notes to above table:

1

The calculation of emission is referenced to Guidelines to Account
for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for
Buildings in Hong Kong by Environmental Profection Department
and Electrical and Mechanical Services Department, the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(2010 Edition), 1ISO14064 by international standard organization;
The ESG Reporting Guide, and Practical Guide on Carbon Audit
And Management.

Intensity of major resource consumed for every S$1.0 million of
revenue for FY2020.

Maijor source of Scope 1 emission came from usage of diesel.

Maijor source of Scope 2 emission came from usage of purchased
electricity.

Maijor source of Scope 3 emission came from processing fresh
water and sewage by government departments.

Our operation does not generate hazardous waste.

Domestic waste is deemed immaterial to our operations. Thus, we
do not maintain relevant record.
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DEALING WITH CLIMATE CHANGE IMPACT

In assessing the climate change impact on the Group, the
Company follows recommendations and approach set out by The
Task Force of Climaterelated Financial Disclosure (“TCFD”).

The ESG Executive Group measures the climate change impact
by the following two risk categories:

Transition Risk

e Referring to a situation where the fransitioning to a lower
carbon economy may entail extensive policy, legal,
technology, and market changes fo address mitigation and
adaptation requirements related to climate change.

Physical Risk

e Referring to direct damage to assefs and indirect impacts
from supply chain disruption that may have financial
implications for the Group. Physical risk can be event
driven (as “Acute Events Risk”) or gradually shifted over in a
period of time (as “Chronic Shift Risk”).

The ESG Executive Group has also considered:

1. Country risk
e The overall level of climate change impact in
Singapore and Malaysia
2. Industry Trend

e The trends and practice of the food industry in
Singapore and Malaysia

B.

RIE HEREGRE

EYHRESBLEHTE

RFEREELCHAEBNTER X
NEIERBRAREEBEERETEA
([TCFD ) IREmmEZER A A
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HAE R
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3. Group Challenge 3. AKEEREE
e The particular challenges encountered by the Group s XEBEBIMABLEMT
as graphically presented below AR
The ESG Executive Group has also evaluated the possibilities of the four
main impacts led by climate change, namely:
ESG #1147/ MATRE FHE SRR BN NE T EH BRI REME - B :
1 Increased wildfires
Wi XN
2 Declining water supplies
HAXRD
3 Reduced agricultural yields
BEESHD
4 Health impacts
RESE
The ESG Executive Group has considered all relevant risks in relation o ESGETT/NMAR EE BRI FE (L F B ERANAE

climate change impact and believes that the Company is more likely to  AE B R - I 335 4 A B4R 7] BE I BG LA T /BB °
be subject fo the risks presented below.

Country Risk EIZRE K

- Increasing use of electric cars and - Crop yield drop in Malaysia dueto - No direct physical risk at large for
tightened fuel controls rising femperature Singapore and Malaysia
- BB SEEAEM -ERB LA - BRADEEY - B R S RADME
PR i EETE BHEERER

Industry Trend 171854

- Disruptive technology has not - No industry-specific regulation yet - Not easy to have an alternative market
emerged yet A YA TR AR for food industry
- i5 K HH R BT P R Al -RRITESREATETRS

Group's Challenge 7 £ BT B #9 Bk &5

- Infensive concentration of suppliers in Malaysia - Customers' rising awareness of environmental impact
- R D R R of food industry
-ERFHEMRTENRESE AR
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Risk Considerations over Application to the Group’s Operations
Climate Change Impact (Singapore and Malaysia)

RirgEEENEREEEE BARAEEER (KK ERED)

Transition risk Political and legal risk Both
R b Boa MoA R R R WESH
Market risk Both
M5 E R mEBE
Reputation risk Singapore
BEAR DI
Technology risk Malaysia's operation
Py 2 B SRR RE 2 E
Physical risk Acute Events Risk Malaysia's operation
BERER SMHEM4AR IR MRS 2 &
Chronic Shift Risk Both
e BB R R mEBE
Risk level assessment  Political and legal risk Medium to High
[ B K P &R A Boa MoE R R R £x5

Market risk
miZER
Reputation risk
BER
Technology risk
21 [ B

Acute risk
SMEHER

Chronic Shift Risk
12 R b

Llow to Medium, no frend of mitigation/replacement of market
BEPE BERBE BRHS
High
=
Llow to Medium, no trend of disruptive fechnology
for food industry
BEPE ARTEEHREBERN
Low to Medium, no direct threat from sea level rise,
decreased water supplies, wildfire etc.
BERSE BREEFE LT KRS RIWAENEZRE
Medium to High

R
FE2&
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RE - HERES

|E

The Company is considered to be subjected to the following climate
change impacts to which the Company has developed relevant action
plans to manage them as presented in the table below. The Company
will continue its study on climafe change impacts, and is committed

to on-going monitoring of relevant risks and will update our climate
change impact from time to time.

Relevant Climate
Change Risk
HERERESLCAR

Political and Legal risk

BUA R ERER

Political and Legal risk

BURREERR

Reputation risk

BERR

Chronic Shift Risk

eHEBEE

Driving Forces

EEE N

Singapore requires vehicles fo meet Euro VI
emission sfandards

I SR E AT A BN P UR

Fuel cost may rise or may be subject to direct
or indirect environmental tax, which may
drive up our transportation costs.

KA AN T B2 L 7t 3 AT REZR AN EL % S
BIREH - MiE ] @R R E B
7N o

Our customers have higher expectation
that we shall operate a “greener” and
environmentally friendly business.
BPNEPHRM 2B MREREED
HEES-

Increased CO,, will reduce food production,
including crop yields such as rice, wheat
and maize worldwide,

RN ERSEREREE B
FEKE NEREREREDNES
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ARABERBIZIATREELCEE A2FE
HERBITS A BIAREZEZE WTRAR-
ARABEBHRAREZLEE BIBEER
R Y TR EHRARRKRECZENER -

The Group's Action
AEBHNERIER

We have a plan to use Euro VI compliant vehicle
for ifs logistic activities.

BT EE AR ERMNIRENERETYR
EE

We shall be able fo shift a portion of such
additional costs as it is a general situation
applied fo all food industry's participants.
HRERMARMITESEETEHNIFNR -
HAPIE R R — B D B IRRRSNK A

We are active in managing our supplier and
dedicated in engaging environmentally friendly
suppliers.

HPERERHER YR OERRRNMH
e e

We will consider putting Environmental
Management System in place, such as ISO
14001.

HAKEREMRRREERZRS WSO
14001 -

We have a diversifying supply chain
management plan to diversify our supply chain
within Malaysia and around other regions.
KRB ZTemEREETETE UER
BAIE S R 2 R A e E ot [ O (R AE S 2
v

We will continue to monitor the crop \/ie|d
situations worldwide and form a holistic view of
food production rate.

RPBEEER IR IEMEER N UT
RIEREEENEBIE -

We will continue to monitor the financial and
operational performance of our suppliers.

BPSREER TR R EERR -
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OUR SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Food material supply is critical to our business and operations.

It is our policy to ensure we conduct business with legitimate
suppliers who maintain good social and compliance standards.
Accordingly, we have adopted and maintained stringent
procedures for the selection and assessment of our suppliers in
order fo manage the potential environmental and social risks that
might arise in the course of business.

In the Reporting Period, the location of our major materials mainly
come from Singapore, Malaysia, the United States of America
and Australia collectively known as our critical suppliers

RIE HEREGRE

fHpE g T TR

RYRHHEENEMNEEREEER
BEE-

HAPTEBUR R R PR RIF R P4
ERERBRENG ZHERFRRER -HE
o RAPT B AR AR BR AR AORE P R P
N AR ER - AB AR ERBEE
BEPEENRBNMESREBETER-

RBERE RPN EMHEEREFHM
¥ BT R EMOEM (S A
TEHER)

Locations of our critical suppliers BMHNETEMEBREVE

Singapore AN 12
Malaysia BRI 224
Other seven countries Hith+ = 16
Total faEt 252

Our critical suppliers are mainly located in Malaysia and
Singapore.

BT EHER T EM N F R R
ik

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2020 % 87



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIR - HERELGRE

Supplier selection and continuous assessment HEBRERSESMG

We conduct business with approved suppliers only after they HMERD BBRMIIZA GO HE

have passed our initial assessment. To be admitted as our EHEEBR - B TEAERARMORAHE

approved supplier, one must fulfill a number of social and HENBARBREETFLERABEKGE 81

compliance conditions, including but not limited fo: BARR:

1. satfisfactory product quality by conducting sample material 1. ETERMETE ERRENERD
evaluation; mE

2. compliance with food safety regulatory matters; and 2. TERBTEEERA: X

3. relevant quality and food safety management system and 3. ERFBENGRERRERLTEEREER
cerfifications. BRE.

Product quality ZR&E
e Inspect and examine samples provided by suppliers by laboratory testing for

microbiological and chemical, transportation and environmental test and
accelerated shelf life study

BRAERERAHHERRANERETER  SEMEY - LEX
7 BRSO U R RE RS -

Food safety compliance BRZ24R

o Request for and research on efforts adopted by the suppliers on their food
safety, production and delivery procedures and assess if their quality and
food safety management system are reliable and sufficient.
ERTHEHREFTERRETSE EENEREFABNESD - FEH
EENRMZ2EERARTCRAUENTEMN

Annual assessment EE {4

o Quality control department will perform an assessment on suppliers based on
their product quality, ontime delivery, response quality and price. The result
of the assessment will then be discussed with executive Directors.
mBZEFBEREERDE - ERIMER - BHEIRERLHRE
BEITRIME - BBRMITESEE LA RETH®
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Our assessment is also conducted on a continuous basis. We
perform inspections on incoming materials on a fransaction
basis, and we also have a designated quality confrol team to
perform an annual assessment of our suppliers over their product
quality and responsiveness etc. These assessments focilitate us
fo understand and monitor the suppliers’ compliance readiness
against the standard of product quality and food safety which is
one of our ESG concems.

In the event when our suppliers are found or potentially perceived
fo have significant deficiencies in relation to product quality and
safety, we would not hesitate in taking appropriate corrective
actions, including termination of services.

Considerations to Environmentally Friendly Products

Using environmentally friendly products or systems that produce
the products is one of the key considerations we adopt in the
selection of our critical suppliers. Nevertheless, it is our policy that
we do not engage with suppliers which constantly or seriously
are in breach of related ESG rules and regulations.

COMMITMENT TO PRODUCT QUALITY

We are committed fo produce high quality snacks which are safe
and wholesome. Due to the nature of business, our operation
and products are subjected to high product responsibilities,
particularly over food safety and advertising and labeling. On
top of our standard hygiene and safety measure, we manage
our food safety concern through quality control, packaging and
product recall management.

Quality control management

In respect of food safety, we have been accredited with
various infernational quality management certifications for our
production facilities, including but not limited to Hazard Analysis
and Critical Control Points ("HACCP") and various 1SO 9001,
ISO 22000 and Food Safety System Certification (“FSSC”)
22000 certificates. All responsible personnel in our operations
department are required fo attend refresher training according
to our HACCP Quality Management system and requirement on
FSSC 22000.

RIE HEREGRE

B FHE TR EETT BRI ERERR
SRS - WRA — @ TN mEEH
BB RERERNEmmEMERENS
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B ETRAEBESCRIIMER 2 —-

HEREMNHEER (ARSEAE)EE
mEERRZESMFEERRE RIS L
BIERBUE E A EHE e BREE LRS-

BRREMPFENZE

ERRREMKERLIERS SRMEE
TEHEARERNEIZRR 2 — A
HFMERR TG B AN ERERRAM
ESGRAIFEARMERE S

HEmMmEENER

HAAREERENRENS RERER
fe MRNEBUEEER NEENEERE
mAREERSNERET LERERME
EUARBESERERTE R T RENFEM
rRERIIN BABBEELR BRM
EnCGOERSRMmEEMEETEE

ARRmEE RMANEERECDES
FHEREEEERARE BRETRRY

ENMEZE HIE ([HACCP J) A RISO
Q001 +1SO 22000A KB m& 2 88 X RF
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RE HER

ERWE

We have implemented quality control throughout our production BAERRM D ERI MR ERES
process from raw materials fo product delivery o ensure our food HEBEMESEH URRFTESHMNRM
safety standards are met. The key quality control measures that ZERFE - RPN EREEEFEER
we have faken include, but not limited to: FEENRER:
Materials 1. Supplier selection and assessment
ks HE R R LT
2. Inspection before accepting goods receipt
EYREETETRE
3. Sample examination on quality
mE R E
Inventory 4. Accepted materials are labelled and sfored accordingly
FE BB ERBRIEERFT
5. Materials are stacked and stored under firstinfirstout method
MEHR S s 5t HORHE I R R 17
6. Temperature of the sforage facility is closely monitored
EY) BT RENRE
Production 7. Quality sample testing and inspection on semifinished products are systematically performed
during the production process
HE RAEEBREDRGIEHET R mE MR Mad
8.  laser sorfers are deployed fo automatically detect and eject irregular items based on colour,
shape and size
BRI D& RIBEAES Ik kA B BB &SRR M
Delivery Q. Allfinished products are subject to a final comprehensive test prior to loading for delivery
A FIERRERERINZAETREANZEKRE
10. Ensure delivery vehicles or containers are free from any substances that may taint the

packaged products
BREEEWHX TR TS EMAEE S RBRERNYE
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Packaging management
Our packaging material must also meet the following four criteria

to ensure the quality of finished products:

1. Barrier protection 2. Permeability
R ERE BEM BHE

* Moisture barrier « Moisture barrier
)= By

3. Sealing Strength

» Mechanical strength of the
seal to ensure no leakage

RIE HEREGRE

BRER
RERKEOEE  BMOBREME I ER
AT OIEEAE:
4. Coefficient of Friction (COF)
B (COF)

« Estimation on the ratio of COF
while in motion

« Oxygen barrier » Oxygen barrier and pockqging integrity B BB P EREH L E
REE R E FEHOEMRE - RRERE
. . RefzEE
« Ultra violet transmittance
RINEFE
Product recall management EmBEER

We have also established relevant product recall procedures that
enable us to respond to recall incidents in a timely and orderly
manner by our designated recall coordinator. Our key measures
include informing relevant parties such as our customers and
general public on a timely basis, tracing the affected products
through our labelling system, inspecting the affected products and
destroying and disposing them by appropriate means.

Advertising and labelling

We are constantly engaged in markefing and branding of our
products through various advertising platforms including in-sfore
displays, social media, outdoor sampling and events sponsorship.
It is our policy to advertise our products and brands in a fair
manner and without mis-leading information.

As for our labelling activities, we require our customers to provide
us with all necessary information pertaining to packaging and
labelling with respect to local requirements within the sfipulated
territory.

Privacy protection

We are responsible for protecting our customers’ privacy in the
collection, processing and use of their personal data. We are
in compliance with the applicable data protection regulations
and we ensure appropriate fechnical measures are in place fo
profect personal dafa from any unauthorized use or access. We
also ensure that customers’ personal data is stored securely and
processed only for the purpose for which it has been collected.

ZAMEHERBNERBRRF BEIA
B = {85 35 € /0 A [ 75 38 B 88 KBS A 73t
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REFR -
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R IR PO 0 BB AR R A — 1)
UEE R
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HPAETERE BRENERAETPEAAR
FHES R EL R AL - T8 T A ) B RHR &
R )30 B HEOR R R B 2 B B HE B 2R AR &
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KEE RERRNKEENEMRMA B/
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&

IRERER
During the Reporting Period, we have complied with all EREHE R EEmMEEERTET:

applicable laws and regulations in relation to product liabilities, EE EZHEMNELEERBNEREEME
advertising and labelling and privacy matters. For the Reporting MoMBEHE RMYBREEREETE

Overall Compliance Standing #

Period, we have not been subjected to any material product EBEEFNERERAE SEEREIRES
recall, liabilities claim or failed regulatory inspection in relation to BEERS-
our product quality.

E.  COMMITMENT TO OUR EMPLOYEES E. HEIMERS

BB REEREREMERZ 2/ THERE
RBERYE - R_T_FF+_A=1—
B BAPIRETINE & SRR XS S e

We sfrive fo provide our employees with a harmonious and
safe working environment, and development platform. As at
31 December 2020, we have employed a tofal of 270 employees

(2019:256] in our Singapore and Malaysia operations.

Full-Time (By gender)

As of 31 Dec, 2020

R270%EE (=T —

% to total (2020)

FLEF :2564) o

% to total (2019)

R-ZZZ2F EREEDL HHREE DL
2R (RERE D) t=-A=+—H (ZEZFF) (ZZE-h%F)
Male 181 7% 62%
TR
Female 89 33% 38%
g
Total 270 100%
fa st

Full-Time (By age group)

As of 31 Dec, 2020

% to total (2020)

% to total (2019)

R-E-ZEHF HHEEFHS LB E D
2B (RFRARNE D) +=ZA=+—8H (ZEBEZZEHF) (ZZ—hHF)
Above 50 49 18% 10%
5058 A &

30-49 132 49% 37%
30F498%

Below 30 89 33% 53%
30BELA T

Total 270 100%

@t

Full-Time (By geographical area)

As of 31 Dec, 2020

% to total (2020)

% to total (2019)

R-B-RF HREES L EREESL
2 (ZHEE& D) +=A=+—H (ZB=2HF) (ZB—-I%F)
Singapore 66 24% 26%
03
Malaysia 204 76% 74%
SR P a8
Total 270 100%
HEt
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Over the Reporting Period, the Company has 14 partHime and REEBRM NR A HE 145 B R
tfemporary works in fofal, of whom one of them remained the T Hp R T -_FTF+_HA=+— El
position at our Company as of 31 Dec 2020. They are subject MERR TEHE& ®BEZHHRNER

fo the same benefits and labour rights. The Company considers I%ﬂ PiN/N \ﬁ{&ﬁéﬁ$%.2,ﬂ7ﬁ&&
that their financial and operational impacts are immaterial to the %%EW

Group.

By category Turnover rate Management assessment and actions

®BER K= EEENERITE

Female: 10% Considered as a healthy turnover

pgid BRRERRAE

Male: 22% Considered as a healthy turnover

Bt BREREHRAEX

Under 30 19% Considered stable

305R AT BRBE

Between 31-50 23% The Board considered this tumover rate is within the normal norm of the

industry and the Company's risk appetite while it will continue paying
additional attention o our younger aged staff's needs and expectations.

31E505% EEERR WRAXENTEERERERARRANARRFHER
RANESEERIFEETNHIRLRME-

Over 50 2% Considered stable

50p% A £ RREBTE

Singapore % Considered stable

Frong RABETE

Malaysia 22% Considered in line with occupational norm

BRI RAEFEBELSIZE

The overall employee turnover rate of full-ime staff in the RMEHA 2BETINEEBEERAERA
Reporting Period is 18% (2019: 16%), with further breakdowns 18% (ZE—NF:16%) B TXEFMHN
by different categories as presented below. The ESG Executive BB RIE — S D o ESGHTT/NMEE s F M
Group has made an assessment and come up with relevant BV Ok AR AT W 4R AR RR RO TT BT &I

action plan in relafion to our furnover rate.
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Employment and remuneration

We have a comprehensive Human Resources Management
System and Procedure to determine the optimal size of staff
force that fits our business operation. Our Human Resources
Department manages our hiring process, which is considered
fair and transparent. We generally enter info a standard form
of employment confract with our employees, which contain
confidentiality clauses and standard covenants.

We endeavor fo provide competitive remuneration package and
various benefits o affract and refain falents. Our employees are
remunerated according fo their job scope, responsibilities, and
performance and entifled to discrefionary performance bonus.
We also offer other form of employee benefits such as medical
insurance coverage and different kinds of compensated leave
for matters of marriage, matemity, paternity, childcare and
compassionate events.

Equal opportunity

We are committed fo building and maintaining a fair workplace
and valuing equal opportunity and diversity, throughout all stages
of emp|oymem, inc\uding in the remuneration, recruitment, fraining

and promotion of staff.

Our employee will not be treated in less favorable ferms or
discriminated against on grounds of gender, sexual orientation,
disobimy, marital status, moterio|ity, race, re|igion, age,
nationality or ethnic origin. Our employees are hired, appointed,
promoted and remunerated on a fair scale and in accordance
fo objective measures such as their qualifications, experiences,
hardships, competencies and conributions.

Labour standards

We fully adopt and adhere to the human rights framework
that creafes an environment where human rights issues can be
openly discussed. We are committed to do the right thing and
we encourage our workers fo engage in candid and respeciful
dialogue fo explore feasible solutions.
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Our foreign workers in Singapore and Malaysia are typically
employed on a two-year or three-year basis respectively,
depending on the period of their work permits, and subject o
renewal based on their performance, and are remunerated fairly
according fo their work skills and standard of the laws. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, all our foreign workers have
obtained valid work permits. Our Human Resources Department
is responsible for monitoring the validity of work permits of our
foreign employees.

Our Group prohibits the use of child labour and forced labour.
Our recruitment process requires us to inspect the identity
documents and conduct interviews with the applicants. We strictly
comply with the Prevention of Human Trafficking Act 2014 and
Anti-Trafficking in Persons and Anti-Smuggling of Migrants Act
2007.

Overall Compliance Standing

During the Reporting Period, we have been in compliance with
the laws and regulations in Singapore and Malaysia relevant
to the Labour Standards such as relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversif\/, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare, including, but not limited to:

1. The Employment Act (Chapter 91 of Singapore;

2. The Employment of Foreign Manpower Act (Chapter Q1A
of Singapore);

3. The Cenfral Provident Fund Act (Chapter 36 of Singapore);

4. The Employment of Children and Young Persons Regulations
(Singapore);

5. The Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of Singapore;

6. Central Provident Fund Act (Chapter 36 of Singaporel;

7. The Employment Act 1955 [Malaysial;

8. The Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 (Malaysia); and

Q. The Employment (Restriction) Act 1968 (Malaysia).

RIE HEREGRE
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COMMITMENT TO ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

Anti-corruption

It is our policy to maintain a reputation for honesty, fairness,
respect, responsibility, integrity and trust. We maintain a strict
anticorruption policy, including but not limited to the following:

1. We prohibit all forms of bribes, kickbacks or other similar
remuneration;

2. Employees are not allowed to offer or accept gifts and
benefits in the course of their employment; and

3. Conlflict of inferest must be avoided or reported to our
Directors on a timely and complefe basis.

For the Reporting Period, we did not encounter any anti-corruption
confirmed cases, incidents, reporting, enforcements and/or legal
proceedings against our Group, Directors and employees.

Anti-money laundering

From anti-money laundering perspective, it is our policy not
fo accept any cash receipt or payment, or any transfers from
unknown or suspicious third parties, or fransfers without legitimate
business relation and purpose.

Whistleblowing policy

We encourage our stakeholders, including our employees,
cusfomers and suppliers to report any suspicious or confirmed
cases relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

In our daily operation, our employees are encouraged fo report
fo their department head or, in a more independent manner, to
our Human Resources Department.

We have also established a whistleblowing policy that allows
our employees and other sfakeholders to inform us of any kind
of fraud, misconduct and/or non-compliance with our internal
policy, or laws and regulations.
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Goodwill whistleblowers can file their report to us at email:
whistleblow@taisun.com.sg. Our executive director shall first
review and clear the cases, keep the records, gather further
information and escalate to the Board or Audit Committee or
senior management depending on the independence, complexity
and significance of the matters.

Our whistleblowing policy has a protection clause by which we
prohibit all kinds of harassment and discrimination of goodwill
whistleblowers on the grounds of their goodwill whistleblowing.

Overall Compliance Standing

During the Reporting Period, we have been in compliance with
the laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group encourages and supports our Directors and staff to
receive infernal and external training to promote operational
compliance and sustainable development of the staff and the

Group.

Our new employees are required to participate in orienfation
fraining before the start of their work and undergo on-the-job
fraining. Generally, the training areas are related fo their work
scope and duties of their respective department. The typical
fraining topics involve personal hygiene, food hygiene and
safety, and employee illness and communicable disease. In
addition, our employees’ training needs are identified through
yearly staff performance appraisal, technological changes or any
major changes introduced to the management system, equipment
or changes in our product offering.

All our directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, have attended training to reinforce their knowledge
and skills as a Director, and knowledge on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules, other applicable statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate them
to discharge their responsibilities.

In the Reporting Period, our employee received 408 hours of
fraining focusing on safety on food processing and workplace.
The average fraining hours was 1.51. The pie charts in the
following page illustrate the percentage of employees frained by
gender and employee category:

RIE HEREGRE
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By Category By Gender
RBAES RIS EIS

B Management m Work, health and safety u Male Female
& I RmELe S gk
= Production Food safety
EE BEmTE
Anti-Corruption Training RESFIN
The Company has rolled out a rotation plan of anti-corruption REEHE AR FEHERESHO®IFT
frainings in the Reporting Period. As of the dafe of this ESG Z-BEAESCHRERH HMREELEBR
Report, we infend fo provide anticorruption trainings, through EXEBMES TEENRAKEEIFIA
professional organisation, to our Directors and Management and SRHREFEI-HMTEME TRER
frontline sales department personnel first. We will also extend HOEnHmilzte BEERRNONFARNER
such training to our staff on a 4-year rotation plan fargefing fo 100%H)EFIBER -

attain a 100% training coverage in 4 years.
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

Our employees’ safety and health is one of our main concerns,
and we emphasize on matters related to work safety and health.

We have implemented procedures and guidelines in relation to i)
personal hygiene; (ii] work instructions in handling our machines
and safety gadgets required such as safety shoes and hand
gloves; and liii) handling of employees' illness and communicable
disease. VWe also carry out regular maintenance on our machines
and equipment to ensure that they are thoroughly fested and safe
for use. We also maintain work injury compensation policies,
group personal accident and foreign worker medical insurance
for our workers.

The Company has developed and implemented systems for
dealing with emergencies. All employees are also encouraged
fo report all accidents, no matter how minor they may seem, to
prevent future recurrence and proper medical treatment if needed.

In the past 3 years, the Group has not encountered any work-
related fatalities, which is defined with reference to circumstances
in which the Group, as an employer, is liable for compensation
under relevant employmentrelated laws in Singapore, Malaysia
and/or Hong Kong.

No of work-related fatalities

AITEEERMETHAR

leading to injury or illness or disabilities
BHEGHHRBIRR

leading to death

BET

Resulfing in loss of working days

EYRATIERH

Year 2018
—E-N\F§
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¥ BAREE R REBABEBERA
AGERERIT I E

Year 2019 Year 2020
—E-hF —E-FF
] 0
0 0
5 0

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2020 %3k 99



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIR - HERELGRE

Our Efforts and Measures against COVID-19

In relation to the Covid-19, our Company and operations have
fulfilled all the lockdown and quarantine requirement imposed.
In addition, we have also established necessary precautionary
measures, including regularly sanitising our workplace premises,
allowing flexible working arrangements, minimizing socializing,
requiring compulsory mask-wearing and seffing up a reporting
mechanism overseen by our ESG Executive Group fo timely
report suspected or confirmed inflection cases of our employees
and their associates.

Cerfain work safety and health measures are enhanced, some
protocol as highlighted below:

Overall Compliance Standing

During the Reporting Period, we have been in compliance with
the laws and regulations in Singapore and Malaysia relating
fo occupational health and safety, including, but not limited to
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1994,

We did not encounter any incidents and accidents that led to

serious work injuries or fatalities, and we did not receive any
material staff claims in relation to work safety and health.

Twice daily temperature screening
5 H PR RRR

Physical segregation of teams A, B and C

HERKA « BRCHEE Rak

B W2019B M % 5% e
M %5 0 R BREX B9 45 B
BH00BMRFEER ARAREEED
HADBIBMAAHHEBERE - 1o
RN HlE L BB 16 - B IEEHY
SIS AHEERETE BERD
MR R ESRME O E - ARSI RESGH
TMBSEBERENRE] B RSHRERE
R EARRIA L RO SR Ak e R 1 -

BAEMERE T TIFR 2 RIEFEER B2
MEBALT

HMESHBR

K& E R —BEETH IR E KA
THERBERRELZE2NEARER BREE
AR C—NNAOEBRELEEBRFX)

BRPLBEXREERNEREETHBHILTH
EHREH TRBRIEARTEZER
REABENEABRIRE:

Staggered working hours to reduce overcrowding

5 0 T4 LA 0.4 2 R I

Compulsory mask wearing at all imes at workplace

ITHESAyARRMENS

Workplace cleaning is stepped up especially at high touch points

IEETESR (LHESEBH) NER

Hand sanitisers are provided to all staff

ABEBEETRERFR

Compulsory to use Trace Together app
384 A Trace Together fE AR
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R HERESRE
GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY . EfEHE
The Group is committled fo giving back to the community AEEHHOELR St RERTEER
and mainfains close communication and interaction with the rME® RHBEERIELER -
community fo contribute to community development.
For the Reporting Period, we actively contribute and support the RBERME RMEAMNBHESHIBER
community by donating fo local charitable organisations. FoEBRATEBIEERMIREH -
The Group has made charitable donations of approximately AEBERMLEEHEZH/RN62,000
$$162,000 (2019: approximately $$89,000). #NE T (—F — JLF : £989,000% fn 3%

e
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ESG REPORTING GUIDE GENERAL DISCLOSURE
(BE HEREREREES) —REE

ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
(RE HEREABHEES) —REE

A1 Emission

AR

KPIAT.1
B8 45 WURIRAT

KPI'AT.2
BSR4 IR IRAT 2

Information on:
BRERNMAEREBEEN MK & A HE
B BEREEEREYNEATN:

[a)  the policies; and

BR &

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
info water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BITHBETABEATENHEBER
KR B Bk -

The types of emissions and respective
emissions dafa.

e iE R RARRE B R BUR

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect [Scope
2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity [e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

B (8E) kg REZ (BE2) ) A=RE
B E (AW E) b (WER) B (103
BESEMN BERXEHE) -
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Reference Section/Remark

SEEG B

We and the environment
WAERIR IR

Environmental Key Performance
Indicators

RIZFARAMIER

Environmental Key Performance
Indicators

REMBEMIER

Comply
or Explain

TEIHRER

Complied
BT

Complied
FLASH

Complied
FEAST
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IRIR - HEREGRE

ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
(BB HEREABABREES) —REKE

KPI'A1.3
BR A MIERAT .3

KPI AT.4
FRER A IR RAL 4

KPI'AT.5
FRER A BUIEIRAL.S

KPI AT1.6
FRE A MIEIRAL O

A2 Use of Resource

A2ERER

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, infensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
EAREEEYEE (AWETE) K (10
BR)ZE (MABES B - FIARMAT

#)e

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
fonnes) and, where appropriafe, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
EAEEEZMEE (ABTE) X (0
BR)EE (MABEEEMN  BERME

= ]
Ft

Description of emission target(s) set and steps
faken to achieve them

M PRET I BEN BB R R RETELR
TR ERER A PR -

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, the initiatives
to reduce these wastes and the results
achieved.

MR EEEREZEEMN T L BIEZ
EREEVNEBRAMSHR-

Policies on efficient use of resources including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BREAER (BIEEEIR K REMRMEL)
HYBR

Reference Section/Remark

SEEH BT

We do not have material
hazardous waste produced
BT EEEENEREEE
2]

Environmental Key Performance
Indicators

RIGFAREMIER

We are assessing if any emission
targets can be set and if they are
feasible.

BFIERERE RS A AT LM
HMERELEBERESR
17e

For details, please refer o

"Use of Resources” and "Our
Environmental Targets”.
HIFFE2HERER] R[]
FIEERR B R ©

Non-hazardous waste
management

BEEERMERE

Emission and conservation
measures

P R BT A9 E 1B

Water consumption and wasfe

management

FKERBEEMERE
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Comply
or Explain

TETHAE

Explained
R rE

Complied
FLAST

Explained
R rE

Complied
FLAST

Complied
FLAST
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R HERELGRSE

ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
(BB HERERBREES) —REKE

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption

FAREMIBIEA2.1 by type [e.g. electricity, gas or ail) in total
(kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
ARSI SNEE R SEEER (WE-
Reom) BEE (L TETREAE) KT
B (WABEEEMN SHEREAE) °

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and infensity (e.g.

FASRAE KIBIEA2.2  per unit of production volume, per facility).
BEKEREE (MAGESEM BIAR
Wt &) -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s)
RSB B IETRA2.3  set and sfeps faken fo achieve them.
W FTR] L ARERE A e B iR R iz R
B BRI TR -

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in
RSB B IETRA2.4  sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s| set and steps taken fo
achieve them.
f st SR ERGE A O A A ] B - A S P RT
MK E B RN AED G LB RAR
HR ) P58 o

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished

FASREMIBIEA2.5 products (in fonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference fo per unit produced.
HRmAABEMBNAEE (AMHE) R
(ER)BLEEEMEE -

104 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2020

Reference Section/Remark

SEEH BT

Environmental Key Performance
Indicators

RIZEARA ISR

Environmental Key Performance
Indicators

RIGEARERIER

We are assessing if any emission
targets can be sef and if they are
feasible.

P EER AR A AIRI M AE
BEEEEREEBRERS A
17°

For details, please refer to

"Use of Resources” and “Our
Environmental Targets”
HEBR2HBERERI RIRK
(BESEZS=REN

Water
7K

Environmental Key Performance
Indicators

RIZEARAMIER

Comply
or Explain

TEIHEE

Complied
FLAST

Complied

—n

Bsr

Explained
R

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FEASH
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ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
(BB HEREABABREES) —REKE

A3 The Environment Policies on minimizing the operation’s

and Natural
Resources

ASRERRRER

KPI'A3.1
BRER A IERAS

Aspect A4
HEA4

KPI A4.1
BB 4B 1R AL

significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.
MIEEBEHHRRERRAEREKEKR
FEOBR

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions faken to manage
them.

A EBRHHRRELRRAERNERY
ERERRERFHEZENTH-

Policies on idenfification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the

issuer
HAl R EEHE LR %‘E/géﬁéﬁjxigiw
ZBHEARIKABSEENER

Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken
fo manage them.

A DR LA HETAELSR
ARRREBEEE RELHTE-

L ENE

R HER

Reference Section/Remark

SEEH BT

Environmental and natural
resources

RERKAER

Environmental and natural

resources

RERRKAER

Dealing with climate change
impact

BHRRR LS

Dealing with climate change
impocf
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EialmE

Comply
or Explain

TETHEE

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FEASH
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RE - HERES

|E

ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures Reference Section/Remark
(BRE HERERBEES) —KREE SEZH BT

B1 Employment
B1{E{E

KPIBT.1
RS A BUIRIRB1 .1
KPIB1.2

RS AR MIEIRB] 2

B2 Health
and Safety
B2@EREEZ 2

Policies and compliance with relevant laws Commitment fo our employees

and regulations that have a significant impact ¥ B T A &G

on the issuer relafing fo compensation and

dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,

anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

ERFH G RE BEEREA  TIrERS
BRE - FE#E - Lot RESGAREA
HBREAMNERRETHEITABEKXR
FEMNMBBREERRAINER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type ~ Commitment fo our employees
(for example, full- or parttime), age group and ¥} 8 T &) &5

geographical region.

R EBREL (R RBEGRE) - Fie

ARkt EE S HEEER -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group  Commitment fo our employees
and geographical region. 98 THy A
RIER iR KRB S HEE MK

Information on: Occupational health and safety
FHRHZE2IEREMRERER2E BERERARS
FHEEEN:
[a)  the policies; and

B &
(b)  compliance and material non-

compliance with relevant standards,
rules and regulations on providing a
safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
B MEBRERERERRE RBNR
DI E R -
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Comply
or Explain

TEIHEE

Complied
FLAST

Complied
FEAST

Complied
LASH

Complied
IEAST
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IRIR - HEREGRE

Comply

ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures Reference Section/Remark or Explain
(BB HEREABABREES) —REKE BEZG B TR R IE
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Occupational health and safety Complied
BASRAEIEIRB2.1  occurred in each of the past three years BEREEEZE =

including the reporting year.

BE-F (BRERFE)SFEITHN

AB R &Ko
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Occupational health and safety Complied
FREMIERE2.2 AIBEARIEAR BERERER FEAST
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and Occupational health and safety Complied
FSRAEIEIZB2.3  safety measures adopted, and how they are B EfEREHEET 2 E=7

implemented and monitored.

B TR AR R BB S FR R 22 2 48 s - A S AR

BAMITRERTE
B3 Development Policies on improving employees’ knowledge ~ Development and fraining Complied

and Training and skills for discharging duties at work. BRI EF

B3E & K 35 F Description of fraining acfivifies.

BRI EE BT T/EBE & A8 & Bae

BV - AL SE IR & o
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by Development and fraining Complied
RS A IE1EB3.1  gender and employee category %R BB fEiS

R REEBERIBISNXIEEB S L
KPI B3.2 The average fraining hours completed per Development and fraining Complied
FSR B RUEIEB3.2  employee by gender and employee category. & B2 15 3 LA

BRI RIEEERIE D BREETKZI

B 15 B 8 o
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IRIR - HERELGRE

ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
(BB HERERBREES) —REKE

B4 Labour Standard Information on:

B4 % T #8|

KPI B4.1
B 8 45 WUIR 1R B4

KPI B4.2
RABE AR MIE1RBA.2

B5 Supply Chain
Management

BSH SR E IR

KPI B5.1
A 5 45 WUIR1RBS5. 1

BRI E T RS T

[a)  the policies; and

156 )3

(b)  compliance and material non-
compliance with relevant standards,
rules and regulations on preventing child
or forced labour.

B MEBREEEBRTE  RBINR
I E# -

Description of measures to review employment
practices fo avoid child and forced labour.
AR RIS B HIRO 18 e A B R B T 58
H8 T

Descripﬂon of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

H 7 B B E B AR R B B AT R
B8R

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of supply chain.

EEHERNIREMEERRBR-

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
miEE oy HERmEE -
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Reference Section/Remark

SEEH BT

Labour standards
BITERA

Labour standards
& T 2R

Labour standards
& T AR

Our supply chain management

HpEsE TR

Our supply chain management

HEEEE

Comply
or Explain

TEIHEE

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FEAST

Complied
LA

Complied

—n

&=
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Comply

ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures Reference Section/Remark or Explain
(BRE HERERBEES) —REE BEZG B TR R IE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging ~ Our supply chain management Complied
RASRAESIE1RBS.2  suppliers, number of suppliers where the HEEER [EAS

practices are being implemented, and how

they are implemented and monitored.

W AREERAREENED mERTHEA

EHHHEREE A NRBEERITRERET

Ee
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Our supply chain management Complied
B A WUIEIEBS.3  environmental and social risks along the frEsEIE BT

supply chain, and how they are implemented

and monitored.

faa B R I S B (EIR AT RO IR IR S At

SRRBMNEN  ARBRRITMERT A
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Our supply chain management Complied
RS ERUIEIEBS5. 4 environmentally preferable products and e e IR BT

services when selecting suppliers, and how

they are implemented and monitored.

I AERERERREESARFRER N

RGBSR ARMEREMITRERNTT A
B6 Product Information on: Commitment to product quality Complied

Responsibility FHEMREERNRENERRELS - E HEMBENER H=r

BOEMEE HFBREMEBEEARBRITEN:

[a)  the policies; and

BE: R

(b)  compliance relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating fo health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
BTHETAREATENRBEER
KR E #Y o
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R HERELGRSE

ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
(BB HERERBREES) —REKE

KPI B6. 1 Percentage of tofal products sold or shipped

FASRAE KIBIEBO. 1 subject fo recalls for safety and health reasons.
EEXCEXERAH TR 2 REZERE
mmARKNE -

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related
RSB B HETRBO.2  complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
EERANERMREOHRFEE AREY
ke

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing
RS B MIE1RBO.3  and protecting intellectual property rights.
it R E R R AREREE OB -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and
R B MIBIZRO.4  recall procedures.
W E ERERE MEMBEKIERT -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection

R B MIEIREBO.5  and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
HUH & & B RHRE RALRBGR - AN AERE
MITMERT A
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Reference Section/Remark

SEEH BT

We did not have any product
recalls for safety and health
reason in the Reporting Period
BN RESL EE L 2 EE
5 3% o T 28 12 Mg (T E s

We did nof receive any product
or servicerelated complaints in
the Reporting Period.

BRI S B IR (]
PREE im M AR A B0 #5F

Advertising and labelling
EEERR
Privacy protection

B AL IR &
Product recall management

EmAREE

Privacy protection

FEALIRAE

Comply
or Explain

TEIHEE

Complied
FEAST

Complied
FLAST

Complied
LA

Complied
BT

Complied
FLAST
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IRIR - HEREGRE

ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
(BB HEREABABREES) —REKE

B7 Anti-corruption
B7RES

KPI B7.1
B A I 1RB7

KPI' B7.2
B A IR RB .2

KPIB7.3
B A MIERBY .3

Information on:
BEAPIEHERR  B1ER - BEF R ERER:
[a)  the policies; and

BE: &

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer
BTHETAGBERTZENHAB AR
FAE I &R -

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the cases.
RERPAHETAXHEERDIERE
RHBESHRARTVEE RFRER-

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

i By SR b S SR AR - A RARRI AT I
ERTTE

Description of anticorruption fraining provided
fo directors and sfaff.

HRmESRE TRHEMNRESTHE -

Reference Section/Remark

SEEH BT

Anti-corruption fraining
RESE

We did not have any legal case
regarding corrupt practices in
the Reporting Period. For defails,
please refer to Anti-corruption
fraining.

AP & BN B A BT AR
MEM FEFL2HREIGE

Al —Hfi e

Whistleblowing policy
BIHHR

Development and fraining
R A
Anti-corruption fraining
REISE
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Comply
or Explain

TETHEE

Complied
FEAST

Complied

—n

&=

Complied
LA

Explained
i
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IRIR - HERELGRE

Comply
ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures Reference Section/Remark or Explain
(BB HERERBREES) —REKE SEZH BT TEIHRER
B8 Community Policies on community engagement to Giving back to the community Complied
Investment understand the community's needs where it Ol g2 4t [ FEAST

B8 ERE operates and fo ensure its activities take into

consideration communities” inferests.

BRMHE2ERTHREEMELRFE

MEREEBIDHEERLEMNHENEE -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Giving back to the community Complied
RABE4EMFEIZRS.1  environmental concems, labour needs, health,  [El &84t [& E=F

culture, sport).

HIEREE (NHE RRER HIH

K2R E) -
KPI B8.2 Resources confributed [e.g. money or time) o Giving back to the community Complied
FASRAE NIE1EBR8.2  the focus area. Ol g 1t [ B5r

EEIHRBAHAER (N EXERE) -
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To the Shareholders of TS WONDERS HOLDING LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TS Wonders
Holding Limited [the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (herein referred
to as the "Group”) set out on pages 120 to 220, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
nofes fo the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
give a frue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants [IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI &

TS WONDERS HOLDING LIMITED& 3R
(RESHEZMA BB R A])

REMBHRREBLRSE

=R

BMEEZHREI208EF2208 2TS Wonders
Holding Llimited (&2 F]) REME QA (K&
BAEIBEEE ) ZRAMBHRE E/ERZ
ZEFFT AT RAZEENBRAREEE
ZALFEZFEEaAEMZERER KRE
BRnEBPHRERGEEHEERER UREEVBR
=M BRERSHBERE-

BMRE BEHEEVERRERERB G E
AlZEe (B EREBES])BEHEE
HSREER(BERMFEREENDEEMA
vkl BEEBR_ZT_ZTF+_A=+—H
WA BRRAAREHZEZAB L FEOLRE
BRE BEARZEHIRKEARERE BB
BEBRARGEHNEEERZ AR -

RRHER

BPIREEBRERER (TBEREEL ) ET
BR-EZFENT RANEEERMORS
NIZBE A E RS M BRRAAENEE]
—HiE— SR - R BRER SRR E R ER
BEgzBEeEER TR ([IESBASTAIL) -
BB BEEE YEEBESBATAIETA
fBEREE-RMABEE RAMESNERERSE
RARLEEWARMNERIEHER-
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BRI TR

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

RREFEXEER

AREZEFASRBERMANEEHE REZA
FENEAVBRRTKZEENSTR -RMESRE
PR AMBHRABRAINERE AREENE
FEMAERLERHERERER -

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REELSE BEMEERPHERLT

Valuation of properties (Notes 13 and 15)
YEfEE (MEI13R15)

The Group has freehold land and buildings in Malaysia | As pa

31 December 2020. These land and buildings which
are used for its own production are measured using the | ®
revaluation model affer initial recognition.

R-Z-_ZEF+_A=+—H BEEERSEXKAZHE
BRARELIREFT 708 & INK T KA H K
BREHRERTRO/ABHME T - ZERNBITEEN
THRBTRNGERREREGREAE- .

The above properties, constituted 20% of the Group's total
assets as at 31 December 2020, representing significant
assets on the consolidated statement of financial position. o
FimEE EEER_ZE_TF+_A=+—HEE
REM20% REAMBRRKRANEREE -

Management has engaged the external independent valuers
(the “Valuers”) to perform the fair value assessment as at

31 December 2020. °
EEEC RSB LGERM ([HEM] )R _FF
+—A=+—HETAFEFN G- .

rt of our audit, we performed the following procedures,

of approximately S$7.9 million and a leasehold building | among others:
in Singapore of approximately $$6.7 million as at | REZBRED  KFETUATERF (EHERE) :

assessed the Group's process of appointment and
the ferms of engagement of the Valuers entered info
fo determine whether there were any matters that
might have affected the Valuers’ objectivity or placed
limitations in the scope of their work.

HhE EEEREAERMEERE LRI HRE G
R AEBEREFHEEMAIEFEMEMTERILSK
RS TEHE MR HIHEIE-

engaged our infternal specialists to assess the
appropriateness of the key assumptions adopted by
the Valuers.

ZEBRMNABERFEGEMARANDEEZR

RAEBDEE e

assessed the independence, qualification and
competence of the Valuers.

FHEEER 2 B B8 RaE

discussed with the Valuers to understand the valuation
techniques and key estimates used in valuing the
properties and the market evidence used by the Valuers
to support their assumptions.

HEAERS WA T REEMEZSYRETEHE
REAMEETERFERAARBSIFERR
P AT 5 /858 -
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BRI &

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HREXER BEMEERTHNEETE

Valuation of properties (Notes 13 and 15)

YIEAEE (EE13%15)

The valuation of properties is considered a key audit matter | ®  evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation

as it requires management to exercise judgement and
estimates fo determine the valuation method and the key
estimates which includes price per square feet of market
comparables to be used. These valuations are highly
sensifive to changes in market and economic facfors.
MELERBERBAREXRER DTHREFTEREFD
HEF R ABEREDNEREI 2GR (BERBOE
FHRALBTIHE) -ZEFHREHTEREERZES
= E U

techniques used by the Valuers for each of the asset
and evaluated the key estimates applied in the
defermination of fair value by benchmarking and
challenging the key assumptions used in the valuation
by reference to externally published industry data and
comparable property fransactions, where available.
We also considered whether these key estimates are
consistent with the prevailing market conditions.

e BB2ENNBMZITEBEBELRAUBLBWER
Z(WA) FEGHEMRSBEEEMRGESE
MEE TR H RERGEMAEZ2RRA
ERAREEAFENTEMEGT KFTFEREZFH
REEEHERBATHR e

Based on our procedures, we noted that the valuation
methodologies adopted are appropriate, and the key
assumptions used in the valuations fo be within a reasonable
range of our expecfations.

ERBFiEr RONBMRANGEETZBEE B
HEMAERRRERMBEANSIERENRN-

We also checked the adequacy and appropriateness of the
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statfements.

BTN ZEGRRMBEREAERBENTSEREE S
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BRI TR

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements
and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Company's annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statfements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other informafion and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears fo be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing fo report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors of the Company and Those
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRS and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary fo enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability fo continue as a going
concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters relafed to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either infends to liquidate the Group or fo cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but o do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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REMBRERRLBEABEUN2ESR

BERAEFAHEMENAEREZ EMEHNE
RERN ERAFHNER ETEREEME
WR IR BEN RS -

AMBEEARBRRMHOE R BEE LA
B MRMT S S E RS R AT AR R A
e

REMWGEAMBHREMS  RANEEREE
HBER HMEEEMERNEE RS MR
RIBMEBZERTEENERNFEERTA
SUFEFEEAFERRA - HERFENRCET
M THERSEMER HRERERRL KA
BEEREE -t AL BEMERARS -

BRRESRAEEMGEMBRERA
AENEM

EFAARRBERMBERE LN REBQRGK
e R B RBEEE M AV RRIERN AL
EUBHRR LEEEETHRAEGEMBRE
BULEMNBBAANEE UWEZSHGEAVBREK
TEFEHNFFEERME MM E A RBRAL -

ERBEGAMBHRREG EXAAETM X
EREQLENEN U RBEEFELLFHENSE
H(ER) BRIFEFHRG EEREBRIFL
EE BRI L EEMBERATITOMRE B
AIERBAREREE RERNETE-



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion solely fo you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed ferms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always defect a material misstatement when it exisfs. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

() Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

(b)  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI &

RBMRERGEMBRRARENE
(52

BN BERESRBOENZEGRAEEETNS
REVBRRERME T2 F AR RGFHER
MEHRMEAFRRA L FEHFARMERD
TEMRE AREEANEEBRRERE Kitz
SR EREEMB N - SIBEEE S E R
T ERBERESEAETOEXITIETES
RIRBEEREMFAEMNE AR - $5 5R PR
AR EREL  HEN N BB EAEEAY
BRATAZEERERBEFEAMBRERMFELOL
PORTE By - RIRAR A E A B AR R -

EREERERTERETERNBRES  RIE
REEAE REBFREEEE - I

(a) &85 M AP Al B IO R RF Sk 85 BR 1T B BUR & B
BMRFEEAHERBA R - RET R
TEZEFABRHZEFER A RERTR
MEENEZERE FARMAERNER-
MRS RER BE TRER
FERERUT 30% B M B BRI 1B - B LR AE
HR RIS T E AR AR
BRAREEREERMEBNEAHERR
ull=p) b

TREEZMERNARBEEE  URETEEN
BEEF O EAFEEY BEEEAMMEE
MAMMEERER -

(b)

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2020 %3k 117



Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI TR

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the
going concemn basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
fo events or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the
Croup's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
affenfion in our audifor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
fo cease fo continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, sfructure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business acfivities within
the Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. VWe are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and fiming of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in exiremely rare circumstances, we
defermine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public inferest benefits of such communication.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Ms. Tay Hwee Ling.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

29 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FEEmkAEMEER SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z-TFE+_-_A=+—RHIEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-hF
Note S$ S$
B 5 ¥ h03% T g
Revenue & 5 69,562,227 61,058,604
Cost of sales $HE AR (50,878,961)  (45,586,465)
Gross profit EF 18,683,266 15,472,139
Other income E A A 6a 923,823 171,878
Other gains and losses H bz 1B 6b (157,878) (64,474)
Selling and distribution expenses HE XD HEAX (2,954,517) (3,151,317)
Administrative expenses 1THAX (7,475,492) (7,377,449)
Listing expenses WX 9 - (785,196)
Finance costs =N 7 (148,696) (182,757)
Profit before taxation BR B4 AT % 8,870,506 4,082,824
Income tax expense FrisfiAx 8 (2,039,687) (1,174,453)
Profit for the year FEBR Q 6,830,819 2,908,371
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hth2mE (X)) WisE
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently — [E#€ ] 56 EHT FHH =
fo profit or loss: BamhyEE -
Exchange differences on translation of BMEGINETBEER
foreign operation PE W =58 17,614 (32,944)
Item that will not be reclassified GEE T B 72
subsequently to profit or loss: BmmHE -
Revaluation of property, plant and BEEYE BB MRE
equipment, net of tax MR FHIE 27 (91,960) 115,644
Other comprehensive (expense) FREMZE (AX) ks
income for the year (74,346) 82,700
Total profit and other comprehensive FERAMRAEAZE RS
income for the year, net of tax HER MBRBIE 6,756,473 2,091,071
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREFXRBERR
(S$ cents) (3 I3E 5 ) 12 0.68 0.29

See accompanying nofes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SFEMBRAER

As at 31 December 2020 WZ-ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Note S$ S$
B 5 1 038 T N T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB R&E 13 21,200,795 19,769,323
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 1,112,811 1,175,915
Investment property BREWE 15 - 1,283,880
Deposit Be 18 493,384 194,390
22,806,990 22,423,508
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16 10,636,795 12,426,169
Trade receivables B 5 WA 17 13,156,360 12,377,622
Other receivables, deposits and EMERFIE -Ze &
prepayments At A 18 872,228 607,875
Derivative financial instruments PTHEEMIT A 20 4,545 2,502
Bank balances and cash RITEBRMIES 21 24,400,875 16,310,340
49,070,803 41,724,508
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 NH b ENFRIAE 22 6,798,189 6,515,860
Amount due fo a related party J&° — 2 B e 05 R OR 19 = 6,432
Derivative financial instruments PTHEEMmITE 20 237,308 69,215
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 180,756 190,772
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 24 670,281 447,756
Income tax payable FET TSR 1,824,755 1,017,706
9711289 8,247,741
Net current assets REBEEFE 39,359,514 33,476,767
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAEE 62,166,504 55,900,275
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HEUBRAR

As at 31 December 2020

—E-_EF+_-_A=+—H

2020 2019
—EEF —ZE-hF
Note S$ S$
e ¥ h03% T g
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Llease liabilities HEAE 23 1,076,621 1,121,528
Bank and other borrowings IRIT R E M fEK 24 1,839,018 2,302,739
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEAE 25 910,505 892,121
3,826,144 4,316,388
Net assets EEFE 58,340,360 51,583,887
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves MRA K i 5
Share capifal &N 26 1,725,820 1,725,820
Share premium R inimE 13,487,471 13,487,471
Other reserve HEMEE (332,000) (332,000
Merger reserve Ao 299,994 299,004
Revaluation reserve EHFHE 27 11,676,998 11,768,958
Translation reserve PE 5 (1,589,833) (1,607,447)
Accumulated profits 255 A 33,071,910 26,241,091
58,340,360 51,583,887

The consolidated financial statements on pages 120 fo 220 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Direcfors on

29 March 2021 and are signed on ifs behalf by:

Lim Seow Yen
MR/ FE
Director

EF

See accompanying nofes fo consolidated financial statfements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZE-Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

Share Share Other Merger ~ Revaluafion  Translation  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profifs Totol
Be  BRHEE  EtRE  AHEE  EMREE  EXNRE  RHEA L
8§ 8% s$ 8§ 89 s$ 8§ 89

MM mgEr ;g MM mgr MR g g
(Note a) [Note b) (Note 27|
(M) (Wab)  (H&27)

At T January 2019 R-E-hE-A-H 2 - (332,000) 2909994 11,653,314 (1,574,503) 23,680,348 33,727,155
Profit for the year FEREH = = = - - - 2908371 2,908,371
Other comprehensive income FREBEENE
for the year - - - - 115,644 (32,944) - 82,700
Total comprehensive income for the year F M2 E K2 = - - - 115,644 (32,944)  2908,371 2,991,071
Transactions with owners, recognised — BHREAZXS
directly in equiy: EERBRAER:
Issue of shares under the share offer ~ RERHEEHET
[Note 26) &fn (Fzk26) 345164 16,913,042 - - - - - 17,258,206
Issue of shares under the capitolisation ~ IRIZE AL 17817
issue (Note 26) Rfn (HizE26) 1,380,654 (1,380,654) - - - - - -
Share issue expenses RiARITAE - (2044917 - - - - - [2,044,917)
Dividends declared (Note 11) BERBRE (K1) - - = - - - (347,628) (347,628
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE
+=A=t+-8 1725820 13,487 471 (332,000) 200994 11768958  (1,607447) 26241091 51,583,887
Profit for the year EREF - = = = = - 6830819 6,830,819
Other comprehensive income for the year R 12 Mz - - - - (91,960) 17,614 - (74,346)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2E 18 = - - - (91,960) 17614 6,830,819 6,756,473
At 31 December 2020 R-E-BF
+=A=1+-8 1725820 13,487 471 (332,000) 209004 11,676,998 (1,589,833 33071910 58,340,360
Note: B 5T

a)  Other reserve represents the combined effect upon complefion of share o) HthHEEEEREEEMAN —HD MG Trealz

transfer of Treatz Food Sdn. Bhd. (“TZF") and Tai Sun Lim Kee Food Foods Sdn. Bhd. ([TZF ]) &Tai Sun Lim Kee Food

Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“TSF") to Tai Sun (Lim Kee) Food Industries Pte. Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd. ([TSF 1) BB PRE N =

lid. ("TSS") by two individual shareholders of TZF and TSF in April 2018 Z—NFW AMTai Sun (Lim Kee) Food Industries

as part of group reorganisation. Pre. Lid. ([TSS1)EEETZFRRTSFRR 10 & 00 & O %2
488

b)  Merger reserve represents the difference between the cost of acquisiion  b] & #ffEEE L — B FERBEBEAETI
pursuant fo the group reorganisation in prior financial year and the tofal B AREDWEEE Y RABERNERE-
value of share capital of the entities acquired.

See accompanying nofes fo consolidated financial statements. B RERA IS RRBEN -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZE-TF+-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—ECEF —h&F
S$ S$
¥ h03% T g
Operating activities RETH
Profit before taxation B B4 B i A 8,870,506 4,082,824
Ad|justments for: AR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB REREITE 1,724,916 1,695,030
Depreciation of rightof-use assets EREEENE 195,762 199,081
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BWE M
plant and equipment R (3,444) =
Gain on lease modification HEERKa=s (5,423) =
Finance costs BE B A 148,696 182,757
Interest income LB U A (259,537) (64,2772)
Fair value loss on derivative financial THESE T A
instruments NFE{EEE 235,630 116,665
Fair value loss on investment property BREMENRFERRE - 165,452
Net unrealised foreign exchange loss (gain) REMIMNEEE (W) F58 45,446 (134,522)
Operating cash flows before movements in EELEEFFILE
working capital Beh=E 10,952,552 6,243,015
Movements in working capital: EELETEE:
Decrease |increase) in inventories FERA () 1,788,204 (2,162,917)
Increase in trade receivables 2 5 WA G AN (781,449) (1,520,113)
Increase in other receivables, deposits and HEMEWHRIE e Rk
prepayments B IELE N (264,439) (8,639)
Settlement of derivative financial instruments EETEemIT A (69,580) (60,700
Increase in frade and other payables B 5 N E At FE AN FRIAE AN 279,855 1,294,392
(Decrease) increase in amounts due fo JE— R
a related party KIE OB A) & o0 (6,465) 6,465
Cash generated from operations KEEANIRS 11,898,678 3,791,503
Income taxes paid, net of refunds BEATER HBRR (1,204,116) (1,021,424)
Net cash from operating activities RETBHFEBRESFHE 10,694,562 2,770,079
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

o \%iﬁﬁ:ﬁi

For the year ended 31 December 2020

RE-T-TF+-A=+—ALLEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
S$ S$
¥ 038 T N T
Investing activities REES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BEREHE (1,960,633) (3,502,679)
Deposit paid to purchase of property, HBEWE BER
plant and equipment RBEIRE (298,994) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BEK
plant and equipment RIS R 4,000 =
Repayment from shareholders PR B K - 173,374
Interest received B W F B 259,537 64,272
Redemption of fixed deposit & [o F HiTF =K 10,039,800 -
Placement of fixed deposits TFAEBEFR (3,001,677)  (10,039,800)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities RETEHME (A RESFE 5,042,033 (13,304,833)
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RIT R E M E RS KIA 203,560 2,000,000
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEARE (253,872) (270,169
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BEIRITREMER (444,756) (4,208,059
Inferest paid BEATFE (74,672) (107,142)
Dividend paid B A = (347,628)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS F0E - 17,258,206
Issue cost paid BT EITRAR - (1,553,864
Net cash (used in) from financing activities MEEE (FTR)MEBHEESFE (569,740) 12,771,344
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RekReFSEWILINFHE 15,166,855 2,236,590
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on SN BE R B B ¥ 5 H M E
the balance of cash held in foreign currencies Rednew g (38,197) 8,944
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FOREIREFEY
of the year 6,270,540 4,025,006
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FREERREE
the year (Note 21) By (HaE21) 21,399,198 6,270,540

See accompanying notes fo consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

GENERAL

TS Wonders Holding Llimited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and registered
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the Companies
law, Cap. 22 (law 3 of 1961, as combined and revised) of
the Cayman lIslands on 19 April 2018. The Company was
registered with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as
a nonHong Kong company under Part 16 of the Hong Kong
Compoanies Ordinance (the “Companies Ordinance”] (Chapter
622 of the laws of Hong Kong) on 23 May 2018 and the
principal place of business in Hong Kong is Room 901, 9th
Floor, Prosperity Tower, No. 39 Queen’s Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong. Its registered office and principal place of business
are located at Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and 255
Pandan loop, Singapore 128433, respectively. The shares of
the Company have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited [the “Stock Exchange”) with
effect from 14 January 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company and ifs
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the production,
packaging and refailing of food products. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Nofe 35 fo the consolidated
financial statements. Its parent and ultimate holding company
is SWL Limited ("SWL") a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. lts ultimate controlling shareholders are Mr. Lim
Fung Yee [“Mr. Winsfon Lim"), Mr. Lim Fung Chor ("Mr. lawrence
Lim"), Ms. Lim Seow Yen ("Ms. Sandy lim"), Mdm. Han Yew
lang, Mr. Lloo Soon Hock James and Ms. Ong liow Wah, all of
them are family members (collectively known as the “Controlling

Shareholders”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Singapore
Dollars ["S$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements are approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company on 29 March 2021.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

New and amended International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) that are effective for the current year

Impact of the initial application of Corona Virus Disease 2019
("Covid-19") Related Rent Concessions Amendment to IFRS 16

In the current financial year, the Group has applied the
amendment to IFRS 16 (as issued by the IASB in May 2020) in

advance of its effective date.

The Group has applied the practical expedient refrospectively to
all rent concessions that meet the conditions in IFRS 16:46B, and
has not restated prior period figures.

Impact of the initial application of other new and amended IFRS
Standards that are effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the amendments fo
IFRS Standards and Inferpretations issued by the Board that are
effective for an annual period that begins on or after 1 January
2020. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the
disclosures or on the amounts reported in these consolidated
financial statements.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS 2.

(Continued)

BT R RET 2R w0

© 78 i 18 1] R 4 R A9 5T R R4S RT
B PR B 75 3 5 22 A
RZEVBHRRERETHBY AEEY
BEA T 52 BEME R ERE R R
CREL

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet
effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the
Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — BB BT A5 3R 5 R 0% - FlREENE
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 Phase 2! B e ERE 305 - - E R
and IFRS 16 BB iR R E5
B B I SR R 45 R
BB B iR R 1 6%
(BET)
Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies? BIfR & A5 15 R EIR S RRKE?
IFRS Practice Statement 2 HEREENEBRREE2R
(BF1 %)
Amendments fo IAS 8 Definition of Accounting B e ERIESSE (BAIA)  @tfhataEH?
Estimates?
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BB B RE BRI E 7% RE G 4
Amendments to IFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets BB BREENEI0R R REEHRABERA
IAS 28 between an Investor and its B et £RE28% (BFTA) HAELEZHN
Associate or Joint Venture* BELES B
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BB EE 1R (BIA) KEEIEARYK
Current or Non-Current® e
Amendments fo IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual BIBRBF 5 3R 5 £ B 35 HatERS R’
Framework® (P}EMS)
Amendments to IAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment — REFEAEION (BIAR) WX BERRE
Proceeds before Intended use® —BRERBAN
g8
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of BB e ERE37% (BiTR) BREEGH-BHEH
Fulfilling a Contract® RS

Annual improvements fo
IFRS standards 2018
2020 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS @ Financial
Instruments and IFRS 16 Leases®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023,

with early application permitted.

determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022,

with early application permitted.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

(Continued)

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet
effective (Continved)

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards
listed above will have a material impact on the financial
statements of the Group in future periods.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Infernational Accounting Standards
Board.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the applicable
disclosures required by the Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis and in accordance with the following
accounting policies which conform to IFRS Standards except for
certain buildings and land, investment property and financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amount or fair values at
the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid fo transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
markef parficipants at the measurement datfe, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation fechnique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characterisfics info account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in the financial statements is defermined
on such a basis, except for sharebased payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarifies to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 /nventories or
value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of accounting (Continved)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in ifs entirety, which are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assefs or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Llevel 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assef or

liability.
The principal accounting policies adopted are sef out below.

Going concern

The directors have, at the time of approving the financial
statements, a reasonable expectation that the Group have
adequate resources fo confinue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concem
basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and company controlled by the
Company and ifs subsidiaries. Control is achieved when a

company:
®  has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable refurns from its

involvement with the investee; and
e has the ability fo use its power to affect ifs returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it confrols an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
confrol over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated sfatement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the company gains control
until the date when the company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group's accounting policies.

All infra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

FEMBImRME
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue from the production, packaging
and sale of goods. Revenue is recognised fo depict the transfer
of promised goods or services fo cusfomers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects fo be entifled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Group
uses a S-sfep approach fo revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.
o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.
e  Step 3: Defermine the transaction price.

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract.

e Siep 5: Recognise revenue when [or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is fransferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods [or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct services that are
substantially the same.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress fowards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria

is met:

e the cusfomer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs; or

. the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alfernative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in fime when the
customer obtains confrol of the distinct service.

A receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of fime is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Specifically, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised af a point in fime
the control of the goods has fransferred, i.e. when the goods
have been delivered to customers.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A confract is, or confains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
fo control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a confract is
or confains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16
at inception or modification date. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as lessor

leases for which the group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease fransfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Renfal income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Inifial direct cosfs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operafing lease are
added fo the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
on a straightline basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or confains a lease,
af inception of the contract. The Group recognises a rightof-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short
term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straightline basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continved)

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate specific to the lessee.

lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise:

e  fixed lease payments [including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives;

e  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate af the
commencement date;

e the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual volue guarantees;

e the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain fo exercise the opfions; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the
lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated stafement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount fo reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made.
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continved)

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a significant
event, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate;

e  the lease payments change due to changes in an index
or rate or a change in expected payment under o
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments
change is due to a change in a floating inferest rate, in
which case a revised discount rate is used); or

* a lease confract is modified and the lease modification
is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The rightof-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and
any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs fo dismantle
and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located
or resfore the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and
measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate fo a
rightofuse asset, the cosfs are included in the related rightof-use
asset, unless those cosfs are incurred to produce inventories.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continved)

Rightof-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset, the related rightofuse
asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.
The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The rightofuse assets are presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies IAS 36 to defermine whether a rightofuse
asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss
as described in the ‘Impairment of tangible assets’ policy.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are nof
included in the measurement of the lease liability and the right-of-
use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition that friggers those
payments occurs and are included in the line “Administrative
expenses” in the statement of profit or loss.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are
measured and presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates |its functional currency).
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
consolidated statement of financial position and equity of the
Company are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency
for the consolidated financial statements.
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3 EAEHHEXRw

Foreign currency transactions and translation (Continved)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual entities,
fransactions in currencies other than the enfity’s functional currency
are recorded af the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are refranslated at the rafes prevailing on the date
when the fair value was defermined. Non-monetary itfems that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on refranslation of monefary items are included in
profit or loss for the periods. Exchange differences arising on
the refranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the periods except for differences
arising on the refranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. For such non-monetary itfems, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assefs and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
expressed in Singapore dollars using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expense items
[including comparatives) are translated af the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in a separate component of equity under the header of translation

reserve.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Foreign currency transactions and translation (Continved)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Croup's enfire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, loss of joint confrol over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation, or loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
accumulated exchange differences in respect of that operation
afributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily fake a substantial period of fime fo get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their infended

use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
aftaching fo them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systfematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are infended
fo compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-urrent assefs are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statements of financial position and
fransferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rafional basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments made to Central Provident Fund (“CPF") and Employees
Provident Fund (“EPF"), being defined contribution benefits, are
recognised as expense when employees have rendered service
enfifling them fo the contributions.

Shortterm employee benefits

Shortterm employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All shortterm employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another IFRS requires or
permifs the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
[such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave] after
deduction of any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The fax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “Profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates (and
fax laws) that have been enacted or subsfantively enacted in
countries where the Company and subsidiaries operate by the
end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assefs and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding fax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be ufilised. Such assefs and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed af the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assef fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
seffled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
fax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Croup expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover
or sefile the carrying amount of ifs assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed fo be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sales.
The Group has not rebutted the presumption that the carrying
amount of the investment properties will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or
income in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

For purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing fransactions
in which the Group recognises the rightofuse assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first defermines whether the tax
deductions are atiributable fo the rightofuse assefs or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
affributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
Income taxes requirements to right-of-use assefs and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition
of the relevant rightof-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition exemption.
Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision to the
carrying amounts of right-of-use assefs and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject fo initial recognition exemption
are recognised on the date of remeasurement or modification.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Property, plant and equipment

land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the dafe of revaluation, less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair values
at the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land
and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in revaluation reserve, except fo the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited
to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged.
A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such
land and buildings is charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the property revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Asset in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes, or for purposes not yef determined,
are carried af cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost
includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
cosfs capifalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assefs, on the same basis as other
assefs, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

The payments of leasehold building and leasehold land are
separate. leasehold building is fully paid and presented as
"property, plant and equipment” in the consolidated statement
of financial position while interest in leasehold land is paid
over ifs lease term and presented as “rightof-use assefs” in the
consolidated sfafement of financial position.
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Confinued)

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Except for freehold land and renovation in progress, depreciation
is charged so as to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straightline method. The esfimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the assef. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or refirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is defermined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or refirement
of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus
remaining in the properties revaluation reserve is fransferred
directly to accumulated profits. No transfer is made from the
revaluation reserve to accumulated profits except when an asset
is derecognised.

Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and
for capital appreciation (including property under construction,
is measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Investment property (Continued)

An investment property shall transfer to property, plant and
equipment when there is a change in use. A change in use
occurs when the property meets, or ceased o meet, the definition
of investment property and there is evidence of the change in
use. In isolation, a change in management's intention for the use
of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.

For transfer from investment property carried at fair value to
property, plant and equipment, the property’s deemed cost
for subsequent accounting shall be its fair value at the date of
change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
periods in which the property is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises raw material and where applicable, direct
labour cosfs and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories fo their present location and condifion.
Cost is calculated using the firstinfirstout method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the management of the
Croup reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assefs fo
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the assef is estimated in order to defermine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assefs are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assefs are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is defermined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units 1o
which the corporate assef belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating unifs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair values less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pre-
fax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
fime value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If
the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated fo be less than ifs carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit] is reduced
fo ifs recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Impairment of tangible assets (Continved)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the assef is increased fo the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
impairment loss is freated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required o settle the obligation,
and a reliable esfimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required fo sefile the present obligation at the
end of each reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to seffle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to sefile a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
Group's statement of financial position when the Group becomes
a parly fo the contractual provisions of the instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly affributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assefs and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities af fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
aftributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liobilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assefs are
recognised and derecognised on a frade dafe basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety af
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification
of the financial asses.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order fo collect
contractual cash flows: and

e the confractual ferms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continved)

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income ("FVTOCI"):

e the financial assef is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assefs; and

e the confractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dafes to cash flows that are solely payments of
principo\ and inferest on the principo\ amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS
9 (including frade receivables, other receivables and deposits
and bank balances and cash) are subsequently measured af
amortised cosfs.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective inferest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant periods.

For financial instruments, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) excluding expected credit losses ("ECL"), through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument
on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Amortised cost and effective interest method (Continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at inifial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.
On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any
loss allowance.

Inferest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost and
at FVTOCI. For financial instruments, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become creditimpaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit impaired, inferest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rafe to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods,
the credif risk on the creditimpaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer creditimpaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective inferest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Inferest income is recognised in profit or loss using the effective
interest method and is included in the “Other income” line item.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assefs that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets af FVTPL are measured at fair value af the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss fo the extent they are not part of a
designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “Other gains and losses”
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in

Note 30.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assefs that are denominated
in a foreign currency is defermined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, and financial assets
measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, the exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
"Other gains and losses” line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets under ECL model

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assefs which are subject to impairment under IFRS @ (including
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months affer the reporting dafe. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experiences,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Impairment of financial assets under ECL model (Confinved)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for frade receivables
and measures the lifetime ECL for portfolios of trade receivables
that share similar economic risk characteristics. The ECL on those
financial assets are estimated using an analysis of assefs by risk
level of customers and apply a probability weighted estimate
of the credit losses within the relevant risk type. The probobi\if\/
weighted estimate of the credit losses is determined based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions af the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as af the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-
looking information considered includes the future prospects of
the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained
from financial analysts and governmental bodies, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group's core operations
namely the production, packaging and retailing of food products.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continved|

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt
obligations;

*  an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
ofherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk af the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default (i.e. no
default history), ii] the borrower has a strong capacity fo meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the longer ferm
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criferia are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituing an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as hisforical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

e information developed infemally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking info
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than Q0
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information fo demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Creditimpaired financial assets

Financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is creditimpaired includes observable data about the following

events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
or

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

or

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having
granted 1o the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
info bankruptey proceedings, or in the case of frade receivables,
when the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets writien off may still be subject o
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking info account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is o function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a defaulf) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forwardHooking information. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the confract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects fo receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
defermined at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continved)

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for
cases where evidence of significant increases in credit risk at the
individual instrument level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

e Natfure of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits are each
assessed as a separate group.)

o Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management fo ensure
the constituents of each group confinue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment fo
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights fo the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On de*recogniﬁon of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification of financial liabilities or equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
enfity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arangements
entered info and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual
inferest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

liability is held for frading.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near ferm; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of shortterm profittaking; or

® it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any
gains or losses arising on changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss to the exfent that they are not part of a designated
hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss incorporates any inferest paid on the financial liabilities and
is included in the “Other gains and losses” line ifem. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 30.
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration of
an acquirer in a business combination, 2) heldfortrading, or 3)
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective inferest method.

The effective inferest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant periods. The effective inferest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
[including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective inferest rafe, transaction costs and
other premiums  or discounts) through the expecfed life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency
and are measured af amortised cost at the end of each reporting
period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are defermined
based on the amortised cost of the instruments. These foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in the “Other gains
and losses” line item in profit or loss for financial liabilities that
are not part of a designated hedging relationship. For financial
liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange
component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is
recognised in profit or loss for financial liabilities that are not part
of a designated hedging relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets fransferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered info and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair volue af the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognised as
a |iobi|ify in the GCroup's and the Company's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company's shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank
deposits that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Group's management is required fo make judgements,
esfimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered fo be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following is the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assefs within the next
twelve months.
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY  (Contined)

Revaluation of leasehold/freehold buildings and
freehold land (Note 13)

The Group's leasehold/freehold buildings and freehold land are
measured at revaluation model. The valuation was determined
by the management of the Group by reference fo valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer. The valuation
involves significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustment.
In relying on the valuation report of the independent professional
valuer, the management has exercised ifs judgement and is
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the market
conditions prevailing af respective valuation dates affer taking info
consideration the state of the relevant properties. Any changes in
the market conditions will affect the fair value of these properties

of the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate carrying amount
of leasehold/freehold buildings and freehold land are

4

ARSI HE AT TITRERZ
A EERE @

HE KAXERBFRAKAXEL
B HEE (KMEE13)

AEBENHEE KAEEEFRAKAEE
TR ERRAGE - HEDHASEE
BEE2EZBUEXMEMIGEET &
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TEHHE R EEBHEBYENRRE F
MEETDARREGEERER 2T -
MREREFNESHIEHAEEZENE
ZRVFHEERTZE -

AZTE-_FEF+_A=+—B & Kk
AXEBEFRKAXEEI N BEERE

S$14,572,662 (2019: S$13,747,362). B14,572,6628 Mt (ZFE— L &E:
13,747 ,362%1 113k IT) °

Allowance for inventories (Note 16) FERE (ME16)

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an AEERRESGFER R FEMEZTGE

assessment of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances RETEELEFE WEERTEHRIERE

are applied fo inventories where events or changes in 2 BRAERFEERFEXS AE

circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower than

FEELREE - BHREFS ‘E#IJl‘zﬁ&ﬁqu

the cost of invenfories. The identification of obsolefe inventories FEMRRA KRB A - Wt hFEH A Z R
requires the use of judgement and estimates on the conditions FEREHD AR TFEER Ej(%ﬂﬁ
and usefulness of the inventories. In cases where the net WAS A FER % B B BRI N B s P #ERR
realisable value of inventories assessed are less than expected,

a material recognition of allowance for inventories may arise,

which would be recognised in profit or loss in the periods in

which such recognition takes place.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of inventories R_ZE_ZEF+_RA=+—8" T_i‘fﬁﬁﬁ
are $$10,636,795 (2019: S$12,426,169). BER10,636, 7958 MK T (ZE—HF:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY  (Continved)

Loss allowance for trade receivables (Note 17)

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, using
an analysis of assefs by risk level of customers based on the
Group's historical credif loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the confract and all the cash flows that the
Group expecis fo receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
defermined at initial recognition. VWhere the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward due to changes
in facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of trade
receivables are $$13,156,360 (2019: S$12,377,622).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received and
receivable from the sales of food products, which can largely be
grouped under nuts and chips, also represents the revenue from
confracts with customers.

Information is reported to the executive directors of the Company,
which are also the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”)
of the Group, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the types
of products sold and in respect of the "Nuts” and “Chips”
operations. In current year, the CODM review the profits by type
of product sold instead of overall results of the Group as a whole
as compared fo prior years. Accordingly, the comparative figure
is disclosed with segment resull. No operating segments have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

31 December 2020

4

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-EF+-A=+—H

ARSI HERATTIEERE
HNEERR @

B REAEBRRE (HE17)

AEBENAEBBEEEBERLHER
BEPRBRERHEEDNHERE S ELEK
ENEHBEREERR YHEBARFER
E EBLERRARRRE BB ZBMRE
ARKRARSTT R H)FF (A 1B A - RIRTEHE
ERERAFHMRERBEEERES
HWENAEBENMAEANREREEARE
BREMKRENAERSRE ZHHNER
B WIR UG R A B R A KALIR - iy
ARBRERELINRBHIAFTERRESE
e ~F - RIA e E A EARERE -

RZE-_ZEF+_A=+—"HB ZE5EHK
REREEAIS 156,360 Kt (ZZ
—NF 12,377 62253k T) °

Wz & 7 & E H
WBEEREHERR (TARSBRERR

R MERRER RN AT E TR
Fa s

BOLEREFEDRREREMRAR AR
TER (NARKEMNEIREERRE ([
BEEERKEE]) )Z2HNER BRI
RIRIERI¥BNEEERER -HESF
HE TREERREREMFERDEE
miRE - MIEAREEBNREEM G -
Bt BB FED MEE—HRE-HE
EHEEDMAEKRAEB A 2R B -
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 5 YN ZE R 2 ZBE R @)
Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under IFRS 8 are HEMmMs AEEREBEEMEREENE
as follows: 8RR 2| T :
(i) Nouts, (i) BXE .
[i)  Chips; and i)y 2R K
li)  Others. lii) Hfbe
Others mainly include items such as disposable towels which are HtXrERAEERR R MAHMQRHEHE
normally sold together with the nuts and chips products to food BRMEFEMBAEE - FLEN RN
and beverages companies. ENEY&E-
Segment revenue and results DB ERES
The following is a breakdown of the Group's revenue and results UTAREAZ%SHMBE D AEE KRR
by reportable segments: EERAMA:
Revenue Net profit
Iy & #F
2020 2019 2020 2019
it 223 —EB-hF i et 223 —E-NF
s$ s$ S$ s$
303K 7T L 33K 7T e o
Nuts 253 50,611,699 46,966,438 13,590,663 11,776,815
Chips 2R 17,489,566 11,651,116 4,667,510 2,994,081
Others Hity 1,460,962 2,441,050 425,093 701,243
69,562,227 61,058,604 18,683,266 15,472,139
Other income Hib WA 923,823 171,878
Other gains and losses Hopth oo B 48 (157,878) (64,474)
Selling and distribution expenses S8 &7 $EF X (2,954,517) (3,151,317)
Administrative expenses THHAX (7,475,492) (7,377,449)
Listing expenses FHAEX = (785,1906]
Finance costs BERA (148,696) (182,757)
Profit before taxation B 74 Al i A 8,870,506 4,082,824
Income tax expense FTiS i 2 (2,039,687) (1,174,453
Profit for the year F R )5 6,830,819 2,908,371
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31 December 2020

FEMBHRRMEE
—EEF+-A=+—H

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (coninved 5 Y 2 2 9 ZBE Bl (0
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PEHMERESE
The Group derives its revenue from sales of Nuts, Chips and AEENKRRKEHERR BH MHEAM:
Others where all performance obligations for sales of goods MHEEROMBEROEEIBNE -
are at a point in time. During the year, all the contracts for sales BEIT-RERN MINSEFPHEE IR
of goods to external customers are shortterm, and the contract BN AEBE BENBRENZERE
prices are agreed based on factors such as volume per unit (mghe, BE) BT -
price.
The accounting policies are the same as Group's accounting S BCREM S AR B T BRE
policies described in Note 3. Segment profit represents the A o 9 855 F 46 & 5 EBERER 60 )& F1| - I MR
profit earned by each segment without allocation of centralised RE MU Ehss R EHE - SHE R i
other income, other gains and losses, selling and distribution X fTRAX Emkx- Eﬁf%?ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ
expenses, adminisirative expenses, listing expenses, finance costs SHRFASET AR UL IR E RSB K &
and income tax expense. This is the measure reported fo the RAFEAETELBERAREREZAES
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of o
segment performance.
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERER
No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is presented HRUTEFTHRNARAEEEIZLERKTER
as they are not regularly provided to the CODM of the Group. HOMEEIDFABENON  HpttES
SIBREDH
Other segment information HittnZBEHR
2020 2019
—BC®H —ENF
S$ s$
#h03R T ¥ N T
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BB RRETENUR
equipment and rightof-use assets: CREEENE:
Nuts BR 1,220,066 1,223,878
s % 421,610 303,611
Others HAth 35,218 63,610
Unallocated A 243,784 303,012
1,920,678 1,894,111
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 5

Geographical information

The Group principally operates in Singapore and Malaysia,
which are the place of domicile of respective group entities.
Revenue from external customer is based on the geographical
location of the end-customers. The Group's non-current assets are
located in Singapore and Malaysia.

WERDEHBER @

EER
AREBFTERFTNMBELEERAT(HAES
EEEEMNEEN)KLEEK - RAINBE
PRI DERRHEPAMIEMN B - A&
BERIERBEEL MR ING & E R -

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-hF
S$ S$

7 003 T NI

Revenue by geographical location of RiEmE P IR E & 5D AW -

the end-customers:

- Singapore — N3 39,595,455 36,495,611
- Malaysia — Bk 15,881,052 15,184,101

— The People's Republic of China —HhEARHEM
(including Hong Kong and Macau) (BEEBMER) 11,612,353 5,416,606
— Others —HAb 2,473,367 3,962,286
69,562,227 61,058,604
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
S$ S$
¥ h03% T g

Non-current assets: EREEE

- Singapore — 3N 9,068,592 9,371,661
- Malaysia — 5 R 13,738,398 13,051,847

22,806,990 22,423,508
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

The revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of
fofal revenue of the Group during the years ended 31 December

2020 and 2019 are as follows:

FEMBImRME

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

5 WERDSBER @

FEEFEH
BE_Z2_ZFRKR_FE—hh&F+=A
=+ BUEFE KREFEMhAER LU =
BIO%M B Uz T -

2020 2019

—BIERF —T-NEF

S$ S$

¥ 03K 7T N T

Customer A ZEEA 19,372,371 15,667,348
Customer B* = FBR* 9,641,929 —*
Customer C* EFEC* 7,378,820 —*
* This customer did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of * BE_ZT—NEF+-A=+—HLFE"

the Group in the year ended 31 December 2019.

ZEPYEMAEE K EEI0% -

OTHER INCOME 6A HAUg A
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
S$ S$
¥ b T ¥ o
Government grants* BT By * 615,083 25,046
Interest income LB A 259,537 64,2772
Rental income EE WA 11,818 71,475
Others HA 37,385 11,085
923,823 171,878

The government grants received mainly comprise the Wage Credit
Scheme ["WCS"), the Special Employment Credit [“SEC"), the Jobs
Support Scheme ("JSS”), Wage Subsidy Programme (“WSP") and
the Foreign Worker Levy Rebates (“FVWL Rebates”), all of them are
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs.

* B W ER B R 40 B E B R AN F A AL AT A
(Fhn#r e BE Rt 811 A5 BBt 2648 B (145
AIBLEMEL]) R AR S ([EMAERL
FE)  TEMBE ([TEMRTE )
FONBTARMERA(IMETARER
) HEREEENMAXNEENHEE
HEES T AEEENE %A B (R 2K
HHRARA) ©
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2020

—E-TF+_-_A=+—H

6A OTHER INCOME (Continued)

6B

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised grants of $$527,934, under the JSS. Under this
scheme, the government provides wage support to employers,
helping businesses retain their local employees (including
Singapore citizens and permanent residents| during the economic
uncertainty caused by the Covid-19

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received
subsidies of S$43,135, under the WSP. Under this scheme,
the government provides wage support to employers, helping
businesses retain their local employees during the economic
uncertainty caused by Covid-19

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received
rebates of $$29,250, under the FWL Rebates. Under this
scheme, the government provides support to firms with workers
who are unable to work during the economic uncertainty coused

by the Covid-19

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

A HMW A @

RBEE_Z_ZFF+_HA=+t—-HBL#HF
B AEEREBEERMMBMTEERE
527 Q348 T - RIFZ AT & MT &
019 MM BRIBFEEEER T EELE
HERARIRHEIEXS EPEEREH
EHEE (BERFMEAREKABR)

REBEZE-_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE"
AEBREZE T EMEL T8 W EIHA643,135
FTONF T o BIRFZET 8] BUFE201 978 Ak 7%
SHEBEHLEEEN T EELZ2HARET
RETETE EHHWCEBRBEEWES-

BE-_ZT-_TF+_A=+—BLtFE"
NEBRIEIET AESETINKEES
29,2505 N T o R IRFZ 5T 8] - BT £
2019BMRImBRIBE L EEK T EEFE
HMm T AEETENARRESF-

6B Hitblr R IEE

2020 2019
—Z2-FF —F-NF
S$ S$
#7103 T TN T
Gain on lease modification HEBR ks 5,423 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BWE RRBz ks
plant and equipment 3,444 S
Foreign exchange gain, net HME BE W 25 % 58 68,885 217,643
Fair value loss on investment property REWEZ X FEBE (MFE15)
(Note 15) - (165,452)
Fair value loss on derivative financial TEERIAZ A TEEBR
instruments (235,630) (116,665)
(157,878) (64,474)
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

FINANCE COSTS 7 BERK
2020 2019
—REF —T-hF
S$ S$
¥ h0 3% T N T
Inferest on: NT&BEZAE
— Bank loans —RITER 74,177 104,212
- lease liabilities —-HEaE 74,519 78,545
148,696 182,757
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8 MEBEX
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
S$ S$
i3 7o N T
Tax expense comprises: RERX8HE:
Current income tax BNERFT1S HX
Current year KEE 2,087,469 1,469,981
Over provision in prior year BEFEHBERE (74,843) (242,634)
2,012,626 1,227,347
Withholding tax SEEIER 3,962 2,771
Deferred tax (Note 25) EIERIE (M5E25)
Current year KEEZ (66,292) (125,462)
Under provision in prior year BEFERBTR 97,126 85,725
Effect of revaluations of assets EHEENBRKEEE
for taxation purposes (7,735) (15,928)
23,099 (55,665)
2,039,687 1.174,453
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

|NCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Singapore Corporate Income Tax [“CIT") is calculated at
17% of the estimated assessable profit and the subsidiaries
in Singapore are further eligible for CIT rebate of 25% of the
tax payable, capped at S$15,000 for Year of Assessment
["YoA") 2020 and S$Nil for YoA 2021, determined based on
financial year end date of the group of companies. Singapore
incorporated companies can also enjoy 75% fax exemption on
the first S$10,000 of chargeable income and a further 50% tax
exemption on the next $$190,000 of chargeable income.

In Malaysia, the standard corporate tox rate is 24% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2020. For YoA 2020, the tax
rafe for resident small and medium-sized companies is 17% on

the first MYR 500,000 with the balance being taxed at 24%.

The income fax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
0ss and ofher comprehensive income as Ttollows:

\ d oth preh foll

FrE®HeE X mw

MR EEMEH ([REMEH]) KA
FERFBUE MM 7%t B R T - FFH
FRE([FFRFEE]) - # KN B QR AR
FEN IR — PR ERE25% ( LIREER
15,000%7 p3% 7T ) V(R R FT S BUR T - MR
R -FBMFERAERY AEER
DERKEERRMBFEREE - RF
3% RE MM BK SZ RO X B B FE SR B M A B 10,000
B TT IR Al A R A7 5% T IR - B 1R
190,000%f hR 3 7T 1) FE &R B UL A AT — 2
ERRBANS0% TR IA -

RERAR BE-Z—NWEFR-_ZT-ZF
T+ A=+—HLEFENZEQARKES
244 CTHRIZBZEFIAMEE - FPHER
NAEBHS500,000F KA MEFMNRE L
17% » HER3R2A%HI T RAE R

AEENFAEHAXEFEREREMGS
et R EOBR IR AR A H BRI T

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-NF
S$ s$
#1037t T
Profit before taxation Bk 7 B 4 8,870,506 4,082,824
Tax at applicable tax rate of 17% R17%8E R X HEHHIA 1,507,986 694,080
Effect of different tax rafes of subsidiaries ERR VARG EHMER A
operating in other jurisdiction TREBENTE 222,929 225,449
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AEMBFA RS E
for tax purpose 351,248 513,048
Tax effect of income not taxable BARTBANTREZE
for tax purpose (110,137) (10,319)
Reversal of tfemporary differences BEREVMEEEEZYER BHER
from transfer of investment property o RBELEZEREEZR
property, plant and equipment (64,013) =
Effect of tax concessions and BUOR S K BB o B W F e O 2 &
partial fax exemptions (82,885) (96,891)
Under (Over) provision in prior year BEFEREBEIE (BREEE) 22,283 (156,909
Effect of revaluations of assefs BLEEENHBETE
for taxation purposes (7,735) (15,928)
Withholding tax TR IR 3,962 2,771
Others HAth 196,049 19,152
2,039,687 1,174,453
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9 FR&RFA

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting:

FREME IR (FEA) A TIRE :

2020 2019
—E-%F —F-NF
S$ S$
¥ hn3% 7T N3 T
Depreciation of property, ME - WELREITE

plant and equipment

Recognised as cost of sales R AHEEM AR 1,390,423 1,425,594

Recognised as administrative expenses RRITHAX 334,493 269,436

1,724,916 1 695,030
Annual audit fees: FEZRHER:

— Paid to audifors of the Company — X FARBZEE 169,000 202,000

— Paid to other auditors — S F E A A EAD 28,888 14,000
Non-audit fees: IEZEER:

- Paid to other auditors — P E A SN 18,080 15,600
Listing expenses FHRX - 785,196
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) EE=Me (MIFE10) 3,515,000 3,147,964
Other staff costs HM B THA

— Salaries and other benefits —HekEMEF 6,366,446 5,854,784

— Contributions to CPF and EPF —HFRNEEREERESHK 483,573 478,405
Total staff costs 488 TR A 10,365,019 9,481,153
Inventories recognised as cost of sales ERABEEKANTFE 43,009,326 38,249,623
Gross rental income from investment property % & #1372 WA B %8 (11,818) (71,475)

Amount recognised in profit or loss relating to leases

(Disclosure required by IFRS 16)

REZHERDNEEERANKE

(REBRPEREERNFEIOSRNREWE)

2020 2019

—2-%F —E-NF

S$ S$

03 T AN T

Depreciatfion expense on rightofuse assets ~ EREEEFTEERH 195,762 199,081
Inferest expense on lease liabilities HEBEBEMNERX 74,024 75,614
Expense relating to short+erm leases S EERX 25,198 25,164

The total cash outflow for leases amount to $$279,070 (2019:

$$295,333).

HMEZHR SR EER279,070% i T

T 295,333F MK IT) °
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' 10 EEM 4L R 12 H

EMOLUMENTS
Directors” emoluments EEWe
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company AEEBETEBENHIENEARRIEZESRH
by entities comprising the Group are as follows: &
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE
Contributions
Discretionary ~ Salaries and  to refirement
Fees bonus allowances  benefit scheme Total
RKEH
ik MERA FeRER TR st
s$ S$ S$ 8§
IR T A0SR T A0SR 7T 3K T
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lawrence Lim WHELE - 570,093 467,378 13,260 1,050,731
Mr. Winston Lim WEFEE - 570,093 467,378 9,180 1,046,651
Ms. Sandy Lim M E Lt - 570,093 451,778 9,180 1,031,051
Mr. lim Seng Chye AR % A& - 99,300 131,230 17,340 247,870
Mr. Zhang Junli (Note) REETE (F5) - - 42,676 - 42,676
Independent Non-Executive BIFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chan Ka Yu BRRFLE 32,007 = = = 32,007
Mr. Lee Yan Fai TEBEL 32,007 = = = 32,007
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow AR E 32,007 = = = 32,007
96,021 1,809,579 1,560,440 48,960 3,515,000
Note: Mr Zhang Junli was appointed as executive director of the Mist: REBEER-_ZE-—NAFAAZTLAR
Company on 27 September 2019. BEERRARPITES-
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' 10 EEM4A REEHFM =
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) EEME w
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_Z-NF+_A=+—RHFE
Contributions
Discrefionary  Salaries and fo refirement
Fees bonus allowances  benefit scheme Tofal
RIKEN
ik WL HFeliEh AR st
s$ s$ s$ S$
AR AR HANRTT HINRT
Executive Directors HITES
M. lawrence Lim WHELE = 511,779 432,325 14,560 058,604
Mr. Winston Lim MFEFEE = 511,779 432,325 10,080 054,184
Ms. Sandy Lim M E Tt = 511,779 416,725 10,080 038,584
Mr. lim Seng Chye B R & = 111,640 64,388 19,329 195,357
Mr. Zhang Junli REBLE - - 10,446 - 10,446
Independent Non-Executive BYFHITES
Directors
Mr. Chan Ka Yu BRFEE 30,243 = = = 30,243
M. lee Yan Fai TEREBLE 30,243 S = S 30,243
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow AR A 30,243 - - - 30,243
90,729 1,646,977 1,356,209 54,049 3,147,964
No chief executive had been appointed during the years ended BHE_ZTZ_TER_ZT-NEF+A
31 December 2020 and 2019. =t—BUEFE YEEZEEERSTHRAR
Discretionary bonus was determined by reference to the duties BBEANKE2ERBALIRAEENRE
and responsibilities of the relevant individual within the Group ERETEUREARAINKRBIEET -
and the Group's performance.
No other retirement benefits were paid to directors of the BERARAARETRER AR A H B
Company in respect of their respective services in connectfion with DR BTG AT IR R0 BR S 1 [ R S E
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary fl R KA R o

undertaking.
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES'
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

Employees’ remuneration

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
four (2019: three] were directors of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020 whose emoluments are included
in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining one

10

EEMERESFHw

EEME @

EXFATRBTEENOMENHREERR
D) R A SR B F T P R A A AR 1 S A o

EXATRBIATEETNOME IR RS
BEARBRESMEHRMRE M-

1& & % A

HEZZ-ZF+-A=+—HIEFE K
EEAGAESTMALHR HE(ZE—AN
F ZR)ABADRAES HENMHEHR
EXHE-HT—RB(ZT—LFE WME)A

(2019: two) individual(s) were as follows: T T
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
S$ S$
1 h03% T g
Salaries and allowances e KoREh 153,000 202,241
Discretionary bonus BB IEAL 90,000 142,400
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme R KRtE R 5T 21 3k 7,650 29,107
250,650 463,748
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10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' 10 EEM4A REEHFM =
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employees’ remuneration (Continued) EEHM =
The emoluments of five highest paid individuals (including IEBESFMALT(BRES) ZHHEE
directors) fall within the following bands: LI

Number of Employees

BEAH
2020 2019
e —ENF
Emolument bands e E
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7t E1,500,000/% 7T 2 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001/ ;L& 5,500,000% 7T - 8
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7T £ 6,000,000 7T 8 =
5 5
No emoluments were paid by the Group fo the directors of the BHE_ZT_ZTER_ZT-NEF+A
Company or the five highest paid individuals (including direcfors =t—BLEFE AKEHSEAAARES
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining IhEREFMAL (BREERES)X
the Group or as compensation for loss of office for the years FHEMRZB - (ER/MAREB IR IMARE
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. None of the directors BRI EAMBRHE B#E_T =
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended TEN_TE-NFE+-_A=+—RHILEE"
31 December 2020 and 2019. MEEZNEXFAERETMHH -

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2020 %3k 173



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

11 DIVIDENDS 11

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of
the Company declared and paid during TBRAREAR S

the year:

ARBFAT IR MR E

2019 Final = HK$NIl (2018: HK$0.2 cents) —ZE—NFRERE -—SRES T

per share

—ZE—\F: 0.28(l) =

R E
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-hF
S$ S$
¥ hn3 T AN T
347,628

No dividends were paid or declared by the Company during the
year or subsequent fo the year end.

AR T RE P F £ B AR SR
AR & o

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BRAEF
2020 2019
—2o%F —E-NF
Profit for the year attributable to the owners — ZN A RI#E A A FEAG & [ )& 7
of the Company (S$) (¥rhnigoT) 6,830,819 2,908,371
Weighted average number of ordinary EEITERBRINE TS
shares in issue 1,000,000,000 992,876,712
Basic and diluted eamings per share BRERL#EERN CGhngo)
(S$ cents) 0.68 0.29

The calculation of basic eamings per share for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 is based on the profit for the
year affributable to owners of the Company and the weighted
average number of shares in issue.

Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings
per share because the Group has no dilutive securities that are
convertible into shares during the years ended 31 December

2020 and 2019.
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

FEMBImRME

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

13 W% -BENRRE

Leasehold Freehold Freehold  Plant and Furniture Motor  Renovation
building land building  machinery  and fittings vehicles in progress Total
KAEE  KA%E
HERT T BF BERRE KRAREE i #HPIR @t
s$ $$ s$ s$ s$ s$ $$ s$
T RAMT BT BAET FaET SRR SRR AEx
Cost or valuation: BASfE:
At 1 January 2019 R=Z-1&
-A-H 6,800,000 2,803,300 2,209,661 10,501,096 2,237,636 1,201,156 643,950 26,396,799
Reclassification ENNE = = - - 643950 - [643,950) -
Additions NE - 1,298,289 976,359 212,560 032,191 83,280 - 3,502,679
Wihiteoff HisH - - - (1,161 - - - (1,161)
Revaluation gain {loss) s (B8) 100,000 108,053 (529,638 - - - - (321,585
Exchange difference R ER - [12,342) 16,320) (16,417) 4,672) (480) - 40,231)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+ZA=t-H 6,900,000 4,197,300 2,650,062 10,696,078 3,809,105 1,283,956 - 29,536,501
Transferred from investment BRENESE
property {Note 15) (BaE15) S 672,956 607,300 = = = - 1,280,256
Additions AE S = S 921,586 = 26921 1012126 1,960,633
Disposal HE = = = (35,000 = = - (35,000
Revaluation loss EffER (200,000 {196,9006) (65,717) - - - - 462,617
Exchange difference I 5 25 - 4130 3,531 8,803 939 160 3,482 21,045
At 31 December 2020 RZB-2F
+ZA=+-8 6,700,000 4677480 3,195,182 11591467 3,810,044 1,311,037 1015608 32,300,818
Comprising: B!
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+=A=+-8
Al cost TN = = - 10,696,078 3,809,105 1,283,956 - 15,789,139
At valuation & ER 6,900,000 4,197,300 2,650,062 = = = - 13,747,362
6,900,000 4,197,300 2,650,062 10,696,078 3,809,105 1,283,956 - 29,536,501
At 31 December 2020 RZZB-2F
+ZA=t+-AH
Al cost BKARE - = - 11,591,467 3,810,044 1,311,037/ 1,015,608 17,728,156
At valuation & ER 6,700,000 4,677,480 3,195,182 = = = - 14,572,662
6,700,000 4,677,480 3,195,182 11591467 3,810,044 1,311,037 1,015,608 32,300,818
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continved)

13 ¥ -BERRKREmw

Leasehold Freehold Freehold  Plant and Furniture Motor  Renovation
building land building ~ machinery  and fittings vehicles in progress Total
KAEE  KA%E
HEERF i BT BERRE HKAREE B BHPIR @t
s$ $$ s$ s$ $$ s$ s$ s$
FOgT O RAMT BT BT BT SRR SRR FEx
Accumulated RIHE:
depreciation:
At 1 January 2019 R=%-1&
-A-H S = - 6,127,197 1,379,722 915,249 - 8,422,168
Charge for the year FREY 261,540 - 71,024 919,284 313,359 129,823 - 1,695,030
Writeoff HisH - = = (1,161) = = S (1,161)
Exchange difference R = - - (14,452 (1,361 (482) - (16,295)
Eliminated on revaluation EfHHEEH [261,540) - (71,024) - - - - (332,564)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+ZA=t+-H S = - 7,030,868 1,691,720 1,044,590 - 9767178
Charge for the year FRFEAY 287,496 - 77,889 935094 311,458 112,979 - 1724916
Disposal HE - - - (34,444) - - - (34,444)
Exchange difference i 5% 25 - - 21 6,776 778 204 - 7779
Eliminated on revaluation EfEEH [287,49¢) = (77,910 = = = - [365,406)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-2F
+ZA=t-8 = = - 7,938,294 200395 1,157,773 - 11,100,023
Carrying amounts: REE:
At 31 December 2020 RZB_T4F
+-A=+—-8 6,700,000 4,677,480 3,195182 3,653,173 1,806,088 153,264 1,015,608 21,200,795
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE
+-A=+—-8 6900000 4,197,300 2,650,062 3,665210 2,117,385 239 366 - 19,769,323
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continved)

The above items of property, plant and equipment [except for
freehold land and renovation in progress) are depreciated on
a straightline basis at the following useful lives after taking info
account the residual values:

leasehold building Over the land lease term till 2044

(Note)
Freehold building - 50 years
Plant and machinery - 10 vyears
Furniture and fitings = 3-10 years
Motor vehicles - 5vyears

Note: The building which is owned by the Group is located
on a leasehold land expiring in 2044. The leasehold land is
separately recognised as rightof-use asset in Note 14.

The Group has pledged leasehold building, freehold land and
building with carrying amount of $$12,744,493 to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group for the vyear

ended 31 December 2020 (2019: S$11,870,920).

Fair value measurement of the Group's land and
buildings

The Group's land and buildings are stated at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation. For year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers not related to the Group, Premas Valuers &
Property Consultants Pe ltd and MacReal International (|B) Sdn.
Bhd., who have appropriate qualifications and recent experience
in the fair volue measurement of the properties in the relevant
locations, to perform the valuation as af 31 December 2020
and 2019. Management has assessed that the key inputs and
assumptions used by the valuers for valuation dafe 31 December
2020 and 2019 remain applicable and reasonable as at year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019

FEMBImRME

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

13 ME -BERKXE®

- -BEEREER (TEEKAE
L AT B Ti2) T E BRI
BEER TR ERFHRNNEREFE
FeE:

MEZEF (ME) - RIinBEHEREZRE
—E N F

KAEREET - 50%

5 K %A - 0%

RANEKEE - 3Z210%

B - 5%

e AEEEENETLERN—BR _-F
MPFEREHAE T F o ZEE LR
AT ERERREREEE

BE_T-_THFF+_A=1T—BLEFE &
SECDEMREER2,744,493% K T
MBEERT KAERIMWEBFERLE
BER -RRITEENER (ZT—NF:
11,870,920% 0% 7T) °

FEETHREFOHAFENE

K%iﬂﬂ&@?ﬁﬁéﬁ/ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ Bp
ERERZAFE-BE_T_TFR_
E-NE+A=+— Elﬂzir REE
REEASEYEBEHRNE =TS ERME
{BRTPremas Valuers & Property Consultants Pte
Lid &2 MacReal International (JB) Sdn. Bhd. (1%
FEHBEREREHABMENRETR
FEAENIHER IR -F_FTFR_-F

—NETZ A=+ RBTHE ST E

EBBERR/RGEMR_Z_ZFR_Z
—hWF+ZA=+—BHEBHEANE
ERABBERINBEZE_ZT_TFR_
E-NFTA=+—RLEFENRER
BEBARE-
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continved) 13 ¥ -BERRKREmw

Fair value measurement of the Group's land and
bui|dings (Continued)

The valuation conforms to International Valuation Standards.
Where the external valuer is engaged, the management of
the Group works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

The fair value of the land and buildings were determined based
on either the transaction price and/or the direct comparison
approach that reflects relevant transaction prices for similar
properties, adjusted for differences in the nature, location and
condition of the land under review. There has been no change o
the valuation technique used during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

Fair value as at

AEBE L REFHLAFETE @

A ERE BREEER] - f[E RSN R
B AAREERERAERIMNBIAER
YA AR E W M ERM KRN
AR -

+30 BB TR A T AR R A B %
HER % 5B A P 52 B R S8 B b
BT RREZERLIOTAME 1
TR 35 H 388 o 522 P P ) i LA A
AR

REFAEEYE 2 A FER  ZFWEDH
EeBEMMERGAERKAE

RUTEEZATE
2020 2019 Valuation Technique
- - 3:3 ZT-hF RERE
S§ $$
IR g
Level 3
£
leasehold building: 6,700,000 6,900,000 Direct comparison
255 Pandan Loop, Singapore approach
HEST: BELEE
255 Pandan Loop, Singapore
Freehold building A: 1,103,490 1,135,740  Direct comparison
No. 7, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrion approach
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,
Mlaysia
KAKEEFA BERURE
No. 7, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian
Cemerlang 81800 Ul Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Mlaysia
Freehold building B 839,970 855,920 Direct comparison
No. 8, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindusirian opproach
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,
Mlaysia
KAFEEFD BERURE
No. 8, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian
Cemerlang 81800 Ul Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Mlaysia
Freehold building C 658,802 658,402 Direct comparison
No. 6, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindusirian opproach
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Tokzim,
Mlaysia
KAFEEFC BERURA

No. 6, Jalan Istimewa T, Taman Perindustrian
Cemerlang 81800 Ul Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Mlaysia
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Significant unobservable input

EXTTREBAYE

Average market price of 2020: $$265.85 (2019: $§273.79)
per square feef afer adjusfing for age, location, condiion and
surrounding focilty.

EHER LE KARARREBERETARTYTER:
ZERCRE 6585 MR (ZT-NF: 273708 I
L

Average market price of 2020: $$19.60 (2019: $§20.17) per
square fee affer adjusfing for age, location, condition and
surrounding faciliy

ERER NE RARARREREREYIRTYDER:
ZRIRF 1960 T (ZF—AF 20174 IR
TL) e

Average market price of 2020: $$21.43 (2019: $§21.83) per
square fee affer adjusfing for age, location, condition and
surrounding faciliy

EHER NE RARARREREREYIRTYDER:
ZRIRF QLA (ZF-NF - 2183 IR
TL)e

Average market price of 2020: $$23.71 (2019: $§23.69) per
square feef affer adjusfing for age, location, condition and
surrounding faciliy

EHER NE RARARREREREYHRTYTER:
ZRORF N7 (ZF-NF - 23,69 IR
TL)e

Sensitivity
BBE

The higher the market
price, the higher the
fair value.

mEEs AFES

r%]o

The higher the market
price, the higher the
fair value

The higher the market
price, the higher the
fair value

The higher the market
price, the higher the
fair value

mEEE ATEY
Bo



bui|c|ings (Continued)

Freehold building D

No. 6, Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3, Taman
Perindustrion Maju Cemerlang 81800 Ul Tiram,
Johor Darul Tokzim, Malaysia

KARRETFD

No. 6, Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3, Taman
Perindustrian Moju Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tirom,
Johor Darul Takzim, Malaysia

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continved) 13 ME -BERKXE®

Fair value measurement of the Group's land and AEEITHREFHLIFETEw
Fair value as ot
RUATEEZATE
2020 2019 Velution Technique ~ Significant unobservable input Sensitivity
232352 :?*Hi EERH EXTUERAANE HRE
S S
MR kT
592,920 - Direct comparison Average market price of 2020: S§43.65 (2019: SENI per The higher the market
approach square feet after adjusfing for age, location, condition and price, the higher the
surrounding faciliy. fair value.
EE {0 SR NE WARREREREAEYIRTONER: WEES AVEHS
CRCREOMMET (ZE-NE ) me
1,647,000 1,761,220 Direct comparison Average market price of 2020: $§26.08 (2019: S§27.88) per ~ The higher the market

Freehold lond A

No. 7, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian approach square feet afer adjusting for age, location, condifion and price, the higher the
Cemerlang 81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim, surrounding faciliy. fair value.
Mdlaysia
KARBLHA ERNRA BigR NE RARREREREAEYIRTONER: WEES ATEHS
No. 7, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrion ZEZRF 26,088 ME T (ZF-NEF 27885 MK =e
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim, 7)o
Mlaysia
Freehold land B 1,169,370 1,218,040 Direct comparison Average market price of 2020 $§26.82 (2019: S§27.94) per ~ The higher the market
No. 8, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian approach square feet aer adjusting for age, location, condifion and price, the higher the
Cemerlang 81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim, surrounding faciliy. fair value.
Mdlaysia
KA LB 1,169,370 1218040 ERHEE BigR NE RARREREREAEYIRYONER: WEES ATEHS
No. 8, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian ZEZRE Q082K (25— NE 27 94F me
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim, 7)o
Mlaysia
Freehold land C 1,169,370 1,218,040 Direct comparison Average market price of 2020: $§26.82 (2019: S§27.94) per  The higher the market
No. 6, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian approach square feet afer adjusting for age, location, condifion and price, the higher the
Cemerlang 81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim, surrounding faciliy. fair value.
Malaysia
KARRELHC EE LA BigR NE RARREREREAEYIRYONER: WEES AVEHS
No. 6, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian ZEIRE Q082K (25— NE : 27 94F me
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim, 7)o
Mlaysia
Freehold land D 691,740 - Direct comparison Average market price of 2020: $§36.33 (2019: SENI) per The higher the market
No. 6, Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3, Taman approach square feet afer adjusting for age, location, condifion and price, the higher the
Perindustrion Maju Cemerlang 81800 Ul Tiram, surrounding faciliy. fair value.
Johor Darul Tokzim, Melaysia ) ) .
KARBLHD ERNBA SR LE RARREREREAEYIRTONER: WEES ATEHS
No. 6, Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3, Taman ZECTFE0MBE T (ZE-NE8) - Ao
Perindustrian Moju Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tirom,
Johor Darul Takzim, Malaysia

14,572,662 13,747,362
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continced 13 M% - BEREE@®
Fair value measurement of the Group's land and AEFIHREFHLFETEw
bui|dings (Continued)
Any significant isolated changes fo the inputs would result in @ WABBNEMEFEE KB (LBEEHAT
significant change in fair value measurement. Bt EMNEREF-
The properties’ fair value hierarchy is based on level 3, and MERATFERBRTDERE=ZEH BERF
there were no fransfers between the fair value hierarchy levels N AFEBRZELEHRER -

during the year.

Had the properties been carried under the cost model, the M E UK ABEREGT 2 AW ENRBEND
carrying amounts of the properties would have been the T
following:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
S$ S$
¥ h03% T s T
Under cost model REAAERIET
Leasehold building HEEF 400,000 416,667
Freehold building KA EREETF 2,550,555 1,907,834
Freehold land KA SERE T 2,833,632 2,346,152

5,784,187 4,670,653

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (GROUP AS A LESSEE) 4 FAREE (AXEEEAREAMA
A)

The Group leases leasehold land, warehouses, accommodation AEFEHEAHEEL L EE-EIHEENE

for staff and motor vehicle. The lease term is in range of 2 to 30 o HEAN F2FE30F - T REZLEE2
years, with average opfion to extend 2 years. o
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14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (GROUP AS A LESSEE)

(Continued)

The Group has no options to purchase any of ifs leased assets af
the end of the lease term. Other than the leased motor vehicle,
the Group's obligations are not secured by the lessors’ fifle to the

FEMBImRME

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

14 EREEE (FAEEFEREEAN)
(%)
75 5 T R AR S (R
AEAE-REASEH FEE2EEL
EANAASERNBE 2 HELENE

leased assets for such leases. TEREH -
Leasehold Motor
land Warehouses  Accommodation vehicle Total
HELH BE BE B @t
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
T T T T ;T
Group 58
Cost: B
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-N¥—A—H 1,007,252 273,690 186,944 105,789 1,573,675
Additions NE - 156,078 62,314 - 218,392
Exchange difference R - (1,300) (476) - (1,776
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+=A
=1+—H 1,007,252 428,468 248,782 105,789 1,790,291
Additions NE = 111,053 21,433 - 132,486
Written Off 6 = - (12,622) - (12,622)
Exchange difference R ER - 643 119 - 762
At 31 December 2020 RZE-_ZF+-A
=+—H 1,007,252 540,164 257,712 105,789 1,910,917
Accumulated depreciation:  RFHFE:
At T January 2019 R-ZE-NF¥—A—H (148,289 (98,784) (63,390) (105,789) (416,252)
Charge for the year FRHAX (33,575) (108,877) 156,629 - [199,081)
Exchange difference EXER = 740 217 = 957
At 31 December 2019 RZT-NF
+-A=+—H (181,864) [206,921) (119,802 (105,789 (614,376)
Charge for the year FRHEX (33,575) (107,138) [55,049) - (195,762)
Writien Off sy = - 12,622 - 12,622
Exchange difference ERER - (494) (96) - (590)
At 31 December 2020 RZTE-ZF
+-A=+—H (215,439) (314,553) (162,325 (105,789 [798,100)
Carrying amount: fREE:
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF
+-A=+-H 825,388 221,547 128,980 - 1175915
At 31 December 2020 RZTZZF
+-A=+—H 791,813 225,611 95,387 - 1,112,811
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (GROUP AS A LESSEE) 14 fEAEEE (AEBEEAKEAN)

(Continued) (#%)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain leases for BE-_T-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE &
warehouses and accommodation were extended. This resulted in FEERBEEHETH Al R_ZE=-F
additions to rightofuse assets of S$132,486 in 2020 (2019: FoFREEERMIZ2,486F M T (=
5$218,392). T 218,3928 T ©
At 31 December 2020, the Group is committed to S$35,864 R-E-_ZTF+_A=+—H AEBZH
(2019: S$16,000) for short term leases. B ERIEARSS 804F M L (ZE— N
16,0008 N3 TT) °
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15 REWHE
Completed
investment
property
EXRIREWE
S$
o
At fair value: BAFE:
Balance af 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—HA—BN&E# 1,451,120
Loss from fair value adjustment (Nofe 6b) NEEFHEEE (MitTob) (165,452)
Exchange difference PEH Z%E (1,788)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NhF+_A=1+—HBH&E% 1,283,880
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Nofe 13) EEEYE BB REE (HFE13) (1,280,256)
Exchange difference PE =R (3,624)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZBE-EF+-_A=+—HBHHNEH =
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY  (Continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group's investment
property

The Group's investment property is stated at fair value. The fair
value measurements of the Group's investment property as af
31 December 2019 were performed by MacReal International
(B) Sdn Bhd, an independent valuer not related to the Group,
who has appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
fair value measurement of the investiment property in the relevant
location. The valuation conforms to International Valuation
Standards. Management has assessed that the key inputs and
assumptions used by the valuers for valuation date 31 December
2019. The fair value of the investment property, was defermined
based on direct comparison approach that reflects relevant
fransaction prices for similar properties adjusted for age, location,
condition and surrounding facility. The investment property fair
value hierarchy is based on level 3, and there was no fransfers
between the fair value hierarchy levels during the year.

During the current financial year, the property is redesignated for
the Group's own use, and fransferred from investment property fo
property, plant and equipment.

Fair value as at

RUTEEZAFE

FEMBImRME

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

15 REYWHE w
AEBRENEN AT EH B

AEEKEMERRAFEIE AEEBEK
BEMERZE—NFE+ZA=+T—AKA
FEFEHERER Y EBHOB G
{ERfMacReal International (|B) Sdn Bhdi#E7T
HEBEEEEG LY EELERIREYEE
TAFEHENTHLR ZEEFEHE
HEER -BEECHEEMR-_Z—NF
+ZA=+—HEEBRBHEANEEGA
B EBRBRETH G - REMENATER
BEREEEREET EHRMEER B K
AR EEEEFAEENEUYENEBRR
SEE - BREMELNTEERARE=IE B
FARFEER B EER o

RAMBEE ZWMEEFEEFEAKRER
- ITRERENEBRENE BERERE-

2020 2019 Valuation Technique ~ Significant unobservable input Sensifivity

ZECEE  CT-NFE GERN
s$ S$
by gL

Level 3

F=E

Investment property:

REM%:

No.6 Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3, NA 1,283,880 Direct comparison
Taman Perindustrion Maju Cemerlang, approach
Malaysia

No.6 Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3, TEA 1,283,880 EEHE
Taman Perindustrion Maju Cemerlang,
Malaysia

EARUBRGARE HRE

Average markef price of 2019: 5$95.85  The higher the market price,
per square feet after adjusting for age, ~ the higher the fair value.
location, condifion and surrounding
focility.

otk LB RAREEREEER TEMS ATELES-
BYARFATER: —T—NF:

95,8587 MR T °
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

16 INVENTORIES 16 #&
2020 2019
—2o%F —E-NF
S$ S$
3% 7T N T
Raw materials R 6,079,183 7,653,124
Packaging materials BEME 1,434,884 1,235,336
Work-in-progress ERE 1,236,093 1,168,234
Finished goods BB o 1,886,635 2,369,475
10,636,795 12,426,169
17 TRADE RECEIVABLES 17 B 5 EWRRE
2020 2019
i —E-NF
S$ S$
# b0 T N T
Trade receivables E 5 EWGIE 13,156,360 12,377,622
As at 1 January 2019, trade receivables amounted to RZE—NF—A—H BZEKFKES
$$10,851,673. 10,851,677 3% ¥ 7T
The Group granfs credit ferms to customers typically ranging AEERTFEESRERENER AR
from 7 to 60 days from the invoice date for trade receivables BTEPNT/EORMEER m&E T
and cerfain sales require payment in cash upon delivery. The EERRINBUARESNIR - U TABEHRE
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented HARREZEH (ROREHABBH) 27
based on the invoice date which approximated the revenue B E 5 W R IB R BRER D AT
recognition date at the end of each reporting period:
2020 2019
i —T-NF
$$ s$
03 5T N3 T
Within 30 days 30B A 8,003,947 7,108,179
31 days to 60 days 31HZ&E6OH 4,045,961 4,249,289
61 days to 90 days 61HZEQ0H 1,101,376 Q42,844
Q1 days to 180 days QIHZEI180H 4,771 53,169
181 days to one year 181RE—F 305 24,147

13,156,360 12,377,622
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17 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying volues of trade receivables approximate ifs fair
values.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed the
potential customer's credit quality and defined credit limit to each
customer on individual basis. Limits affributed to customers are
reviewed when necessary. The maijority of the Group's accounts
receivables that are past due but not impaired have no history of
defaulting on repayment. As at the end of each reporting period,
the Group does nof charge inferest nor hold any collateral over
the balances.

The Group applied the simplified approach to provide the
expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9. The impairment
methodology is sef out in Notes 3 and 30(b).

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
assesses the impairment for its custfomers based on different
group of customers which share common risk characteristics that
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts
due in accordance with the confractual terms. There has been
no change in the estimation technique or significant assumption
made during the current reporting period.

Aging of frade receivables that are past due but not impaired af
reporting dafe:

FEMBImRME

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

17 EZERKEmw

B RWFAENERERE QA FEMRS-

REMF PR AEE IR E R EEF G
BERFNEEERUNRBEESRTFPNE
ERE-RTEPHNBEEELER TR
Al e NEEAE D B A BRI E RS IR
W EERERCE -RERSHR A&E
3 8 B A R U B SR B T

AEERBEBRY B REENESRNETE
FERBIET AR BHEEHRTIREE-
BT R M FE3 K 30(b) ©

ERAEEEERREREN D AEE
wABARRREBENTRE P ARG
HEFPRE ARFHBRREFRIEA LK
R AP A BI IR BE ) - R AR & BB
B A T EREARRLBELEERNE
) o

B B R REE RO B P KR
AR ST

2020 2019

—EB-%F —F-NF

S$ s$

N T N T

Within 60 days 60R R 4,045,961 4,249,289
61 days to 90 days 61HZ90H 1,101,376 942,844
@1 days to 180 days @1HZ180H 4,771 53,169
181 days fo one year 181HE—4 305 24,141
5,152,413 5,269,443
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

17 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Coniinuec) 17 B 5 BEWRRE @
The estimated loss rafes are estimated based on historical EHERXREBEAABHBFEANBESR
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and EMGENRELMG  YREANE T
are adjusted for forwardlooking information that is available BERARB AN RS Z AL EREDL
without undue cost or effort. The directors of the Company HE-ARAEEFRATEHREEEFBREET
considered that the expected credit loss allowance is immaterial. TEKR

18 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 18 HitEWFIE - RE RBENFHIE

PREPAYMENTS
2020 2019
-t —T-hEF
S$ s$
N3 7o N T
Current Vi)
Advances to suppliers LT HERNRR 543,496 149,569
Advances to staffs BTEIMER 3,000 3,000
Deposits (Note i) e (FEEi) 111,999 99,169
Prepayments TR FRIE 116,870 241,878
Goods and services tax ("GST") receivables & U 78 & M AR 7 53
(@R 11,258 111,167
Grant Receivable JF&E L #7 BY) 68,603 -
Interest Receivable JE W B 15,851 -
Others (Note i H b (FEFED) 1,151 3,092
872,228 607,875
Non-current IERE
Deposits for purchase of fixed asset BEETEENES 493,384 194,390
Note: BT 5E -
(i) The management considered that the ECL for deposits and others (i) ERERAE N_E_EFR_ZT—NF
is insignificant as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. +ZA=+—H R REMHTEREER

186 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2020



19

20

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY

2 51

Trade related

FEMBImRME

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

19 B —&EES A

2020 2019
—E-EHF —ENF
S$ S$

¥ 03K 7T HNETT
- 6,432

There was S$Nil balance as at 1 January 2019.

The average credit period for provision of goods and services
by the related party is 30 days. The trade related amount due
to a related party in which it is controlled by Mr. Winston Lim
and Mr. lawrence Llim, executive directors of the Company, is
within 30 days old based on the invoice date af the end of each
reporfing period.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

R-_F—NF—A—H SiEEEER-

BB T IRt B o KRG HFIHEERA30
R REREHMRIZEZAH 250 EIEE
B (AARRBARTEEMT FTELERMK
77 SE ARSI B 5 H R FIR Z Bk ik /30
RIAA

20 PTEE®IA

2020 2019
—Bo%F —ET-hF
S$ S$
3 N3 7T N T
Foreign exchange forward confracts not AREPETREBERPETH
designated in hedge accounting BRATETENINERT
relationships carried at fair value a8 (OFEEHE)
(Net seftled)
Current assets MENEE 4,545 2,502
Current liabilities nEaE (237,308) (69,215)
(232,763) (66,713)

During the vyear, the Group had entered into several foreign
currency forward and option contracts with banks and financial
institutions to reduce ifs exposure to currency fluctuation risk of
sefflement from trade payables that are denominated in Australian
Dollar {"AUD") or US Dollar {“USD"). These derivatives were not
accounted for under hedge accounting. The contracts are subject
fo net sefflement af each maturity date and were measured at fair
value af the end of the reporting period.

RAFEE  AEED BRITREBEEFT L
ATINERMME RSN UREERGE
OBt (DR s ([RT])FHEME
SRENFIREGRNEEREER - ZFITE
TARBEHEHEIR  ZFANARE
AMAAERLFE YRREPRRIZAFE

i
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

20 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved)

The major terms of these foreign currency option contracts were
as follows:

Foreign currency option contracts

Notional Amount Maturity Date
ARTH R

2020

i

Buy USD and sell SGD:

BAETRE LML :

USD200,000 or USD400,000 15 March 2021
200,000 7t 3400,000% 7T —E_—¥=A+AH
Buy USD and sell SGD:

BEAZRTRE L INET:

USD300,000 or USD600,000 17 May 2021
300,000 7 3600,000% 7T —E-_—-FhAt+tH
Buy AUD and sell SGD:

BANRTREL# ST

AUD100,000 or AUD200,000 15 June 2021
100,0002 753 200,000/2 7T —E-—%XA+HEA
Buy AUD and sell SGD:

BEANRTRE B# T

AUD100,000 or AUD200,000 15 November 2021
100,0002 7t 8,200,000} 7T —Z-—f+—A+TAA
2019

—B-AF

Buy USD and sell SGD:

BAZXTREL#HMHE T

USD200,000 or USD400,000 14 February 2020
200,000 7£ 3400,000% 7T —E-THF_A+WA

The fair value of derivative financial instruments has been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out as at the end of the
reporting period by banks and financial insfitutions.
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20 TTE€RM I AEmw
ZEIINEHESONEBERUOT

SNEHIESL

Exchange Rate

E*

$$1.3355/USD
1.3355% K TTH 1= T

$$1.3928/USD
1.392837 i3 T 15T

$$0.965/AUD
0.065%T AR T3 1R T

$$0.965/AUD
0.Q65% AN TT 3 1R T

S$1.369/USD
1.369F I TR 15K T

TEEMIT AN FECRERTE SR
BERmERRAETZAEZER-
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BANK BALANCES AND CASH

FEMBImRME

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

21 BITEREES

2020 2019
—E-EHF —ENF
S$ S$
1038 T N T
Cash at banks RITIR S 20,872,974 5,754,516
Cash at hand FHEEAS 34,006 35,347
Bank deposits SRITIEK 3,493,895 10,520,477
24,400,875 16,310,340
less: Fixed deposits with maturity more than — J&k - 2 B B 7% = & A LA & &9
3 months TE BRTF 3K (3,001,677) (10,039,800)
Cash and cash equivalents in EBRERERANRES R
the consolidated statement of cash flows BeZEEY 21,399,198 6,270,540

Other than fixed deposits of $$3,001,677 (2019:
10,039,800) which has maturity of between six months and
one year, the remaining bank deposits of the Group represent
shortterm bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. Other than the bank deposits which carry fixed interest
rate, the bank balances carry interest at variable market rates as

follows:

Rcmge of interest rate per annum: fﬁﬂl?—fﬁ, :

Bank deposits RITHER
Bank balances RITHER

BB AZE—FHEMEHKS001,6775
M T (ZF— % :10,039,800% fn %
LI REBEKRITFREREEHA
A=EAKARNEHRRTER - FRIBITF
I B E M RGBS SRITARRIRA T A &
[EECEIESio-S

2020 2019

e —FNF

0.1% to 3.1% 1.94 10 3.3%
0.1% Z 3.1% 1.94 = 3.3%
0% to 2.28% 010 2.28%

0% Z 2.28% 0% 2.28%
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 EFREMENSNRE
2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NF
S$ S$
N 7T SN T
Trade payables 2 SN FEIA 3,151,033 3,576,835
Trade accruals BHEER = 116,611

3,151,033 3,693,446

Accrued operating expenses JEET 2 EMR X 3,043,484 2,385,890
Other payables: H A AN FRIE
— Deferred grant income — IR AT B W an 110,833 =
- Advances from customers —EFBEAR 29,872 -
— Deposits received —Blizse 11,601 10,601
— GST payables — e B AR R 172,304 186,758
— Others —HAth 279,062 239,165

3,647,156 2,822,414

Total HRET 6,798,189 6,515,860
The credit period on purchases from suppliers is between 7 to 30 A ERRENEERR/REIOR IR
days or payable upon delivery. RAFHF TR e
The following is an aged analysis of frade payables presented NTRAREREMRREZEHZ2IINE
based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting period: 2 e SRIABR B DT
2020 2019
et —E-NF
S$ s$
03K T T
Within 30 days 30HA 1,981,482 2,663,842
31 days to 90 days 31HZEQOH 879,328 739,651
Q1 days to 180 days Q1HZE180H 290,223 173,342

3,151,033 3,576,835
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FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

23 LEASE LIABILITIES 23 HEAE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —ENF
S$ S$
i hn3E T T
Within one year —F N 180,756 190,772
Within a period of more than one year —F1REMFREHE
but not exceeding two years 143,074 156,192
Within a period of more than two years M 1218 T 5 N HR A
but not exceeding five years 133,780 139,441
Over five years AFE 799,767 825,895
1,257,377 1,312,300
less: Amount due within one year shown B RREEEETIIRE
under current liabilities —FREIHAFIA (180,756) (190,772)
Amounts shown under non-current liabiliies R IEREN B EE T 5 /RAIFIE 1,076,621 1,121,528

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard
to its lease liabilities. lease liabilities are monitored within
the Group's finance function. The above represents leases for
leasehold land, warehouses, accommodation for staff and
motor vehicle of the Group. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate was 5.3% per annum. The Group's lease
does not contain variable lease payments and accordingly no
expense relating fo variable lease payments is included in the
measurement of lease liabilities. Certain leases of the Group
confain extension periods, for which the related lease payments
had been included in lease liabilities as the Group believes that
they will exercise these extension options.

AEEYAREEHEREEBENEARD
ExRk HERERANSENM BRI
- ALRAEEEREELH RE-B
TEENRERNES - MEFIEEEREF
MERSI% -AKENBEETREAER
EMF R HERGEFEFTESEA
HEHENFARNER AKENETHE
BEREHHRE ARARERSERITEL
FEMERE HEEENRESARER

& o
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24 RITREMBERK
2020 2019
= —F-NF
S$ S$
03 7T ¥ T
Secured at amortised cost BER (RBEHATE)
Bank loans RITEK 2,509,299 2,750,495
less: Amount due for sefflement within AR+ BB AR A E KA
12 months (670,281 1447 756)
Amount due for setlement after 12 months 7+ —{[i| A 1& B Bi 45 B 5018 1,839,018 2,302,739
The above bank and other borrowings are secured or guaranteed Lt sR1T REMERB AT B BEERK
by: AR
[i)  First legal mortgage over the Group's leasehold building ) AEEHEBFARKAERELT MR
and freehold land and freehold building; and KARBEEBFTOEMEEER: &
[i)  Joint and several guarantees from the directors and il ZAEBEBERENESEASHE
shareholders of the Group in their personal capacities. B R R ABRIHER
During the year, the joint and several guarantees from directors EE R RMHE RERERE R F A7
and shareholders were discharged. B o
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31 December 2020

24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continved)

The carrying amounts of the above bank and other borrowings
are repayable:

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-EF+-A=+—H

24 RITREMER @

3SR AT R L At i KB T 0 A A T B
e

2020 2019
—EREF —T-NF
S$ S$
3N T T
Within one year —FN 670,281 447,756
Within a period of more than one year —F1REMFREMHE
but not exceeding two years 522,910 464,047
Within a period of more than two years M 1218 T 6 N HA A
but not exceeding five years 932,287 1,179,755
Over five years AFE 383,821 658,937
2,509,299 2,750,495
less: Amount due within one year shown B RREBEEETIIRE
under current liabilities —FREIHFIB (670,281) ([447,756)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilites ~ R IERBIBETE NF/REYKIE 1,839,018 2,302,739

The effective interest rates [which are equal to contracted inferest
rates) of the Group's borrowings are as follows:

Effective interest rates (per annum)
variable-rate bank borrowings

AREEBRZERFE (FRENEHFIR)

FRBITERZER (F)FX

LIl
2020 2019
—ECRH —ET-NF
2.48% 10 5.02%  2.49% to 5.04%

2.48% £ 5.02% 2.49% = 5.04%

At 31 December 2020, the Group had available S$1,872,202
(2019: S$$5,558,652) of undrawn committed borrowing
faciliies in respect of which all conditions precedent has been
met. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
cancelled the available facilities amounting to $S$3,482,936
million.

R-ZE-_TFE+_A=1+—H *5H
BENTYRAEREAXLABEERE
B1,872, 2028 ME T (ZF—NF:
5,558,652% i) - B Z HHEARV P B 5t
RIGHEVEER - BE_FT_TF+_H
=t+—HUEFE AEECBURABARE
3,482,936FN N IT
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

25 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 25 EEBIEEE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised NTREERANIZEEHBEEERHELE
and the movements thereon: B
Revaluation
of freehold
building,

freehold land

and investment  Accelerated tax

property depreciation Total
KAXBETF
KARRELH
ENfME NEHBEBEFE e
S$ S$ S$
AN TT AN T KT
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—hF—HA—H 494,577 559,106 1,053,683
Charge to other comprehensive £ A H i 2 [ 7 X 0B

expense for the year (Note 27) (FFEE27) (104,6065) - (104,6065)
Underprovision in prior year BEFEREBTRE (KEES)

(Note 8) = 85,725 85,725
Credit to profit or loss for the year PG AT Az (H15E8)

(Note 8) (15,928 (125,462) (141,390)
Exchange difference fEH =% (274) (958) (1,232)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—N%F

+=ZA=+—H 373,710 518,411 892,121
Charge to other comprehensive £ A H i 2 T 7 X 0Bk

expense for the year (Note 27) (FFEE27) (5,251) - (5,251)
Underprovision in prior year BEFERETE (HEE8)

(Note 8) = Q7,126 Q7,126
Credit to profit or loss for the year KRRt AfEz (Ki718)

(Note 8) (7,735) [66,292) (74,027)
Exchange difference M ZR 185 351 536
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZZE_TF

+=—HA=+—H 360,209 549,596 210,505

The deferred tax liabilities are resulted from temporary taxable BERBEEETHER (DREIHINERE
differences arising from (1) accelerated depreciation in relation RETRITRE REBEREEZENRR
fo capital allowance claims on qualified assets in accordance BRABNIERTE - K& (2) stMNE (L ERD
with prevailing tax law in Singapore and Malaysia, and (2) ATEONAFEEME KA EEETFT KAE
revaluation of freehold building, freehold land and investment LRI EYEETEMHEKAEEE
property in relation to the fair value uplift as computed by the FOKAERLHEREMEEEREBE
external valuers and the book value of the freehold building, ERERERTEEMEE -

freehold land and investment property.

194 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2020



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2020

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-EF+-A=+—H

26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 AR
Number
of shares Par value  Share capital
Ro &R SHE ;&N
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised share capital of RRABDEERA
the Company:
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE-—NFR
2020 —E-ETF
+-—A=+—H 5,000,000,000 0.01 50,000,000
Number
of shares  Share capital
BHOEE ;&S
S$
N T
Issued and fully paid of the Company: ARBEETRAR
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—hhF—H—H 1,000 2
Capitalisation issue [Notfe a) BEARbE1T (M3Ea) 799,999,000 1,380,654
Share offer (Note b) Bin3EE (MsEb) 200,000,000 345,164
At 31 December 2019 and 2020 RZE-—NEFER_ZT_ZTF
+=-A=+—H 1,000,000,000 1,725,820
Notes: B 5
a) Pursuant to the written resolution of the sole shareholder of the a BRERARAE—RBRER-_ZE—N\F+=A

b)

it was resolved that

Company dated 20 December 2018,
the authorised share capital of the Company increased from
HK$380,000 to HK$50,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 4,962,000,000 shares; and conditional on the share
premium account of the Company being credited as a result of
the share offer, an amount of HK$7,999,990 which will then
be standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company be capitalised and applied to pay up in full at par a
total of 799,999,000 shares for allotment, rank pari passu in all
respects with all the then existing shares.

On 14 January 2019, the Company successfully listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange by way of placing
225,000,000 shares (175,000,000 new shares and
50,000,000 vendor sale shares) and public offer of 25,000,000
shares at the price of HK$0.50 per share. The Company's share
of nef proceeds affer deducting the underwriting commissions
and expenses paid or payable by the Company in relation fo the
share offer amounted fo approximately HK$66.8 million (S$11.7
million).

b)

TTHRBNEERER REEBER
# 9, 962,000,0008% & 17 #§ A A BETE
& 78 B1.380,0007% 7T # i 2 50,000,000/
T REFARR R EBRERGDFEEM
BEERR ARRROEERNERSD
#7990, 9008 TR KB A E AL AR
REERBER A 799,999, 000MA 7 -

B 2 E RN ES T mERA 8
REBRNDEEBREFHA -

R-ZZE—AFE—A+HEA KARAFEB
fid £225,000,0008% B 3 (175,000,000
A& 27 A% % 50,000,0000% & 75 $5 & R 15)
RiRGRIRHOSOE THEBRARRES
25,000,0008% A% 1 & 77 =\ X Th 1A Bk 32 B
FREM-ARARRIMBEBHEMAERAR
AR MNBEC R BTG
HBEFEADNOSAEBT (1 7EEH
o) o
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

27 REVALUATION RESERVE 27 BEfhf#E
The revaluation reserve records increase in the fair value of EERERSXAERLIHEEFREE
freehold land and buildings and leasehold building, net of tax, BFORFEEMN(EMEEHRIEA) - e
and decrease to the extent that such decrease relate to increase HpFIREMEEREANERNE —BE
on the same assef previously recognised in other comprehensive ERER-
income.
2020 2019
-t —T-NEF
S$ s$
N3 oo N T
At beginning of the year G 11,768,958 11,653,314
(Decrease) Increase on revaluation of B kAERYERBEEFZ
freehold properties and leasehold building CRLA) N (97,211) 10,979
Deferred tax on revaluation of freehold Bk AERYEZRERIE
properties (Note 25) (FFzE25) 5,251 104,665
At end of the year RER 11,676,998 11,768,958
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FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

28 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 28 AT MBRRETREE
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

2020 2019
ZBEF —T-hEF
S$ S$
F i3 7o N3 T
ASSETS AND LIABILITY BEEREE
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R BRI ZIEE 14 14
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI E S 4,350,682 11,429,523
Other receivables H iy fE Y FR T8 9,558 38,304
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRERS 8,878,222 2,525,648
13,238,462 13,093,475
Current liability REBEE
Other payables Hh FE A 5RO 160,950 160,614
160,950 160,614
Net current asset RBEEFE 13,077,512 13,832,861
Total assets less current liability, BREERABEE NEERE
representing net assets 13,077,526 13,832,875
EQUITY S
Capital and reserves BRAR #E
Share capital (Note 26) f&AS (F15E26) 1,725,820 1,725,820
Share premium [ 10 % (B 13,487,471 13,487,471
Accumulated losses RitEE (2,135,765) (1,380,416)
Equity attributable to owners of KAREEAELER
the Company 13,077,526 13,832,875
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

28 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 28 ERATRMBRIAREFE @™
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY  (Confinued)

A summary of the Company's share capital and reserves are as RRRBRA R FEHREZNAT
follows:
Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
& B 10 5 8 Rt ER st
S$ S$ S$ S$
T T T T
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE-NE—HF—H 2 = (3,002,780) (3,002,778
Total comprehensive profit FRZEGNBE:
for the year:
— Profit for the year —F N4 F = - 1,969,992 1,969,992
Transactions with owner, HFEAAKES
recognised diirectly in equity: BERER R
Issue of shares under RERMHEE
the share offer BTG 345,164 16,913,042 S 17,258,206
Issue of shares under REBERET
the capitalisation issue BT 1,380,654 (1,380,654) - -
Share issue expenses B BEITRE - (2,044,917) - (2,044,917)
Dividends declared EERERE = - (347,628) (347,628)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-h&
+=ZA=+—H 1,725,820 13,487,471 (1,380,416) 13,832,875
Total comprehensive loss FAZEERARE:
for the year:
— Loss for the year —FREE = - (755,349) (755,349)
At 31 December 2020 R-EZEH
+ZA=+—H 1,725,820 13,487,471 (2,135,765) 13,077,526
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages ifs capital to ensure that it will be able
fo continue as a going concem while maximising the refurn fo
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance, and to ensure that all externally imposed capital
requirements are complied with. The Group's overall sfrategy
remains unchanged for year ended 31 December 2020.

The capital sfructure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
bank and other borrowings, amount due to a related party and
equity attributable to owners of the Group, comprising share
capital and reserves. The Group is in compliance with externally
imposed capital requirements for the years ended 31 December

2020 and 2019.

The management the Group review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the management consider
the cost of capital and the associated risk with each class of
items in the context of capital sfructure, and take appropriate
actions fo adjust the Group's capital structure. Based on
recommendations of the management, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through continuity of funding of cash flows
from operating activities.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

31 December 2020

30 €@mI A

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-EF+-A=+—H

29 EXEHE

AEBEEEHAL AR AR B
SR - IR B BB B R 5L 28 2 P
TR RIS A R 5 - 3 AR A Y
FHANBEMOERRE -BE-2-F
FH-A=+—BILFE AEENERSE
BRI T o

AEEBNEARBHREK (ERBFERT
MEMER - B — 25 E) AR AR
SEBAAEGEZD (BERARER) A
H-BE_T_EFR-_ZF—-—NF+=A
=t+—HILFE AEBEETINBHEIMND
BARIRTE °

AEBERETERRAEARRE - ERRE
M—n ERBEEHREARBIEERE
RRA R EEFRTH B AN R - W IREUE
ENREEHABASENERARE -REEE
Bmiks ARESRBREEE [ 2 FH
BREREFTHHERREARE-

kB EREE

Categories of financial instruments SMIADE
2020 2019
—BIEF —ZT-NEF
S$ S$
i3 7o N3 T
Financial assets EEEE
— Amortised cost —# 8K
Trade receivables 2 5 W FIA 13,156,360 12,377,622
Other receivables and deposits HEfp e FIE MRS 129,001 102,261
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIRS 24,400,875 16,310,340
- FVIPL — N FEFGAEZD
Derivative financial instruments PTEeERmT A 4,545 2,502
37,690,781 28,792,725
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 30 €@ T AR MK EEREE @

MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities - =R

— Amortised cost —#E5K K

Trade and other payables B 5 NE M e FRIR
Amount due to a related party J& <t — & A Bk 5 KB
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER

- FVIPL — BN FEFABZ
Derivative financial instruments TEemIA

ERMIEDEw

2020 2019
-85 —T A7
s$ s$
s #7035 7T

6,485,180 6,329,102
- 6,432
2,509,299 2,750,495

237,308 69,215

9,231,787 ?,155,244

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade receivables,
other receivables and deposits, amount due fo a related party,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, bank and
other borrowings and derivative financial instruments. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective nofes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
[interest rate risk and currency risk], credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are sef out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
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30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a)

Market risk management
Inferest rafe risk management

Inferest rafe risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market inferest rates. Management has assessed
there is minimal exposure of the interest rate risk on the
variable rafe bearing bank balances and bank and other
borrowings. It is the Group's policy fo raise borrowings af
fixed-rate or variable-rate according to business needs and
as o minimise the fair value and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors inferest rafe risk
exposure and will consider interest rate hedging should the
need arise.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower
over the bank and other borrowings and all other variables
were held consfant, the Group's:

e Profit for year ended 31 December 2020 would
decrease/increase by S$10,126 (2019
S$13,729). This is mainly attributable to the
Croup's exposure fo interest rates on ifs variable rafe
borrowings.

31 December 2020
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

[a)  Market risk management (Confinued)
Interest rate risk management (Continved)

The directors of the Company consider the sensitivity
analysis fo be unrepresentative of the interest rate risk as
the exposure at the end of each reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

No sensitivity analysis is presented on the interest rate
risk on bank balances as the directors of the Company
considered that the exposure is minimal during the year.

Currency risk management

The Group fransacts business in various foreign currencies,
and has cerfain monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in US Dollar {“USD"), Australian Dollar (*AUD"), Hong Kong
Dollar ("HKD"), Malaysia Ringgit (“MYR") and Euro ("EUR")
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities, which exposes the Group fo foreign currency risk.

The Group manages the risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rate.
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FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 30 €@ T ARMERKRERE @
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(a)

Market risk management (Confinved) (a)
Currency risk management (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the significant Group's monetary
assets and  liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
the end of each reporting periods are as below:

il

%k E I (4

ErEfEEHE (8)

REREHR AREASNEETED
EEBEERABMKREEBNT

ES

BERREEEERBEE @™

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
S$ S$
¥ 038 T AN T

Monetary assets EWEE
— denominated in USD —AETTEHE 1,176,271 1,276,907
— denominated in AUD —LUBITEHE 126,969 5,483
— denominated in HKD — A TLETE 11,208,487 12,642,268
— denominated in MYR — B RALEMEREE 853 425
12,512,580 13,925,083
2020 2019
—E-%F —F-NF
S$ S$
3 7o N T

Monetary liabilities EWaE
— denominated in USD —AZETEHE 860,386 1,695,009
— denominated in AUD —LUBITEHE 606,747 -
— denominated in HKD — A TTEHE 59,937 11,546
— denominated in MYR — B RAEMERFE 22,378 49176
- denominated in EUR —LABTEHE 169,546 213,615
1,718,994 1,069,346
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 30

MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

[a)  Market risk management (Confinued)
Currency risk management (Continued)

The Group comprise of a number of investments in foreign
subsidiaries, whose net assefs are exposed fo currency
translation risk. The Group does not currently designate its
foreign currency denominated debt as a hedging instrument
for the purpose of hedging the translation of its foreign
operations.

Further details on the forward exchange derivative
instruments are found in Note 20 to the financial
statements.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the sensitivity to a 10% increase
and decrease in the relevant foreign currencies against the
functional currency of each respective group entity. 10%
is the sensitivity rafe used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetfary items and adijusts their translation at the period
end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. The
sensifivity analysis includes external loans where they gave
rise to an impact on the Group's profit or loss.
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FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 30 €@ T ARMERKRERE @
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BEEAREEEEREE w®
(Continued)
[a)  Market risk management (Continued) () WHERARER @
Sensitivity analysis (Continved) BREZ T ()
If the relevant foreign currency weakens by 10% against MEBIIELSEEERNIIEE
the functional currency of each Group entity, Group's profit B2 (E10% Bl 2 &£ B 70 7R 5 2 69 0% 7
or loss during the year will increase [decrease] by: s RIG I CR D) -
2020 2019
—RCEH —E-NF
S$ $$
03 7T N T
Profit or loss i M S B 1R
— USD impact —EnRE (24,325) 29,783
— AUD impact —BITHE 36,946 (391)
— HKD impact — B E (858,505) (899,741)
- MYR impact —ERATHERZE 1,658 3,473
- EUR impact —BTRE 13,056 15,217
A 10% strengthening of relevant functional currency BEMBEEMBEEEFTE HED
against the above currencies would have had an equal RREBH PRE¥AEIONEH X
but opposite effect on the above currencies fo the amounts PRENSHESLZRERARNZE -
shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is ERERA BNFHERNIMERP
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as I B8 = R0 AN 4F 2 B R A LB - B
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during FRESM TR KREFINER R -
the year.
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 30

MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

[a)  Market risk management (Confinued)
Oither price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
derivative investments in foreign currency forward contracts.
The foreign currency forward confracts change with the
exchange rate and no sensitivity analysis on such risk has
been prepared as the directors of the Group considered the
carrying amount of derivative instruments are insignificant to

the Group.

(b)  Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its confractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. At the end of reporting period, the Group's
maximum exposure fo credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties arises from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assefs as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk at
31 December 2020 on frade receivables from the Group's
top five major customers accounted for 76% (2019: 74%)
of the Group's trade receivables. The major customers of
the Group are certain reputable organisations.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company has delegated ifs finance team to develop and
maintain the Group's credit risk gradings to cafegorise
exposures according fo their degree of risk of default. The
finance team uses publicly available financial information
and the Group's own historical repayment records to rafe
its major customers and debtors. The Group's exposure
and the credit rafings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of fransactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.
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31 December 2020

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-EF+-A=+—H

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 30 €@ T ARMERKRERE @
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk management (Continved) (b)

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

Category
5l

Performing

RuF
Doubifful

AJ &¢

In default
EAX

Write-off

% 84

BERREEEERBEE @™

FERBERE @)

AEERBHNEERRFRERH A

TR -
Description Basis for recognising ECL
it BREHNEEFANESE
The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 12m ECL

have any pastdue amounts.

RZEFEORRE B EMBHRE

There has been a significant increase in credit risk since

initial recognition.
B e R EE R E LN

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired.

BRREAEELREERE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery.

BERRKRABHEABARENMBRE B AEE
Yo [m SRIA Y F OB SE
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 30

MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(b)  Credit risk management (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group's
financial assets, as well as the Group's maximum exposure

to credit risk by credit risk rating grades.

Internal credit

EMITARVMKERRERE w

BEEREEEERBEE@®

b) EFERRERE@®

TRHVASEEREENEEER
ARREERBRFRE DO EE R

B R
=1s B Rk

Gross carrying

Note  rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount !
ME RABEETR 12BR2PEHAEESE fREAE"
S$
R T
2020
Trade receivables 17 (q) Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 13,156,360
=L)X EN] (a) EHEBEESE (FLhE)
Other receivables and deposits 18  Performing 12m ECL 129,001
HtpERFE R RS R#f 12EARMEEER
13,285,361
2019
Trade receivables 17 (o Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 12,377,622
B P RWHRE (a) FHREBEEER (BE)
Other receivables and deposits 18 Performing 12m ECL 102,261
HtERFER RS Ry 12 AEREEEE
12,479,883

(1) The gross carrying amount is equivalent o the net
carrying value as the Group has no loss allowance

for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk management (Continved)

(a)  For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in IFRS 9 fo measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the
expected credit losses on these items by using an
analysis of assets by risk level of customers, estimated
based on hisforical credit loss experience adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic condifions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

Other than concentration of credit risk on bank deposits and
balances placed in 3 banks in which the counterparties
are financially sound and on trade receivables from fop 5
customers, the Group has no other significant concentration
of credit risk on other receivables, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulties in meeting ifs financial obligations as and when
they fall due. In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

31 December 2020

FEMBHRRMEE
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30 eMIARHMBEKRERE w
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(b

(c)
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

30 eWMIARHMBEKREREw

BEEREEEERBEE@®

(Continued)
[c)  liquidity risk management (Continued) ) mBESEREE @
Non-derivative financial liabilities HiTEBHEE
The following tables detail the remaining contractual TRAMFETESRBBRT SO
maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables HER - BZRDBEBAEERENS
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows BMEEKEZRNARMRREREM
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which HIE - ZRBENELREHERE -
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both AE-REINMERSNMTEELA
interest and principal cash flows. The adjustment column EIEARKAIEER @ RE KW |ATA
represents the possible future cash flows aftributable to the mEPBRARNEREEREER -
instrument included in the maturity analysis which is not
included in the carrying amount of the financial liability on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Weighted
average
effective  On demand or Within Carrying
interest rate ~ within 1 year ~ 2to Syears  After Syears  Adjustments amount
mEFH RERY
ERAZ ik 2855 SER hE REE
S§ $$ $$ s$ s$
g H s g g g
31 December 2020 ~ R=B=%f&
t=R=+-H
Floafing rate — bonk and ¥ E)MIE — &7 R
oher borrowings HhER 2.48:5.02% 732,923 1,566,599 390,830 (181,053 2,509,299
Fixed rate - lease liabilties [&l7E 7 %
-HEARE 5.30% 243,645 458,309 1,235,433 (680,010) 1,257,377
Trade and other payables & 5 & At
R E - 6,485,180 - - - 6,485,180
Total @5t 7,461,748 2,024,908 1,626,263 (861,063) 10,251,856
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 30 €@ T ARMERKRERE @
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BEEAREEEEREE w®
(Continued)
[c)  Liquidity risk management (Confinued) ) mBESEREE @
Non-derivative financial liabilities (Continved) HrTETHEE (8)
Weighted
overage
effective  On demand or Within Carrying
nterest rafe  within 1 year 210 5years  Afer 5 years Adjusiments amount
¥ BRRY
BRI RIER 2E5% SE BE R
$ $§ s $ $§

FIRTT IR g IR g

31 December 2019 RZE-RE

tZA=t-A
Floating rafe - bonk and ~ JEEIHIE TR
ofher borrowings EffER 2.49% 10 5.04% 528,761 1,816,545 679,314 (274,129) 2,750,495
Fixed rate - lease liabilifies &7 /%
-HEaRk 3.30% 256,602 483,567 1,301,916 (729,843 1,312.300
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A
JER 58 = 6,329,102 = = S 6,329,102
Amount due fo a reloted  ER —E A
pary B = 6,432 - - - 6,432
Total @i 7,120,957 2,300,112 1,981,230 (1,003,970) 10,398,329
The amounts included above for variable interest rate /2B A & BB RPN R HIRPAE
instruments for financial liabilities are subject to change if E A AMERAR B A Lt £ &
changes in variable interest rates differ from those estimates BEZEEMEIAZE MRS
of interest rates determined af the end of the reporting B

period.
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

[c)  Liquidity risk management (Confinued)
Derivative financial liabilifies and assets

All derivative financial liabilities and assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are due
within one year. Details of derivative financial liabilities and
assets are as disclosed in Note 20.

(d)  Fair value

Fair valve of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on recurring
basis

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
model based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amorfised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate fo their fair values.
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31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 30 €@ T ARMERKRERE @
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

([d)  Fair value (Continved)

Fair valve of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair valve on recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured at fair value af the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of derivative financial instruments are determined
(in particular, the valuation technique(s| and inputs used).

Fair value as at

RTFIRHZ2AFE

31 December
2020
- 33
+=A
Er=I[q

S$

I

Assets:
Current -
4,545
Liabilities:
Current -
237,308
BE RE-
4,545
BERD-
237,308

There were no transfers between levels of the fair value

31 December
2019
—E-NE
+=A
=t+—H
s$

g

Assefs:
Current -
2,502
Libilities:
Current =
69,215
BE: RE-
2,502
BfE: RE-
69,215

hierarchy during the year.

Fair valve
hierarchy

DVEER

level 2

-

3

BERREEEERBEE @™

d) AFEEm@m

KB MR EL L FEGTENLIEE
EHEERTHBRIENLFIE

AEEELEMEERERABNE
BERRLZQFESE - TREIA
M ETESRTANAFELZ
BR (LERMEROGERM R

ABR) -
Significant
Valuation technique(s); unobservable
and key input(s| input(s)
EXTABERBA
HERTREREARE g5

Fair value is based on spot exchange rates [from observable  N/A
spot exchange rates at the end of the reporting period) and
contracted forward rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterparties.

RPEDHENHER (REFEHRNTERDHER)
ROTRRERHE TRRRERFUFEERRA
MBI

&R

RER RFEERZFELEHRE
%o
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Some of the Group's transactions and arrangements are with
related parties and the effect of these on the basis determined
between the parties are reflected in these financial statements.
Related parties refer to entities in which directors of the Group
have a beneficial interest in it.

31

BT X5

AEBETRZRLZE T ERB TR

BN BEEEETUNZEX SRR H
VR ERNAMBHRER AR BB T RS
BEERNETHEEaRENER-

The Group entered into the following fransactions with related AREED HBEAB TR ATRS
parties:
2020 2019
= —FNF
S$ S$
03 7T ¥ T
Transactions with related parties HAEFHE T B3 5
Rental charged (Note) BEHEE (M) (122,117) (123,0906)
Note: This pertained fo renfal paid fo Tai Sun Lim Kee Trading Sdn. Mzt : E#MELEMNFToi Sun Lim Kee Trading

Bhd. The Group leases warehouse buildings for an average lease
term of 2 years with an opfion to extend another 12 months. In
current year, the rental charged amounted to $$122,117 (2019:
S$123,096) pursuant fo the lease agreements. Under IFRS 16, the
Group recognised ROU asset of $$225,610 (2019: $$221,547)
and lease liability of $$236,322 (2019: $$232,257) as
at 31 December 2020. Correspondingly, a depreciation of
S$107,138 (2019: S$108,877) and finance cost of S$18,586
[2019: S$17,785) were recognised during the current year.
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FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuec) 31 BHARS @
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FRNEERHEHMFEETEA BN
management during the years were as follows: LU
2020 2019
—E-EF —ENF
S$ S$
03 7T N T
Short term benefits 2 BfE A 4,245,596 3,820,048
Postemployment benefits BREER 105,435 115,156
4,351,031 3,935,204
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 32 HEMERE
At 31 December 2020, the Group had no outstanding RZZB_TFE+_A=+—0 XxEERT
commitments under non-cancellable operating leases. AR LT EE T EREEAE-
The Group as lessor AEEESHEA
2020 2019
—EB-EHF —EB-hF
S$ s$
03 7T TN T
Minimum lease payments received under IR E YR WEH
an invesiment property KIEEERNRK - 71,475
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31 December 2020

32

33

—E-TF+_-_A=+—H

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS  (continued) 32 BEMRERE =
The Group as lessor (Continved) AEBEAEHBAA@®
The Group had contracted with a lessee for the following future REBEABARTAIMBELEHERT
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases FIARREERENRETLAEL  HBH B
which fall due as follows: e
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
S$ S$
03 7T ¥ N T
Within one year —FR - 23,702
Operating lease receipts represent rentals receivable by the REHEWRABAEBRIREDEEK
Group for investment property. The lease was negotiated for WEE - MEERAR2F RENEHRNZ
2 vears and payments are fixed over the lease term with no NREEELRE BEXESAXNABSE
contingent rent provision included in the contracts. The lease was H-MHBEEAEERNBE_TE_FEF+=2A
ended during the year ended 31 December 2020. =t+t—BIEFERIE-
RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN 33 EKEFEHE

As prescribed by the Central Provident Fund Board of Singapore
and Employees Provident Fund of Malaysia, the Group's
employees employed in Singapore and Malaysia respectively,
who are Singapore Citizens or Permanent Residents and
Malaysian Citizens or Permanent Residents, are required fo
join the CPF and EPF scheme respectively. For the year ended
31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group contributes up fo
17% and 13% of the eligible employees’ salaries to the CPF and
EPF scheme, with each employee’s qualifying salary capped ot
$$6,000 per month and no cap respectively.

The total costs charged to profit or loss, amounting to
$$532,533 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
S$532,454), represent contributions paid to the retirement
benefits scheme by the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, contributions of S$161,762 (2019:
S$156,520) were due but had not been paid to CPF/EPF. The

amounts were paid subsequent to the end of the period.

216 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2020

MEPARNEEREERAGTEE AR
THRE  AREENERFRATERN
BREWBHMEARIKARRME KA
SRARFKARR  DHIE2ETRARNES
AERREEAREEHE -BE_T_TFR
“E-NAFT A=+ HUEEE AEE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

34 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below defails changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group's consolidated statements of cash flows as cash flows

FEMBImRME

31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-A=+—H

34 MEZBMELREBEHNYHE

TR AEEERETHNELEEEBDH
BHHBE ERRAFREEH-RETE
PRELRBERCRKRABRNAEREGESR
j‘—:/}ILE;—E/\*EEIH‘-]Eﬁ/ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁgiiﬁé/ﬁi
MRS REBIAKBACREZBE-

from financing activities.

Bank Lease

borrowings liabilities Total

|ITER HEESRE wat

s$ S$ S$

N ot hnig ot g

1 January 2019 —hF—A—H 4,958,554 1,289,328 6,247,882

Financing cash flows RERESRE (2,312,271) (273,099) (2,585,370

Non-cash changes FHREEE

New lease liabilities HHEAE - 218,392 218,392

Finance costs recognised (Note 7) B HERRE KA (FzE7) 104,212 /8,545 182,757

Exchange difference fEH =% - (866) (866)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF

+=-—A=+—H 2,750,495 1,312,300 4,062,795

Financing cash flows BMERESRE (315,373) (253,872) (569,245)

Non-cash changes FRTRE

New lease liabilities FHEARE - 132,486 132,486

lease modification gain HE B Uk - (5,423 (5,423)

Finance costs recognised (Note 7) B HERELE KA (HFE7) 74177 74,519 148,696

Exchange difference PE R ZER - (2,633) (2,633)
At 31 December 2020 A

+=-—A=+—H 2,509,299 1,257,377 3,766,676
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_FTF+_-_F=+—H

35 MBQAFHE

KRR ZZBEZEFR T —NF+=A
—t+t—BEELEERENNBRGFE

35 PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES

Defails of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out

below. #HEmTF -
Place of Group's
incorporation/ Paid up issued effective Held by the
Name operation capifal interest Company  Principal activities
AR KEEH LN
1 R BRBRE ERED HERERE TEEW
TSH BVI US$10 100% 100%  Investment ho|dmg
TSH RBRAAS 10%7T REER
788 Singapore $$300,000 100% - Packing and retailing of food products
78S K 300,000 AN 7T RuBERTE
TSF Malaysia MYR 2,300,000 100% - Producers, manufacturers of and dedlers in nuts
TSF HRAEE 2,300,000 BREER REBRZHB
BERASHE R
TZF Malaysia MYR 500,000 100% - Producers, manufacturers of and dealers in chips
TZF HRAS 500,000 EREER BERNRHE
BRAGHE
TSGI (Note BVI Us$1 100% - Inactive
TSCI (M) RERLES B TEZE
ZCC (Nofe] Hong Kong HKD 1 100% - Inactive
ZCC (Mt3tE) & 18T ERLE
Note: B 5T -

WEERN T NFaEMmie

These entities are newly incorporated in 2019.

BEMBARRFERBTEMEEES-

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.
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BANKERS" GUARANTEES

Bankers' guarantees with customers

RITHEPER

31 December 2020

36

FEMBHRRMEE
—E-EF+-A=+—H

RITHER

2020 2019
—E-EHF —ENF
S$ S$

¥ 03K 7T HNETT
269,213 274,139

The balances represent the performance guarantee provided by
the Group in favour fo its cusfomers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a share option scheme approved by a written
resolution passed by the shareholder of the Company on
20 December 2018 [the “Share Option Scheme”), the Company
may grant opfions fo eligible directors of the Group, eligible
employees of the Group and other selected participants, for the
recognition of their confributions, to subscribe for shares in the
Company with a payment of HK$1 upon each grant of options
offered.

The exercise price of the share opfion will be not less than the
highest of:

[i)  the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date (the
"Offer Date”) of grant of the particular option, which must
be a business day;

[i)  the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date of the
option; and

liii)  the nominal value of a share on the Offer Date.

37

EREREAEENERFPAX S ARH
BB HIYELR -

BRETE

BREARABRRR-_ZT—-NF+_A=+
B8 B R & R 3 5 P AL B9 BB A 5 8
(MER#EE ) ARAARAEEAE
REF AEREERAMEES2EERH
BREASERSENER REAREER
R VETTARB AR RN

BREZITEEIEERATES

) REOFEEREZRA ([ZHEH] -
ARERXER)EBXMEBRARERN
BN R AT E

(i) EXBREEHEHMAELZEXAHE
B3 P B RE R TR RO FH R
mE: &

i) RELHBHORMDEE-
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2020

—E-TF+_-_A=+—H

37 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

38

The share options are exercisable at any time during a period
of not more than 10 vyears from the date of grant, subject to
the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme, or any
conditions sfipulated by the Board of Directors.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the number of shares
of Company. Unless further shareholders’ approval has been
obtained pursuant to the conditions sef out in the Share Option
Scheme, no person shall be granted an option which, if all the
opfions granfed fo the person |(including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12 months period up to the dafe of
grant are exercised in full, would result in such person’s maximum
enfilement exceeding 1% of the number of issued shares of
Company.

Up to the date of issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, no options have been granfed or agreed to be
granted pursuant fo the Share Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no share opfions
have been granted nor exercised and there is no outstanding
share option of the Company as at 31 December 2020.

37 BREE @

RIBBRET S 2R RGN EFTEM
FTE BRI - BRI R th B AR RT
BB+ F 2 IR ABER T -

ARF A H OB RAER S kRO BB
FRAGBBARTRMNEEI0% BRIFE
AR B B AE R 8P 51 R 1 55 1T BV BRUR
BRI REER G A BE T 2{E A 823
A HWETF-—RALTHNBRE (BECTT
ERERITENERE) BE2HTESENR
HBANTERBO ERBEARNAR BT
BRIDEB 1% BITAImZE A LR D BR
f&o

BEERGAMBHRRTNERD HERERE
R R KRR ER L A E -

HE-_ZT-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE"
BEERECERHNKITE MR=2F=F
F+-AZ1+—H ARQRABERKTEN
RERR#E -

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38 BAREIE
2020 2019
et —T-hF
S$ S$
¥ hn 3% T N T
Commitments for acquisition of property, WHREMIZ - R M R i 2 g
plant and equipment 3,029,086 290,728
Commitments for renovation of BT mEE T 2 AE
factory building 805,975 1,316,800
3,835,061 1,607,528
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